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VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC 2010 ANNUAL REPORT

Ivan Seidenberg chairman and chief executive officer ofVerizon delivering the opening keynote speech at

the 2011 International Consumer Electronics Show

Dear Shareowner

One question lies at the heart of Americas challenge to regain its leadershp after

years of economic turmoil Whats the key to growth and competitiveness At

Verizon we answer that question simply and consistently We have vision of the

future based on expanding markets for mobility broadband and video We invest

capital in network technologies that put us the center of these growth markets

and we innovate on our own and with partners to deliver new capabilities to

the marketplace and create even more opportunities for growth We sustained

this investment and-innovation model throughout the economic downturn

building scale and capacity in the growth businesses of the future We focus on

running disciplined efficient businesses that deliver the benefits of these superior

assets to our customers and shareowners As result these vibrant mobile and

broadband businesses are both driving Verizons growth and contributing

substantially to the technology base for renewal of Americas competitiveness in

the innovation economy

2010 was standout year in our continuing shift toward growth



Our results in 2010 reflect the fundamental strength of our company Revenues grew 1.9

Wireless
percent on comparable basis for the year the second straight year of positive revenue growth in

Revenue

cbiflions very sluggish economy Our growth was propelled by strong performance in wireless broadband

$60.3
$63.4 and strategic business services and our results improved in the second half of the year giving us

49.3 good momentum entering 2011 Our cash-flow performance was particularly strong in 2010 We

generated $33.4 billion in operating cash flow and grew free cash flow by 16.4 percent Combined

with the proceeds from our sale of some non-strategic assets this enabled us to invest $16.5 billion

in our advanced networks pay $5.4 billion in dividends and reduce net debt by $14.1 billion The

Board of Directors showed its confidence in future cash flows by voting in September to raise our

ió dividend by 2.6 percent the fourth increase in as many years to $1.95 share on an annual

basis We also completed the spin-off of some rural telephone properties to Frontier which yielded

$1.85 per share in value for shareowners

Verizons strategic position is anchored by our sustained investment in superior network

technology We continued to push that envelope in 2010 embedding ourselves even more deeply

in the high-tech sector of the economy Our nationwide third-generation wireless network is

consistently rated the nations best in quality and reliability With this competitive edge we have

captured significant share of the fast-growing wireless market over the last several years and have

introduced wide array of wireless data services and products including most recently the

iPhone In December we launched our fourth-generation wireless network in about one-third of

the U.S and will expand it across the country over the next three years giving us premier position

in the explosive wireless data marketplace and setting the stage for new phase of growth for

Verizon Our all-fiber FiOS network is now available to 15.6 million homes and is bar none the

Focus on Profitable Financial Growth

Verizons sets provide us wi an unmatched strategic position in future growth markets for broadband wireless data video and cloud services

We focus on leveraging thes superior assets to deliver increased value to customers and investors This creates virtuous cycle of investment

execution growth and profitability in which success in each area promotes mccess in all the others

Defend and extend our market position Consistent investment

Execute aggressive business plans for growing Allocate capital to growth platforms advanced

revenue and gaining market share to generate cash systems and emerging technologies to deliver

for continued inves ment innovative products and services

Bitsiness

ModJ
Operational excellence Execut Sound portfolio management

Deliver on the power of our assets and
Actively manage our portfolio to add

expertise through fundamental execution strategic capabilities and when necessary

operational efficiency and superior service exit non-strategic businesses

Superior returns through strong execu ion and performance
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fastest Mghest qua ity broadband network ir the country FiOS gives us an unpara leled atform

for de iverir the flood of hgh definiuon vdeo content that makes up rapid growing portion

of the Internet We so contnued to obal ze our company by enhanOng our high speed Internet

backbone whch serves continents and close to 160 countries worldwide Furthermore were

addng to our extensIve network of data centers to postior ourselves for the emerging market for

cloud services which content customer data secur ty servces and more wi be stored in

the etwork and made avalable or demand to customers wherever they are

Ver zon Wre ess ended the year with 04 mil ion customers and growing nunber of

conr ectons from smart grids ATM achnes smart cars and other machne to machine devces

that reflect thc ncreas ngly pervasive reach of wireless nto our da ly ives Data revenues grew at

25.6 percent in 2010 rue ed by the ncredib success of the Droid frarch se of smartphores called

bp PJ one of the hottet bran dof 2013 We kase noc evpaoded porio in of des ce to

nc ude the Apple Pad and iPhone and expect to see teady stream of new smartphones

tablets and other oevces from mu tip manufacturers 2011 We broke grour or an expan on

of our echr ology nnovaton Center Wa tf ar Massachusetts ar we are workng wth more

than 60 product dove opers and ose 6000 applcat ons deve opers and entreprer curs to create

rew generation of wreless broadba products and app icatons Of course the most meanirgfu

accorr ishment for us beng number one th cusomers so we were partcular gratfied to

see tha Consumer Reports gave us the ghest customer sat sfaction rabng of any ix ajor carrier for

the second year row

Revenues from DOS bmadband and vdeo now consttute more than ha fof ou consuner

te ecoix business At yeaoend we had 4.1 ml Ion kiDS nternet customers and 3.5 ml on vdeo

sub cribers and FiOS evenues grevv most 32 percent or the year Our all-fber network cor tin

ues to garner top rat ngs from .0 Power CMog.nom and other ndustry experts We ye staed

point the way to tfe next generation of vdeo servrces with 3D broadcasts of rrajor sportIng

eve ts growng ibrary of video on deft and content nevv service cal ed FlexVew that ets sub

scrber watch FiO vdeo content or therTV PC or si artpkone and connected home solution

coftng 2011 for managng energ security ar enterta nment needs from remote location

2010 Total Return

Verlzor xP 500

23.1%

15.1%

33 30 123



We are starting to see our business revenues stabilze somewhat as the economy begns to

recover and as were seeing in our other major busnesses our enterprise revenue base is shfting

heavly to higher growth servces Strategic services now account for 44 percent of our enterprise

revenues Revenues from strategc servces grew 6.3 percent on the year and accelerated to 7.5

dercert in the fourth oIarter 0ur global internet backbone network znd extensive switching and

data center architecture give us great platform for marketing managed services securty and

oud-based servces to multinationa corporations We took steps to further
strengthen our

position cloud sers ices in early 201 by entering nto an agreement to acquire Te remark

obal provider of managed nformation technology solutions With
consistently high marks from

ndustry analysts such as Gartner Forrester and Yankee Group and growing portfo io of

capabi ties we secured number of signifcant customer wins in 2010 And we are working wth

partners to develop our capabilities in high-growth segments like health care smart grids fnancia

services ano security

am pleased to report that our stock rebounded strongly in 2010 Total return for the year was

23.1 percent as compared with 15.1 percent for the SP and 14.1 percent for the Dow Jones

ndustral Average The primary drivers of this mproved performance were sustained growth in

wireless and stabilizing margins in wireline This improvement in wireline profitability is evidence

that our strategic growth businesses are beginning to grow faster than our legacy voice business is

shrinking so contributing to our 2010 stock performance were our dividend strong cash flows

and steady execution all of which we beleve will stand Verizon in good stead as tne

fundamentals of the economy improve 2011

As pFeased as we are with our 2010 performance we are confident that we can raise our game
201 Our

outstanding assets give us an advantageous strategic positon the fast growing

markets for moble broadband high-speed Internet and advanced business services Going

forward our challenge is to continue to transform our growth profile around these obal high

tech opportunities while
consstently creating shareholder value at the same time To do that our

eadershp team is focused on execu1ng our profitable growth model see diagram on page and

leveragino our assets to delver supehor vaue to customers and nveturs

Lowell McAdam was named president and chief operating officer in 2010 with the expectation that he will
become chief executive officer when Ivan Seidenberg retires in 2011
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2010 was year of Change and transton for \/erizon The Board of DreCtors named Lowe

MCAdam one of the archtects of our ndustrydeadng wre ess franchse for the ast 10 years

presdent and chef operatng offcer for the corporaton wAh the expectaton that he become

chef executve offcer when retre the second haf of 2011 The Board aso named new chef

fnanca offcer Fran Shammo foowng the retrement of John Kan after years of

dstngushed servce Fran one of our most ta ented and experenced executves havng hed

both operatng and fnance jobs and worked major segments of the busness Havng two

executves of unusua depth and experence for these key postons demonstrates the

extraordnary bench we have at Verzon and assures shareowners of smooth eadershp transton

We are ndebted to the members of our Board of Drectors for ther wse stewardshp and

strategc gudance And as aways wed aso ke to thank our empoyees for another great year of

sers our ustomes and or communtes thousands of dai actons they embody our

performance based cu ture and the commtment to ntegrty that underes everythng we do

Thanks to them Verzon contnues to be known as company that stands for somethng arger

than Asef our ong st of accoades Fortunes Most Admred Teecommuncatlons Company

200 NewsweekG oba Green 100the Dow Jones Sustanabty North Amercan ndex and

Diversity Inc.s op 50 to name few speaks to ther passon for turnng our vaues nto acton

We ove what we do and as we transform Verzon for the hgh tech future ahead we rey on the

steadfast dedcation of our peope to budng busness as good as the networks runs on

Whatever the ecor omc cha enges of the ast few years we have aways had confdence

our vson of the future confdence rooted our absoute be cf the vaue of wLat we do

Weve shown that ts possbe to change the growth trajectory of our company by nvestng

technoogy sk and nnovatve capacty the process we are hepng create va ue across the

economy openng new markets redefnng productvty and jump startng new ndustres And

creatng busness vaue we are creatng soca vaue as we by usng our techr oogy to hep

address the words most pressng probems from educaton to energy to heath care

nvestment rnovaton and sound fnanca management have paved the road to the future

for Verzon and can do the same for Amerca Were excted about the possbtes ahead and proud

of the contrbutons we have made toward puttng our country on the path to sustaned growth

compettveness and prosperty the years ahead

van Se denberg

Charman and Chef Executre Officer
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The ThunderBolt by l-ITC is Verizons first 4G LIE smartphone Verizon launched the fastest most

advanced 4G network in the U.S creating new growth platform for wireless data services
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product rc udng our suc essfu Dro

neuc of ma tphones We ye so added

App popu Dhorc rd Dad to

cprefers.ve wre ess portfo

As resu of our award wjnning servce

oroducts ard networks we have the hghest

ty mont oya customer base se

v/re ass noustry To continue proOding the

nest expehence to our customers Vehzor

ruestng the next phase oLwre es

br adoard growth vv th tOe aur cf of4G

Lor Terr Evo utior techno ogy TI ne

erca pruv he customers with faster 44

aehence arc se create new data

arve grossth cr4 es

We aurched our 44 LIE network ast

year 38 mar ets home to one third

v/a Amehcar and made these vce

ab more tt ar 60 major airports We

doub our covcrage 20 to reach 200

poop ard ve banket We U.S by

remuuWru

ezor 44 JE network amaica

cPa the wa our cust rr ers se woW and

pay Our 44 JE servjce 10 tmes fa ter than

vv speed that approacn red

oaoband se aces But ts ao Just about

co ng shnp faster Our 44 TE network

ovv tome to exper er bandwdth

angry v/f neda app cator that

co dnt be hand ed effic ently mobile

env ronment before

tie iem sour of 44 side wl be

ma or fa tar wire ess communcation But

wont be ted to down oadirg movies and

other contert as we think of video today For

example LIE will enab rca tv/c two way

deo streaming wth virtua ly no de ay

owUg interactive conferench wth

conversations tf at are more natural LTE wil

so offer revs ways to de iver ve video feeds

from on ocation news reporters mob

webcams ano remote surveiFlance cameras In

addtion LIE wSl make wire ess HD vdeo

possble owing first responders and remote

medica providers to send and receve

hgh qua ty v/ages qutck and effcently

In 2011Verzor Iro outa

comprehensive suite of consumer and

busness orented smartphones tablets am

devices for our 44 LTE network from severa

major manufacturers Well so see LIE cLips

bui into wide range of products such as

consumer electror ic devices home

app ances and vchicles For examp GM

OnStar service vU use Verzons 4G LIE

network in vehc es wth advanced cameras

sensors navigation and monitorirg too to

further enhance the dri\ing experience

There arent many provders who can

conrect customers at home at work and

eserywhere brwen wherever they are

the world At Verizon we desrgned our

Ugh networks to be the hub of the wheel

that will keep our customers connected to

app cations nformation and each other

at times

In 2010 Verizon and Apple teamed up to offer the iPad5 giving users new way to browse the

Internet enjoy photos watch HD videos listen to music play games read ebooks and much more
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Verizons all-fiber FiOS network is the ideal platform for bandwidth-intensive applications such as

two-way high-definition video chats in the comfort of your living room

HOME ENTERTAINMENT

has evolved from analog

to high defnition and

now 3-D Verizon has

created highcapacity

broadband etwork that

can stay ahead of new techno ogy Fve years

ago vdeo accounted for just 10 percent of

the traffc on Oe nterret Now its more thar

ha and cou go as high as 90 percent in

the near future Connected homes have

sparked creatve revoluton in digta media

fue ed tremendous growth game

conso es HDTVs DVRs and homenetworking

equipment Going forward consumers wil

experence nnovations Ike videoconfer

encng ho ographc games virtual travel and

much more

The optimal platform for hard ing this

nd of bandwidth demand is fber and

Verizons 100 percent fiber-optic FiOS network

nvestment positions us to be premier

provider in this market Weve buSt the largest

and fastest fber-to-the home network in the

U.S capable of hand ng high volumes of

streaming video and ondemand content

Fiber connectivity giant leap forward

from other technologies moving ondemand

viewing beyond the home and taking

sporting events to new evel Weve taken

the lead on delvering the hghest qua ty

programming ast year we aired the first

broadcasts of co lege footbal NFL and major

eague baseball games and we offer

growing catalogue of ovies on demand

In fact we recently upped the ante for

home broadband by tripling our top speed to

150 mega bits per second setting new

benchmark for highspeed nternet On the

average broadband cor nection today

iul ength HD movie takes most four and

half hours to dowr load Wth 150 rr egabit

servce that time is reduced to just four and

ha minutes Wth practica no limt to the

speeds fber can delive we believe that

connected home will dramatical change the

way we commun cate

Setting up connected home begins

with superior home network Verizons P05

service lets users stream content from ther

PCs to their FiGS-connected TVs ncluding

dgital photos music files Internet radio

stations home movies and Internet vdeos



VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC 2010 ANNUAL REPORT

But the home etwork is on the begnning

Wtf the nte gence and speed engireered

rto our fber-ootic network along with the

power of our 4G LIE network Verizon

coot nue to transform the broadband

experVnce and de ver who new suite of

novat ye ser\ ces for the home

We see the her enab ed home as the

uo Mr manag ng al aspects of customers

digta fe Whats orngng ths long-predicted

Mn to the increasing number of

conrected devMes the home combined

wth hgh speed connections and food of

web-based content that needs to be

manageo Ano woen you ayer on soVal

trends ke energy conservation telework ard

environmental concerns we see tremendous

opportunity Mr tru effiMent and ntegrated

con ected-hone solutions

For examp Ve izon aunch ng

an novative service for peop who want an

affordable ayto anage the security and

energy corsumpt on of their home wherever

they may be Verzons Home Monitorng

Contro serv cc provide an easy to use

como nahor of devices and online services

accessed by computer tcblet ce phone

or smartphone Customers wi be able to

adjust househo lights thermostats and

app ances using an application on FiOS IV

use ther smartphone to watch streaming live

Vdeo from their networked survel lance

cameras and even unlock heir front door

from their office computer to let their children

in after scf oo

Additior al connected home solutions

wi be developed that take advantage of

Verizons high bandwidth Eber and 4G LIE

networks Rca -time HD video calls on your

wide-screen IV will feel so natura that youll

rorget youre not all the same room

Monitoring patents in the Comfort of their

homes wi dramatica ly improve outpatient

health care and recovery whie freeing up

hospital resources For rura homes high-

speed nternet access and video programmng

wil be possible through agreements with

ocal carriers to deliver Verizons 4G LIE

wireless broadband service through the LIE

Rural America program

Ihe ntelligence buSt nto Verizons

advanced her and 4G LIE networks wil

enab users to seamlessly co nect their

dgtal devices de ivering ways on

always-connected capabilites to manage all

aspects of their lives

It doesnt take huge leap of imagina

tior to go from smart homes to smart energy

grds smart factores smart transportation

systems and smart hea th care Ihis Internet

of thingswll be powered byVerzons

hgh IQ networks and the new universe of

applications they make possible

The intelligence built into Verizons FiOS network enables new home management services

like remote control of thermostats lights door locks and surveillance cameras
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HANKS TO iNNOVATION

the people we teiact

with every day could be

in the next town or on the

next conhnent They may

be workng ar office

but if ey ust as like may be parhcpabng in

vdeo conifrence at home or down oadng

presertat or at an inter atonal arport

How poop communcate has hanged

but what iasnt changed our need to

co aborate We st have to share deas bOld

re at onsf ps and foster sense of teamwork

essence we reed to communicate as fvve

are meetr face to face even though we

ma\ oe rran bme zones apart

ThanKs to Verzons goba capaolties

ard nternet oackbone faci tes we are

oba on loo000 rtru

customers around the wor Businesses

ncreasngly depend on transport ng terabyte

of vdeo and data rternatona to wide

array of peop and devces and Ver zons

Ogh capacty oba networks ow us to

eet ths rapdly ncreasing demand

Verzons nternet backbone reaches ose

to 160 countries on sx cort nents and has

beer named byTe eGeography as the rrost

connected nternet backbone network for

of the last years Our high-speed undersea

cables nk the world majcr markets and we

were the first company to de Ocr commercia

ong hau servce at 100 ggab ts per second

Weve er danced our capabi ities

professiona and strategc servces through ac

quisitions like Cybertrust whOh made Verizon

toii ccuriy serv ocr to arge ou ess ann

government cu tomcis worlowide Earlier is

year we ar nounced defir irve agreer ent

to acqu re Terremark obal prov der of

managed nfrastructure and oud serv ces

Thls transact on will he acce erato Verzons

everythng as service cloud strategy

The cloud rrade up of uge

gtal storehouses contanng meda

communications per onal data and

netvvork irte gence bas ca ly anytf ing

that can be digitzd and nade avalab

to users herever they are Verzon

obal networks and data certers give us

the necessary nfrastructure to be wajor

source of nnovatve cloud serv ces We

ave the network nte gence and security

built into our systems to make the vison

or reab globa access realty The

Verizons cloud strategy delivers highly secure on-demand solutions to business and government

customers anywhere anytime over our advanced global lP network

Ta or provoe of communcatons services on the leading provider of managed Oforma



oustry st the ear stages or this

revo ubon our coud services WI be

dra ratc shft how content and services

are de vered to our connected wor

Vehzon wel 05 toned rode iver

range communications solutions

ored to key ndustr es Our network

aoab hies are bacKed by our ieaong man

aged and ofessiona servces In aodition

ve hase creat opportunhy to extend our

ooa rean ar sca through our partner

Op Wth Vodaone especal in the area

of oba -rob ty We are worOng to afgn

our techno ogy road 1aps gain erfciencies

through ont orocurement and unfy our

account teams to better serve enterprise ano

mu tnatoral co poratons Wth the ta ent

resources of our two companies there

are tremendous opportuntes to de iver

supWor se Oces for obal customers

exoand nto hgh growth vertca markets

oe ver greater value ror shareowne

Ths ooal oresence oositions us to be

eader the next great era of computng

wOch everyth ng media communcations

persona data network ntei gence securit

protoco and more WI be stored the

oud and delvered global

Whn our data centers oba

backbone and servce portfolio we are well

05 oned to capta ze on tnis fast growing

narket by de Ocring any content to any

devce ivshere with all the network quality

and reliabIity our customers have come to

associate with the Verizon brand

Looking ahead Veri on working on our

on and with partners to take advantage of

the opportunt es our networks are helping

create Were work ng on mobile commerce

ont venture that will let users pay for items

usng their ccl phones Were partnering with

utility compan es to create snart grds wth

hospita to create smarter hea th care

system and vvith educators to use technology

to mprove performance science

technology and engneering

We believe that ths new era of

connectiv ty is global phenomenon with

Ver zon at the epicenter creating growth

and opportunty on massve sca

VERIZON COMMUNiCATIONS iNc 2010 ANNUAL REPORT

Verizon is one of the worlds leading providers of global communication and collaboration

solutions like Cisco TelePresence high-definition video conferencing service

Making Difference

Promoting

Sustainability

You probably dont think ofVerizon as an energy company But when you think about how our

high-1Q networks help dive energy efficiency youll realize were at the heart of the clean

economy

Verizon is focused on bringing environmentally sustainable communications to the

marketplace and we believe the opportunities for innovation are endless From downloading

books and movies on smartphones to remotely controlling energy consumption in homes

intelligent broadband networks devices and applications have the potential ro make our

planet greener

Our goal is to make sustainability an integrated part of how our employees do their jobs

every day We strive to ooerate our business responsibly by minimizing the impact of our

operations on the environment For example were rolling out eco-friendly wireless devices

and FiOS set top boxes promoting paperless billing for our customers and deploying

alternative uel vehicles wthin Verizons fleet
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Connected Society

Kristin Favale uses an interactive smart board to teach an online poetry lesson from the Verizon

Foundations Thinkfinity.org website at the John Kennedy Magnet School in Port Chester N.Y

VERIZON we use our

technology financial

resources employees and

partnerships to help solve

critical social issues Our

_______________ approach is motivated by

our deep commitment to

doing business in way that contributes to

the prosperity of our shareowners our

employees and the communities we serve

Since 2005 the Verizon Foundation has

awarded more than $41 million to nonprofit

organizations with the majority of the funds

going to organizations that support

education domestic violence prevention and

ontine safety

For example the Verizon Foundations

leadng education technology initiative is

Thinkfinity.org an award-wnning K-i

website that offers free lesson plans videos

and interactive learning materials In 2010

more than million teachers students and

parents visited Thinkfinity.org making it the

third-most-visited site among major

educational websites

We enhanced our Thinkfinity.org search

engine and created thousands of new content

resources including more than 1000 new

educational videos We also launched the

Thinkfinity Community social networking

site where teachers can share learn and

discuss the latest tools that improve student

achevement In all Verizon trained more than

42000 teachers on the benefits of using

Thinkfinity.org the classroom in 2010

bringing our training total to nearly 100000

teachers across the U.S

The Verizon Foundation has also invested

its capital human resources and technol

ogy toward preventing domestic violence

Domestic violence affects people of all

backgrounds including one in four women

and over million children The Verizon

Foundation works to increase awareness of

this pervasive crime lending its resources and

technology to help victims and their families

The Verizon-funded documentary Telling

Amys Story recounts the murder of young

Pennsylvania mother by her abusive husband

This gripping film about Amy McGee Verizon

employee aired on nearly 300 P85 stations

in 2010 and will continue in 2011

While domestic violence affects mil

lions sometimes single call can make the

difference Verizons HopeLine program

refurbishes used phones and gives them to

those who might not otherwise have way

to call for help Since 2001 Verizon HopeLine

has collected more than 7.6 million phones

awarded more than $10 million in grants

to shelters and prevention programs and

donated nearly 100000 cell phones and

more than 300 million free minutes of airtime

to victims survivors and organizations

In another area of corporate

responsibility Verizon employees volunteered

more than 730000 hours in 2010 to support

nonprofit organizations Through Verizon

Volunteers one of the largest employee

volunteer programs in the U.S our employees

and retirees donated nearly million

hours of community service since 2000

For more information on Verizons

commitment to corporate responsibility visit

verizon.com/responsibiUty



VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Selected Financial Data As Adjusted

dollars in millions except per
share amounts

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Results of Operations

Operating revenues 106565 107808 97354 93469 88182

Operating income 14645 15978 2612 17816 17137

Income loss before discontinued operations extraordinary item

and cumulative effect of accounting change attributable

toVerizon 2549 4894 2193 7201 7763

Per common share basic .90 1.72 .77 2.48 2.67

Per common share diluted .90 1.72 .77 2.48 2.64

Net income loss attributable to Verizon 2549 4894 2193 7212 8480

Per common share basic .90 1.72 .77 2.49 2.91

Per common share diluted .90 1.72 .77 2.49 2.89

Cash dividends declared per common share 1.925 1.870 1.780 1.670 1.620

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 7668 6707 6155 5053 4038

Financial Position

Total assets $220005 226907 202185 186942 189072

Debt maturing within one year 7542 7205 4993 2954 7715

Long-term debt 45252 55051 46959 28203 28646

Employee benefit obligations 28164 32622 32512 29960 30779

Noncontrolling interest 48343 42761 37199 32266 28310

Equity attributable to Verizon 38569 41382 41592 50580 48830

Significant events affecting our historical earnings trends in 2008 through 2010 are described in Managements Discussion and
Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results ofOperations

2007 data includes sales of business severance pension and benefit charges merger integration costs and other items

2006 data includes sales of business severance pension and benefit charges merger integration costs as well as relocation charges and other items

During 2010 we retrospectively changed our method of accounting for benefit plans as described in Note ito the consolidated financial statements As result all
prior periods have

been adjusted

Stock Performance Graph

Comparison of Five-YearTotal Return Among Verizon SP 500 Telecommunications Services Index and SP 500 Stock Index

Verizon SP 500 Telecom Services SP 500

$180

At December 31

Data Points in Dollars 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Verizon 100.0 134.6 164.3 134.6 139.8 172.1

SPTelecom Services 100.0 136.7 152.9 106.3 115.8 137.8

SP 500 100.0 115.8 122.1 77.0 97.3 112.0

The graph compares the cumulative total returns of verizon the SP 500 Telecommunications Services Index and the SP 500 Stock Index over five-year period adjusted for the spin-off of

our local exchange business and related landline activities in predominantly rural areas in 14 states completed in 2010 and in Maine New Hampshire and vermont completed in 2008 and our

domestic
yellow pages directories business completed in 2006 It assumes $100 was invested on December 31 2005 with dividends reinvested

$160

$140

$120

$100

$80

$60

$40

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
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VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Managements Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations As Adjusted

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AS ADJUSTED

During the fourth quarter of2O 10 Verizon retrospectively changed its method

of accounting for benefit plans as described in Note to the consolidated

financial statements As result all prior periods have been adjusted As part

of this change to our method of accounting the service cost and the amor

tiation of prior service costs which are representative of the benefits earned

by active employees during the period will continue to be allocated to the

segment in which the employee is employed while interest cost and expected

return on assets will now be recorded at the Corporate level The recognition

of actuarial gains and losses will also be recorded at the Corporate level

In addition in order to comply with regulatory conditions related to the acqui

sition of AlItel in January 2009 Verizon Wireless divested certain overlapping

properties during the first half of 2010 On July 2010 certain of Verizons

local exchange business and related landline activities were spun off During

the second quarter of 2010 we recorded non-cash adjustment primarily to

adjust wireless data revenues

Accordingly Domestic Wireless and Wireline results from these operations as

well as the deferred revenue adjustment have been reclassified to Corporate

and Other to reflect comparable segment operating results consistent with

the information regularly reviewed by our chief operating decision maker

We have adjusted prior-period consolidated and segment information where

applicable to conform to current year presentation

OVERVIEW

Verizon Communications Inc Verizon or the Company is one of the

worlds leading providers of communications services Our domestic

wireless business operating as Verizon Wireless provides wireless voice

and data products and services across the United States using one of

the most extensive and reliable wireless networks Our wireline business

provides communications products and services including voice broad

band data and video services network access long distance and other

communications products and services and also owns and operates one

of the most expansive end-to-end global Internet Protocol IP networks

We have highly diverse workforce of approximately 194400 employees

as of December 31 2010

In the sections that follow we provide information about the important

aspects of our operations and investments both at the consolidated and

segment levels and discuss our results of operations financial position

and sources and uses of cash In addition we highlight key trends and

uncertainties to the extent practicable We also monitor several key eco

nomic indicators as well as the state of the economy in general primarily

in the United States where the majority of our operations are located for

purposes of evaluating our operating results and assessing the potential

impacts of these factors on our businesses While most key economic

indicators including gross domestic product affect our operations to

some degree we historically have noted higher correlations to non-farm

employment personal consumption expenditures and capital spending

as well as more general economic indicators such as inflationary or reces

sionary trends and housing starts

During 2010 we faced the challenges posed by global economic

downturn and continued to increase revenues in our growth businesses

increase free cash flow and make strategic investments in wireless broad

band global connectivity and video At the same time we took significant

actions to improve our cost structure in part by reaching agreements

with certain unions on temporary enhancements and addressing future

profitability as described below

During the second quarter of 2010 as condition of the regula

tory approvals by the Department of Justice DOJ and the Federal

Communications Commission FCC to complete the acquisition of Ailtel

Corporation Alitel in January 2009 Verizon Wireless divested overlap

ping properties in 105 operating markets in 24 states Alitel Divestiture

Markets The Verizon Wireless customer base was reduced by approxi

mately 2.1 million customers after certain adjustments In July 2010 the

Company spun-off to its stockholders subsidiary of Verizon Spinco

which held defined assets and liabilities of the local exchange business

and related landline activities ofVerizon in predominantly rural areas in 14

states Immediately following the spin-off Spinco merged with Frontier

Communications Corporation Frontier pursuantto definitive agreement

with Frontier This transaction further focused Verizons asset base around

its fastest growing businesses wireless FiOS and other broadband devel

opment and global IP networks See Acquisitions and Divestitures

Our results of operations financial position and sources and uses of cash

in the current and future periods reflect our focus on the following stra

tegic imperatives

Revenue Growth To generate revenue growth we are devoting our

resources to higher growth markets such as the wireless voice and data

markets the broadband and video markets and the provision of strategic

services to business markets rather than to the traditional wireline voice

market During 2010 consolidated revenue decreased 1.2% compared to

2009 primarily due to the sale of divested operations as well as lower rev

enue in the Wireline segment resulting from switched access line losses

and decreased minutes of use MOUs partially offset by higher revenues

in our growth markets We continue to develop and market innovative

product bundles to include local long distance wireless broadband data

and video services for consumer business and government customers

We anticipate that these efforts will help counter the effects of competi
tion and technology substitution that have resulted in access line losses

and enable us to grow consolidated revenues

Market Share Gains In our wireless business our goal is to continue to

be the market leader in providing wireless voice and data communica

tion services in the United States As the demand for wireless data services

grows we continue to increase our data revenues by expanding our pen
etration of data services as result of increased sales of smartphone and

other data-capable devices In 2010 we launched our fourth-generation

4G Long-Term Evolution technology LTE network in 38 major metro

politan areas and more than 60 commercial airports in the United States

We expect to deploy 4G LTE in an additional 140 markets by the end of

2011 and in virtually our entire current 3G network footprint by the end

of 2013 In our wireline business our goal is to become the leading pro
vider of communications products and services in each of the markets

in which we operate We are focused on providing the highest network

reliability and innovative products and services During 2010 we invested

$16.5 billion in capital expenditures

In Domestic Wireless

as of December 31 2010 compared to 2009 total customers increased

5.6% to 94.1 million and

during 2010 compared to 2009 total data average revenue per cus

tomer per month ARPU increased by 17.3% to $17.73

During 2010 in Wireline

we added 232000 net wireline broadband connections including

796000 net new FiOS Internet subscribers for total of 8.4 million

connections including 4.1 million FiOS Internet subscribers

we added 722000 net new FiGS TV subscribers for total of 3.5 million

FiGS TV subscribers and

total broadband and video revenues were approximately $6.8 billion



Managements Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations As Adjusted continued

As of December31 2010 we passed 15.6 million premises with our high-

capacity fiber optics network operated under the FiOS service mark
With FiOS we have created the opportunity to increase revenue per cus
tomer as well as improve Wireline

profitability as the traditional fixed-line

telephone business continues to decline due to customer migration to

wireless cable and other newer technologies

We are also focused on gaining market share in our enterprise busi

ness through the deployment of strategic enterprise service offerings

including expansion of our Voice over Internet Protocol VoIP and inter

national Ethernet capabilities the introduction of video and web-based

conferencing capabilities and enhancements to our virtual private net
work portfolio During 2010 revenues from strategic enterprise services

grew 6.3% compared to 2009 and represent more than 42% of total

Global Enterprise revenues

Profitability Improvement Our goal is to increase operating income

and margins Strong wireless data and FiOS revenue growth continue

to positively impact operating results In addition while revenues in the
business market continue to be affected by macro-economic pressures
we are seeing some signs of stability If there is sustained economic

recovery it should positively impact our revenue and profitability in

future quarters However we remain focused on cost controls with the

objective of driving efficiencies to offset business volume declines

Operational Efficiency While focusing resources on revenue growth
and market share gains we are continually challenging our manage
ment team to lower expenses particularly through technology-assisted

productivity improvements including self-service initiatives These
and other efforts such as real estate consolidation call center routing

improvements centralized shared services organization and informa
tion technology and marketing efforts have led to changes in our cost

structure with goal of maintaining and improving operating income

margins Through our deployment of the FiOS network we expect to

realize savings annually in our ongoing operating expenses as result of

efficiencies gained from fiber network facilities

Customer Service Our goal is to be the leading company in customer
service in every market we serve We view superior product offerings and
customer service experiences as competitive differentiator and cata

lyst to growing revenues and gaining market share We are committed

to providing high-quality customer service and continually monitor cus
tomer satisfaction in all facets of our business Verizon Wireless ranked

highest among wireless providers in small to mid-sized business cus
tomer satisfaction in the iD Power and Associates 2010 U.S Business

Wireless Satisfaction Study released in June During 2010 iD Power and

Associates also ranked FiOS TV service with the Highest in Residential

Television Service Satisfaction in the East Region in the J.D Power and

Associates 2010 Residential Television Service Satisfaction Study

Performance and Values-Based Culture We embrace performance
and values-based culture that demonstrates our commitment to integ
rity respect performance excellence accountability and putting our
customers first Our individual and team objectives are tied to Verizons

strategic imperatives Key objectives of our compensation programs are

pay-for-performance and the alignment of executives and stockholders

long-term interests We also employ highly diverse workforce as respect
for diversity is an integral part ofVerizons culture and critical element of

our competitive success

Trends

We expect that competition will continue to intensify with traditional

non-traditional and emerging service providers seeking increased market

share We believe that our networks differentiate us from our competi
tors enabling us to provide enhanced communications experiences to

our customers We believe our focus on the fundamentals of running
good business including operating excellence and financial discipline

gives us the ability to plan and manage through changing economic
conditions We will continue to invest for growth which we believe is the

key to creating value for our shareowners

Customer and Operating Trends

in our Domestic Wireless segment we expect to continue to attract and

maintain the loyalty of high-quality retail postpaid customers capital

izing on customer demand for data services and bringing our customers
new ways of using wireless services in their daily lives We expect that

future customer growth will accelerate as result of the introduction of

new smartphones including the iPhone internet devices such as tab
lets and our suite of 4G LTE devices We believe these devices will attract

and retain higher value customers contribute to continued increases in

the penetration of data services and keep our device line-up competi
tive versus other wireless carriers We expect future growth opportunities

will be dependent on expanding the penetration of our data services

offering innovative wireless devices for both consumer and business

customers and increasing the number of ways that our customers can

connect with our network and services

In recent years we have experienced continuing access line losses in our
Wireline segment as customers have disconnected both primary and

secondary lines and switched to alternative technologies such as wire

less VoIP and cable for voice and data services We expect to continue
to experience access line losses as customers continue to switch to alter

nate technologies

Despite this challenging environment we expect that key aspects of our
wireline business will continue to grow by providing superior network

reliability as we continue to offer innovative product bundles that include

high-speed Internet access digital television and local and long distance

voice services offering more robust IP products and services as well as

accelerating our cloud computing strategy We will continue to focus on

cost efficiencies to attempt to offset adverse impacts from unfavorable

economic conditions and secular changes

Operating Revenue

We expect to experience service revenue growth in our Domestic

Wireless segment primarily as result of the growth of our customer
base as well as continued data revenue growth driven by increased pen
etration of data services resulting from increased sales of smartphone
and other data-capable devices We expect that the introduction of new
smartphones including the iPhone and our suite of 4G LTE devices
will contribute to an increase in our average revenue per user ARPU for

data However we expect to continue to experience sequential declines

in our overall average voice revenue per user due to the ongoing impact
of customers seeking to optimize the value of our voice plans We expect
that our future service revenue growth will be substantially derived from

data revenue growth as we continue to expand the penetration of our
wireless data offerings and increase our sales and usage of innovative

wireless smartphone and other data-capable devices

Although we have experienced declines in Domestic Wireless Equipment
and other revenue as result of reduction in the number of wireless

devices sold we expect that sales of newly introduced devices will

result in increased sales volume and an overall increase in revenues from
device sales
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Managements Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations As Adjusted continued

We expect broadband penetration to positively impact our Mass Markets

revenue and subscriber base but we expect to continue to experience

declining revenues in our Wireline segment primarily due to access line

losses as result of wireless substitution and current economic condi
tions We also expect to experience period to period declines in reported

revenue due to the transaction with Frontier described above

W.e expect continued expansion of strategic services revenue as we derive

additional revenues from cloud security and other solutions-based ser
vices and customers continue to migrate their services to Private and
other strategic networking services

Operating Costs and Expenses

We anticipate that our overall wireless operating costs will increase as

result of the expected increase in the volume of smartphone sales which
will result in higher equipment costs We expect that the impact of these
increased operating costs will cause decline in our near-term Verizon

Wireless Segment earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amor
tization EBITDA margins However we expect to continue to achieve
other operating cost efficiencies through number of cost savings initia

tives to help control our overall operating costs In addition labor costs

are expected to decrease in our Wireline segment as result of head-

count reductions which will be
partially

offset by increased content costs

for video in our growth businesses

Capital Expenditures

Our 2011 capital program includes capital to fund advanced networks
and services including FiOS and LYE the continued expansion of our
core networks including our IP and wireless Evolution-Data Optimized

networks maintenance and support for our legacy voice net
works and other expenditures Additionally during 2010 we substantially

completed the initial FiGS deployment program The amount and the

timing of the Companys capital expenditures within these broad cat

egories can vary significantly as result of variety of factors outside
our control including for example material weather events We are not

subject to any agreement that would constrain our ability to control our

capital expenditures by requiring material capital expenditures on des
ignated schedule or upon the occurrence of designated events Capital

expenditures declined in 2010 compared to 2009 We believe that we
have sufficient discretion over the amount and timing of our capital

expenditures on company-wide basis that we can reasonably expect
2011 capital expenditures to be flat or lower than 2010

Cash Flow from Operations

We create value for our shareowners by investing the cash flows gener
ated by our business in opportunities and transactions that support our

strategic imperatives thereby increasing customer satisfaction and usage
of our products and services In addition we have used our cash flows to

maintain and grow our dividend payout to shareowners Verizons Board
of Directors increased the Companys quarterly dividend by 2.6% during
2010 which was the fourth consecutive year in which we have raised our
dividend Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended
December 31 2010 of $33.4 billion increased by $2.0 billion from $31.4

billion for the year ended December 31 2009

Other

We do not currently expect that legislative efforts relating to climate

control will have material adverse impact on our consolidated financial

results or financial condition We believe there may be opportunities for

companies to increase their use of communications services including

those we provide in order to minimize the environmental impact of

their businesses

CONSOUDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In this section we discuss our overall results of operations and highlight

items of non-operational nature that are not included in our seg
ment results We have two reportable segments which we operate and

manage as strategic business units and organize by products and ser
vices Our segments are Domestic Wireless and Wireline In theSegment
Results of Operations section we review the performance of our two
reportable segments

Corporate eliminations and other includes unallocated corporate

expenses intersegment eliminations recorded in consolidation the
results of other businesses such as our investments in unconsolidated

businesses pension and other employee benefit related costs lease

financing and divested operations and other adjustments and gains and
losses that are not allocated in assessing segment performance due to

their non-operational nature Although such transactions are excluded
from the business segment results they are included in reported consoli
dated earnings Gains and losses that are not individually significant are

included in all segment results as these items are included in the chief

operating decision makers assessment of segment performance We
believe that this presentation assists users of our financial statements in

better understanding our results of operations and trends from period

to period

In the following discussion all prior period results have been adjusted
to reflect the change in accounting for benefit plans see Note to the

consolidated financial statements Reclassifications have also been

made primarily to reflect comparable operating results for the spin-off of

our local exchange business and related landline activities in predomi
nantly rural areas in 14 states completed in 2010 and in Maine New
Hampshire and Vermont completed in 2008 as well as sale of the Ailtel

Divestiture Markets



Managements Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations As Adjusted continued

Consolidated Revenues

2010 Compared to 2009

The decrease in Consolidated revenues during 2010 compared to 2009

was primarily due to the sale of divested operations and declines in rev

enues at our Wireline segment resulting from switched access line losses

and decreased MOUs in traditional voice products partially offset by

higher revenues in our growth markets

Corporate eliminations and other during 2010 included one-time non-

cash adjustment of $0.2 billion primarily to reduce wireless data revenues

This adjustment was recorded to properly defer previously recognized

wireless data revenues that will be earned and recognized in future

periods As the amounts involved were not material to the consolidated

financial statements in the current or any previous reporting period the

adjustment was recorded during the second quarter of 2010 see Other

Items In addition the results of operations related to the divestitures

included in Corporate eliminations and other are as follows

dollars in millions

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Impact of Divested Operations

Operating revenues

Cost of services and sales

Selling general and administrative expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

2407 5297 4084

574 1288 1076

665 1356 895

413 884 916

The increase in Domestic Wireless revenues during 2010 compared to

2009 was primarily due to growth in service revenue Service revenue

increased during 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to an increase in

total customers since January 12010 as well as continued growth in our

data ARPU partially offset by decline in voice ARPU

Total wireless data revenue was $19.6 billion and accounted for 35.1%

of service revenue during 2010 compared to $15.6 billion and 29.9%

during 2009 Total data revenue continues to increase as result of the

increased penetration of data offerings in particular for e-mail and web

services resulting in part from increased sales of smartphone and other

data-capable devices Voice revenue decreased as result of continued

declines in our voice ARPU partially
offset by an increase in the number

of customers

Equipment and other revenue decreased during 2010 compared to 2009

due to decrease in the number of equipment units sold which resulted

from decrease in customer gross additions

The decrease in Wirelines revenues during 2010 compared to 2009 was

primarily due to lower Global Wholesale and Other revenue partially

offset by an increase in Mass Markets revenue The decrease in Global

Wholesale revenues during 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily due to

decreased MOUs in traditional voice products increases invoice termina

tion pricing on certain international routes which negatively impacted

volume and continued rate compression due to competition in the

marketplace The decrease in Other revenue during 2010 compared to

2009 was primarily due to reduced business volumes including former

MCI mass market customer losses The increase in Mass Markets revenue

during 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily driven by the expansion of

consumer and business FIOS services Voice Internet and TV which are

typically sold in bundles partially offset by the decline of local exchange

revenues principally as result of decline in switched access lines

Global Enterprise revenues during 2010 compared to 2009 were essen

tially unchanged Higher customer premises equipment and strategic

networking revenues were offset by lower local services and traditional

circuit-based revenues

Idollars in millions

lncrease/Decrease

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008 2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

Domestic Wireless

Service revenue 55629 52046 42602 3583 6.9 9444 22.2

Equipment and other 7778 8279 6696 501 6.1 1583 23.6

Total 63407 60325 49298 3082 5.1 11027 22.4

Wi reline

Mass Markets 16256 16115 15831 141 0.9 284 1.8

Global Enterprise 15669 15667 16601 934 5.6

Global Wholesale 8393 9155 9832 762 8.3 677 6.9

Other 909 1514 2059 605 40.0 545 26.5

Total 41227 42451 44323 1224 2.9 1872 4.2

Corporate eliminations and other 1931 5032 3733 3101 61.6 1299 34.8

Consolidated Revenues 106565 107808 97354 1243 1.2 10454 10.7
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of Financial Condition and Results of Operations As Adjusted continued

2009 Compared to 2008

The increase in Consolidated revenues in 2009 compared to the similar

period in 2008 was primarily due to the inclusion of the operating results

of Alltel in our Wireless segment and higher revenues in our growth mar
kets These revenue increases were partially

offset by declines in revenues

at our Wireline segment due to switched access line losses and decreased

MOUs in traditional voice products

The increase in Domestic Wireless revenues in 2009 compared to the

similar period in 2008 was primarily due to the inclusion of the operating

results of AlItel and continued growth in service revenue Service revenue

in 2009 increased compared to the similar period in 2008 primarily due to

an increase in net new customers after conforming adjustments which

we acquired in connection with the acquisition of Alitel on January

2009 as well as an increase in total customers from sources other than

acquisitions Total data revenue was $15.6 billion and accounted for

29.9% of service revenue in 2009 compared to $10.6 billion and 24.9%

respectively during the similar period in 2008 because of increased use

of Mobile Broadband e-mail and messaging

Domestic Wireless equipment and other revenue increased during 2009

compared to the similar period in 2008 primarily due to an increase in

the number of units sold partially
offset by decrease in the average rev

enue per unit Other revenues increased primarily due to the inclusion of

the operating results of Ailtel and an increase in our cost recovery rate

The decrease in Wirelines revenues in 2009 compared to 2008 was pri

marily driven by declines in Global Enterprise Global Wholesale and

Other revenue partially offset by an increase in Mass Markets revenue

The decrease in Global Enterprise revenues in 2009 compared to the

similar period in 2008 was primarily due to lower long distance and

traditional circuit-based data revenues and lower customer premise

equipment combined with the negative effects of movements in foreign

exchange rates versus the U.S dollar This decrease was partially offset

by an increase in IF managed network solutions and security solutions

revenues The decrease in Global Wholesale revenues in 2009 compared

to the similar period in 2008 was primarily due to decreased MOUs in

traditional voice products and continued rate compression due to com
petition in the marketplace The decrease in revenues from other services

during 2009 compared to 2008 was mainly due to the discontinuation

of non-strategic product lines and reduced business volumes including

former MCI mass market customer losses The increase in Mass Markets

revenue in 2009 compared to the similar period in 2008 was primarily

driven by the expansion of FiOS services Voice Internet and TV partially

offset by decline in local exchange revenues principally due to switched

access line losses

Consolidated operating expenses increased during 2010 compared to

2009 primarily due to increased expenses at Domestic Wireless as well as

higher severance pension and benefit charges Consolidated operating

expenses in 2010 were favorably impacted by the sale of divested opera
tions and cost reduction initiatives at Wireline and Domestic Wireless

Consolidated operating expenses decreased during 2009 compared to

2008 primarily due to lower severance pension and benefit charges

partially offset by increased expenses at Wireless in part due to the acqui

sition of Alltel

Severance pension and benefit charges during 2010 2009 and 2008

included pension settlement losses and remeasurement gains losses of

$0.6 billion $1.4 billion and $15.0 billion respectively See Note ito the

consolidated financial statements regarding the change in accounting
for benefit plans

2010 Compared to 2009

Cost of Services and Sales

Cost of services and sales includes the following costs directly attribut

able to service or product salaries and wages benefits materials and

supplies contracted services network access and transport costs wire

less equipment costs customer provisioning costs computer systems

support costs to support our outsourcing contracts and technical facili

ties and contributions to the Universal Service Fund Aggregate customer

care costs which include billing and service provisioning are allocated

between Cost of services and sales and Selling general and administra

tive expense

Cost of services and sales decreased during 2010 compared to 2009 pri

marily due to the sale of the divested operations lower headcount and

productivity improvements at our Wireline and Domestic Wireless seg
ments partially offset by higher severance pension and benefit charges

recorded during 2010 and other non-operational charges noted in the

table below as well as higher customer premise equipment and content

costs In addition lower access costs at Wireline were primarily driven by

management actions to reduce exposure to unprofitable international

wholesale routes Our FiOS TV and Internet cost of acquisitior per addi-

tion also decreased in 2010 compared to 2009 Wireless network costs

also increased as result of an increase in local interconnection cost and

increases in roaming costs

Cost of services and sales

Selling general and administrative expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

Consolidated Operating Expenses

Consolidated Operating Expenses

dollars in millions

lncrease/Decrease
Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008 2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

44149

31366

16.405

91920

44579

30717

16534

91830

38615

41517

14610

94742

430 1.0% 5964 15.4

649 2.1 10800 26.0

129 0.8 1924 13.2

90 0.1 2912 3.1
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Selling General and Administrative Expense

Selling general and administrative expense includes salaries and wages
and benefits not directly attributable to service or product bad debt

charges taxes other than income taxes advertising and sales commis

sion costs customer billing call center and information technology costs

professional service fees and rent and utilities for administrative space

Selling general and administrative expense increased during 2010 com
pared to 2009 primarily due to higher severance pension and benefit

charges which primarily included pension and postretirement benefit

plan remeasurement loss in 2010 compared to remeasurement gain in

2009 as well as the charges in connection with an agreement reached with

certain unions on temporary enhancements seeOther Items In addi

tion the increase in Selling general and administrative expense reflected

higher sales commission expense at our Domestic Wireless segment in our

indirect channel as result of increases in both the average commission

per unit as the mix of units continues to shift toward data devices and

more customers activating data service and increased contract renewals

in connection with equipment upgrades Partially offsetting the increase

was the sale of the divested operations and the impact of cost reduc

tion initiatives in our Wireline segment Selling general and administrative

expense during 2010 was also impacted by lower access line spin-off and

merger integration related charges noted in the table below

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased during 2010 com
pared to 2009 The decrease was primarily due to the sale of the divested

operations partially offset by additions to the depreciable asset base

Depreciation and amortization expense during 2010 was also impacted

by lower non-operational charges noted in the table below

2009 Compared to 2008

Cast of Services and Sales

Consolidated cost of services and sales during 2009 increased compared

to 2008 primarily due to higher severance pension and benefits charges

recorded during 2009 and other non-operational charges noted in the

table below Also contributing to the increases were higher wireless

network costs including the effects of operating an expanded wire

less network as result of the acquisition of Ailtel and increased costs

of equipment Additionally we experienced increased costs associated

with our growth businesses including higher content and customer

acquisition costs Also contributing to the increase were an increase in

the numbers of both data and phone equipment units sold as well as an

increase in the average cost per equipment unit Partially offsetting these

increases were reduced roaming costs realized by moving more traffic

to our own network as result of the acquisition of Alltel and declines

due in part to lower headcount and productivity improvements at our

Wireline segment

Selling General and Administrative Expense

Consolidated selling general and administrative expense in 2009

decreased compared to 2008 primarily due to the pension and post-

retirement benefit plan remeasurement gain in 2009 compared to the

remeasurement loss in 2008 noted in the table below
Partially

offset

ting the decrease were other non-operational charges noted in the table

below as well as increased wireless salary and benefits as result of

larger employee base after the acquisition of Alitel and higher sales com
mission in our indirect channel in Domestic Wireless partially offset by

the impact of cost reduction initiatives in our Wireline segment

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense in 2009 increased compared

to 2008 mainly driven by depreciable property and equipment and

finite-lived intangible assets acquired from AlItel as well as growth in

depreciable plant from capital spending partially
offset by lower rates of

depreciation Depreciation and amortization expense in 2009 included

merger integration costs related to the Alltel acquisition

Non-operational Charges

Non-operational charges included in operating expenses were as follows

ldollars in miltons

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Merger Integration and Acquisition

Related Charges

Cost of services and sales

Selling general and administrative expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

Total

Access Line Spin-off Related Charges

Cost of services and sales

Selling general and administrative expense

Total

Severance Pension and Benefit Charges

Cost of services and sales

Selling general and administrative expense

Total

See Other ltemsfora description of non-operational items

42 38 16

365 415 87

407 453 103

1723 1443 65

1331 15537

3054 1440 5602

376 195 24

389 442 150

102 317

867 954 174
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Other Consolidated Results

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Businesses

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated businesses decreased 8.1 in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to lower earnings at Vodafone Omnitel NV
Vodafone Omnitel which were primarily driven by the devaluation of the Euro versus the U.S dollar

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated businesses decreased 2.5% in 2009 compared to 2008 primarily due to higher income tax benefits recorded
at.Vodafone Omnitel during 2008 and the devaluation of the Euro versus the U.S dollar Partially offsetting the decrease were higher earnings at

Vodafone Omnitel

2010 2009

92 75

Idotars in mitions

lncrease/Decrease

2009 vs 2008

nm not meaningful

Other income and expense net decreased during 2010 compared
to 2009 primarily due to fees incurred during the third quarter of 2010

related to the early extinguishment of debt see Consolidated Financial

Condition Partially offsetting the decrease was higher distributions

from investments and foreign exchange gains at our international wire-

line operations

Interest Expense

Other income and expense net decreased during 2009 compared to

2008 primarily driven by lower interest income in part due to lower

invested balances The investment in $4.8 billion of Alitel debt obligations

acquired in 2008 was eliminated in consolidation beginning in January

2009 subsequent to the close of the Ailtel transaction

Average debt outstanding

Effective interest rate

57278 64039 41064

6.1% 6.3% 6.2%

dollars in millions

lncrease/Decrease

2009 vs 2008

Total interest costs on debt balances decreased during 2010 compared
to 2009 primarily due to $6.8 billion decline in average debt see
Consolidated Financial Condition Interest costs during 2009 included

fees related to the bridge facility that was entered into and utilized to

complete the acquisition of Ailtel which contributed to the higher effec

tive interest rate

Total interest costs on debt balances increased during 2009 compared to

2008 primarily due to $23 billion increase in the
average debt levels.The

increase in average debt outstanding compared to 2008 was primarily

driven by borrowings to finance the acquisition of Ailtel The increase in

capitalized interest costs during 2009 primarily related to capitalization of

interest on wireless licenses under development for commercial service

see Consolidated Financial Condition

Other Income and Expense Net

Additional information relating to Other income and expense net is as follows

Years Ended December31

Interest income

Foreign exchange gains losses net

Other net

Total

2008 2010 vs 2009

43 16

54 91

362 17

46

59
283 37

22.7

nm

nm

40.7

287

46

49

192

79.3%

nm

nm

67.8

Years Ended December 31

Total interest costs on debt balances

Less capitalized interest costs

Total

2010 2009 2008 2010 vs 2009

3487 4029 2566 542 13.5% 1463 57.0

964 927 747 37 4.0 180 24.1

2523 3102 1819 579 18.7 1283 70.5
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Provision Benefit for Income Taxes

Provision benefit for income taxes

Effective income tax rate

nm not meaningful

2010 2009 2008

2467 1919 2319

19.4% 14.2% nm

The effective income tax rate is calculated by dividing the provision

for income taxes by income before the provision for income taxes Our

effective tax rate is significantly lower than the statutory federal income

tax rate for all years presented due to the inclusion of income attribut

able to Vodafone Group Plcs Vodafone noncontrolling interest in the

Verizon Wireless partnership within our Income before the provision for

income taxes

The effective income tax rate in 2010 increased to 19.4% from 14.2% in

2009 The increase was primarily driven by one-time non-cash income

tax charge of $1.0 billion The one-time non-cash income tax charge was

result of the enactment of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care

Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 both

of which became law in March 2010 collectively the Health Care Act
Under the Health Care Act beginning in 2013 Verizon and other com
panies that receive subsidy under Medicare Part to provide retiree

prescription drug coverage will no longer receive federal income tax

deduction for the expenses incurred in connection with providing the

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest

subsidized coverage to the extent of the subsidy received Because future

anticipated retiree prescription drug plan liabilities and related subsi

dies were already reflected in Verizons financial statements this change

required Verizon to reduce the value of the related tax benefits recog
nized in its financial statements in the period during which the Health

Care Act was enacted The increase was partially offset by higher earnings

attributable to the noncontrolling interest

During 2008 we recorded pension and postretirement benefit plan

remeasurement loss rendering the 2008 effective tax rate not mean
ingful Excluding the tax impact of this actuarial loss in 2008 the effective

income taç rate decreased in 2009 primarily driven by higher earnings

attributable to the noncontrolling interest

reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the effective

income tax rate for each period is included in Note 13 to the consoli

dated financial statements

Years Ended December31

Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest 7668 6707 6155

dollars in millions

lncrease/Decrease

2009 vs 2008

552 9.0%

The increase in Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest during

2010 compared to 2009 and 2009 compared to 2008 was due to higher

earnings in our Domestic Wireless segment which has 45% noncontrol

ling partnership interest attributable to Vodafone

dollars in millions

lncrease/Decrease

2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

548 28.6 4238 nm

2010 2009 2008 2010 vs 2009

961 14.3
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SEGMENT RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We have two reportable segments Domestic Wireless and Wireline which we operate and manage as strategic business units and organize by prod
ucts and services We measure and evaluate our reportable segments based on segment operating income The use of segment operating income is

consistent with the chief operating decision makers assessment of segment performance

Segment earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization Segment EBITDA which is presented below is non-GAAP measure and

does not purport to be an alternative to operating income as measure of operating performance Management believes that this measure is useful

to investors and other users of our financial information in evaluating operatng profitability on more variable cost basis as it excludes the depre
ciation and amortization expenses related primarily to capital expenditures and acquisitions that occurred in prior years as well as in evaluating

operating performance in relation to Verizons competitors Segment EBITDA calculated by adding back depreciation and amortization expense to

segment operating income

Verizon Wireless Segment EBITDA service margin also presented below is calculated by dividing Verizon Wireless Segment EBITDA byVerizon Wireless

service revenues Verizon Wireless Segment EBITDA service margin utilizes service revenues rather than total revenues Service revenues exclude

primarily equipment revenues in order to reflect the impact of providing servce to the wireless customer base on an ongoing basis Verizon Wireline

EBITDA margin is calculated by dividing Wireline EBITDA by total Wireline revenues

It is managements intent to provide non-GAAP financial information to enhance the understanding of Verizons GAAP financial information and

it should be considered by the reader in addition to but not instead of the financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP Each non
GAAP financial measure is presented along with the corresponding GAAP measure so as not to imply that more emphasis should be placed on the

non-GAAP measure The non-GAAP financial information presented may be determined or calculated differently by other companies You can find

additional information about our segments in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements

Domestic Wireless

Total customer net additions excluding

acquisitions
and divestitures 000

Retail customer net additions excluding

acquisitions and divestitures 000

817 14.4

2392 54.7

123 2.1

1383 24.0

Total churn rate

Retail postpaid churn rate

Our Domestic Wireless segment provides wireless voice and data services and equipment sales across the United States This segment primarily

represents the operations of the Verizon joint venture with Vodafone operating as Verizon Wireless We own 55% interest in the joint venture and

Vodafone owns the remaining 45% All financial results included in the tables below reflect the consolidated results ofVerizon Wireless excluding the

results of operations of the Ailtel Divestiture Markets through the date the divestitures were completed see Acquisitions and Divestitures

Operating Revenue and Selected Operating Statistics

dollars in millions except ARPU

Increase/Decrease
ears Ended December31 2010 2009 2008 2009 vs 2008

Service revenue

Equipment and other

Total Operating Revenue

Total customers 000
Retail customers 000

55629

7778

63.407

52046

8279

60325

2010 vs 2009

42602

6696

49298

94135

87535

3583

501

3082

89172

85445

6.9

6.1

5.1

72056

70021

4839

9444

1583

11027

22.2

23.6

22.4

4963 5.6

2090 2.4

1977

5656 5779

4369 5752

Service ARPU

Retail service ARPU

Total data ARPU

17116 23.8

15424 22.0

1.33 1.41 1.25

1.02 1.07 0.96

50.46

51.56

17.73

50.53

50.89

15.11

51.55

51.84

12.85

0.07

0.67

2.62

2010 Compared to 2009

The increase in Domestic Wirelesstotal operating revenue during 2010

compared to 2009 was primarily due to growth in service revenue

Service revenue

Service revenue increased during 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to

an increase in total customers since January 2010 as well as continued

growth in our data ARPU partially offset by decline in voice ARPU

0.1

1.3

17.3

1.02 2.0

0.95 1.8

2.26 17.6

The decline in retail customer net additions during 2010 compared to

2009 was due to decrease in retail customer gross additions as well

as an increase in churn for our retail prepaid base in part attributable

to marketplace shift in customer activations during the first half of

the year toward unlimited prepaid offerings of the type being sold by

number of resellers Retail non-wholesale customers are customers who

are directly served and managed by Verizon Wireless and who buy its

branded services However we expect to continue to experience retail
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customer growth based on the strength of our product offerings and

network service quality Our total churn rate during 2010 compared to

2009 improved as result of successful customer retention efforts Churn

is the rate at which customers disconnect individual lines of service

Total customer net additions decreased during 2010 compared to 2009

due to the decline in retail customer net additions described above par

tiahy offset by the cumulative increase during the year in customer net

additions from our reseller channel as result of the marketplace shift in

customer activations mentioned above

Customers from acquisitions and adjustments at December 31 2010

included approximately 106000 net customers after conforming adjust

ments that we acquired in transaction with ATT Customers from

acquisitions at December 31 2009 included approximately 11.4 million

total customer net additions after conforming adjustments and the

impact of required divestitures which resulted from our acquisition of

Alltel on January 2009

Total data revenue was $19.6 billion and accounted for 35.1% of service rev

enue during 2010 compared to $15.6 billion and 29.9% during 2009.Total

data revenue continues to increase as result of the increased penetra

tion of data offerings in particular for e-mail and web services resulting in

part from increased sales of smartphone and other data-capable devices

Voice revenue decreased as result of continued declines in our voice

ARPU as discussed below partially offset by an increase in the number

of customers We expect that total service revenue and data revenue will

continue to grow as we grow our customer base increase the penetra

tion of our data offerings and increase the proportion of our customer

base using smartphone and other data-capable devices

The decline in service ARPU during 2010 compared to 2009 was due to

continued reduction in voice revenue per customer and the impact of

changes in our customer mix as result of increased reseller customer

net additions partially offset by an increase in data ARPU Total voice

ARPU declined $2.69 or 7.6% due to the ongoing impact of customers

seeking to optimize the value of our voice minute bundles Total data

ARPU increased as result of continued growth and penetration of our

data offerings resulting in part from the above mentioned increase in

sales of our smartphone and other data-capable devices Retail service

ARPU the average revenue per user from retail customers increased

during 2010 due to increases in our penetration of data offerings which

more than offset declines in our voice revenues

Equipment and Other Revenue

Equipment and other revenue decreased during 2010 compared to 2009

due to decrease in the number of equipment units sold as result of

decrease in customer gross additions

2009 Compared to 2008

Domestic Wireless total operating revenue increased during 2009 com

pared to 2008 primarily due to the inclusion of the operating results of

AlItel as well as growth in our service revenue from sources other than

the acquisition of AlItel

Service revenue

Service revenue increased during 2009 compared to 2008 primarily due

to the inclusion of service revenue as result of the 11.4 million net new

customers after conforming adjustments and the impact of required

divestitures which we acquired in connection with the acquisition of

AlItel Since January 2009 service revenue also increased as result of

an increase in total customers from sources other than customer acquisi

tions as well as continued growth from data services

The decline in retail customer net additions during 2009 compared to

2008 was due to an increase in churn partially offset by an increase in

customer gross additions due to the expansion of our sales and distri

bution channels as result of the acquisition of AlItel The decrease in

total customer net additions for 2009 was due to the above mentioned

decline in retail customer net additions partially offset by an increase

in customer gross additions from our reseller channels primarily during

the fourth quarter of 2009 The increases in our total and retail postpaid

churn rates were primarily result of increased disconnections of Mobile

Broadband service and business share lines primarily attributable to eco

nomic conditions

Total data revenue during 2009 was $15.6 billion and accounted for

29.9% of service revenue compared to $10.6 billion and 24.9% during

2008 Total data revenue continues to increase as result of increased use

of Mobile Broadband e-mail and messaging

Service ARPU and retail service ARPU declined during 2009 compared to

2008 due to the inclusion of customers acquired in connection with the

acquisition of AlItel as well as continued reductions in voice ARPU par

tially offset by an increase in total data ARPU Total voice ARPU declined

$3.28 or 8.5% during 2009 compared to 2008 due to the on-going

impact of bundled plans and increases in the proportion of customers on

our Family Share plans as customers sought to optimize the value of our

offerings.Total data ARPU increased by $2.26 or 17.6% during 2009 com
pared to 2008 as result of the increased usage of our data services

Customer acquisitions during 2008 included approximately 650000 total

customer net additions after conforming adjustments acquired from

Rural Cellular Corporation Rural Cellular As result of an exchange with

ATT consummated on December 22 2008 Domestic Wireless trans

ferred net of approximately 122000 total customers

Equipment and Other Revenue

Equipment and other revenue increased during 2009 compared to 2008

primarilydueto an increase in the number of both data and phone equip

ment units sold partially
offset by decrease in the average revenue per

unit The increase in the number of equipment units sold was result of

both the increase in customer gross additions as well as an increase in

the number of units sold to existing customers upgrading their wireless

devices Other revenues increased primarily due to the inclusion of the

operating results ofAlItel and an increase in our cost recovery rate
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Operating Expenses

Cost of Services and Sales

Cost of services and sales decreased during 2010 compared to 2009
due to decrease in the cost of equipment sales partially offset by an
increase in cost of services Cost of equipment sales decreased by $0.6

billion
primarily due to both decrease in retail customer gross addi

tions and cost reduction initiatives partially
offset by an increase in the

average cost per unit Cost of services increased due to higher wireless

network costs driven by increases in local interconnection cost as result

of both higher capacity needs from increases in data usage as well as

costs incurred to transition to Ethernet facilities that will be used to sup
port the network In addition the increase in costs of services was

impacted by higher roaming costs as result of increased international

roaming volumes data roaming and roaming costs incurred in the Ailtel

Divestiture Markets partially offset by synergies from moving traffic to our
own network Also contributing to higher wireless network costs during
2010 compared to 2009 was an increase in operating lease expense
related to our network cell sites

Cost of services and sales increased during 2009 Compared to 2008

primarily due to higher wireless network costs including the effects of

operating an expanded wireless network as result of the acquisition of

Ailtel This increase included network usage for voice and data services

use of data services and applications such as e-mail and messaging pro
vided by third party vendors operating lease expense related to larger

number of cell sites as well as salary and benefits as result ofan increase

in network-related headcount These increases were partially offset by
decrease in roaming costs that was realized primarily by moving more
traffic to our own network as result of the acquisition of Alitel Cost
of equipment increased by $2.1 billion primarily due to the increase in

the number of both data and phone equipment units sold as well as an
increase in the average cost per equipment unit

Segment Operating Income and EBITDA

Segment operating income margin

Segment EBITDA service margin

dollars in millions

Increase/Decrease

2010 vs 2009
--

2009 vs 2008

103 0.5% 3688 23.6

773 4.5 3036 21.3

326 4.6 1625 30.1

996 2.3 8349 23.6

Selling General andAdrninistrative Expense

Selling general and administrative
expense increased during 2010

compared to 2009 primarily due to an increase in sales commission

expense in our indirect channel as well as increases in other general and

administrative expenses partially offset by decrease in advertising and

promotional costs Indirect sales commission expense increased $0.8

billion during 2010 compared to 2009 as result of increases in both

the average commission per unit as the mix of units continues to shift

toward data devices and more customers activate data service and in

contract renewals in connection with equipment upgrades Other gen
eral and administrative

expenses such as billing and data processing
charges non-income taxes and bad debt expense increased primarily as

result of the growth of our customer base Advertising and promotional
costs decreased $0.2 billion during 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due
to reductions in media spending

Selling general and administrative expense increased during 2009

compared to 2008 primarily due to $0.9 billion increase in salary and
benefits as result of larger employee base after the acquisition of

Alltel as well as an $0.8 billion increase in sales commission expense pri

marily in our indirect channel as result of increases in both equipment

upgrades leading to contract renewals and customer gross additions as

well as an increase in the
average commission per unit We also expe

rienced increases in other selling general and administrative expenses
primarily as result of supporting larger customer base as result of

our acquisition of Alitel

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense increased during 2010 compared
to 2009 primarily driven by growth in depreciable assets Depreciation
and amortization expense increased during 2009 compared to 2008 pri

marily driven by depreciable property and equipment and finite-lived

intangible assets acquired from Alftel including its customer lists as well

as growth in depreciable assets during 2009

dollars in millions

Increase/Decrease

_______ 2009 vs 2008

Years Ended December31

Merger integration and acquisition costs

Impact of divested operations

Deferred revenue adjustment

dollars in millions

2010 2009 2008

954

789

78
87

Years Ended December 31 2010

Cost of services and sales

Selling general and administrative expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

Total Operating Expenses

2009 2008

19245

18082

7356

44683

19348

17309

7030

43687

15660

14273

5405

35338

Years Ended December 31

Segment Operating Income

Add Depreciation and amortization expense

Segment EBITDA

2010 2009

18724 16638 13960

7356 7030 5405

26080 23668 9365

_____- 2010 vs 2009

29.5 27.6 28.3

46.9 45.5 45.5

2086 12.5 2678 9.2

326 4.6 1625 30.1

2412 10.2 4303 22.2

The increases in Domestic Wireless Operating income and Segment
EBITDA during 2010 and 2009 were primarily as result of the impact of

factors described above
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867

348
235

754
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Wireline

Mass Markets

Mass Markets revenue includes local exchange basic service and end-

user access long distance including regional toll broadband services

including high-speed Internet and FiOS Internet and FIOS TV services

for residential and small business subscribers

2010 Com pored to 2009

The increase in Mass Markets revenue during 2010 compared to 2009

was primarily driven by the expansion of consumer and business FiOS

services Voice Internet and TV which are typically sold in bundles

partially
offset by the decline of local exchange revenues principally as

result of decline in switched access lines as of December 31 2010

compared to December 31 2009 primarily as result of competition and

technology substitution The majority of the decrease was sustained in

the residential retail market which experienced 9.0% access line loss

primarily due to substituting traditional landline services with wireless

VoIP broadband and cable services Also contributing to the decrease

was decline of nearly 5.0% in small business retail access lines primarily

reflecting economic conditions competition and shift to both IP and

high-speed circuits

As we continue to expand the number of premises eligible to order FiOS

services and extend our sales and marketing efforts to attract new FIOS

subscribers we have continued to grow our subscriber base and con
sistently improved penetration rates within our FIOS service areas Our

bundled pricing strategy allows us to provide competitive offerings to

our customers and potential customers As of December 31 2010 we
achieved penetration rates of 31.9% and 28.0% for FiOS Internet and FiOS

TV respectively compared to penetration rates of 28.3% and 24.7% for

FIOS Internet and FiOSTV respectively at December 31 2009

2009 Compared to 2008

The increase in Mass Markets revenue during 2009 compared to 2008

was primarily driven by the expansion of FiOS services Voice Internet

and TV partially offset by decline in local exchange revenues princi

pally due to decline in switched access lines as of December 31 2009

compared to December31 2008 primarily as result of competition and

technology substitution The majority of the decrease was sustained in

the residential retail market which experienced 10.5% access line loss

primarily due to substituting traditional landline services with wireless

VoIP broadband and cable services Also contributing to the decrease

was decline of nearly 6.2% in small business retail access lines primarily

reflecting economic conditions competition and shift to both and

high-speed circuits

As of December 31 2009 we achieved penetration rates of 28.3% and

24.7% for FiOS Internet and FiOS respectively compared to penetra
tion rates of 25.1% and 21.1% for FiOS Internet and FiOST\ respectively

at December31 2008

Global Enterprise

Global Enterprise offers voice data and Internet communications services

to medium and large business customers multinational corporations
and state and federal government customers In addition to traditional

voice and data services Global Enterprise offers managed and advanced

products and solutions including IP services and value-added solutions

that make communications more secure reliable and efficient Global

Enterprise also provides managed network services for customers that

outsource all or portions of their communications and information pro
cessing operations and data services such as private IP private line frame

relay and asynchronous transfer mode ATM services both domestically

and
internationally In addition Global Enterprise offers professional ser

vices in more than 30 countries supporting range of solutions including

network service managing move to IP-based unified communications

and providing application performance support

2010 Compared to 2009

Global Enterprise revenues were essentially unchanged during 2010

compared to 2009 Higher customer premises equipment apd strategic

networking revenues were offset by lower local services and traditional

circuit-based revenues.The increase in customer premises equipment and

strategic networking revenue may indicatethat companies are beginning
to increase capital expenditures Long distance revenues declined due

to negative effects of the continuing global economic conditions and

competitive rate pressures In addition to increased customer premise

equipment revenues strategic enterprise services revenue increased $0.4

The Wireline segment provides customers with communication products and services including voice broadband video and data network access
long distance and other services to residential and small business customers and carriers as well as next-generation IP network services and com
munications solutions to medium and large businesses and government customers globally

The following discussion reflects the impact related to the change in accounting for benefit plans see Note to the consolidated financial state
ments Reclassifications have been made to reflect comparable operating results for the spin-off of the operations in the Frontier transaction which
we owned through June 30 2010 and the spin-off of the local exchange business and related landline activities in Maine New Hampshire and
Vermont which was completed on March 31 2008 seeAcquisitions and Divestitures

Operating Revenues and Selected Operating Statistics

dollars in millions

Increase/Decrease
Years Ended December31 2010 2009 2008 2009 vs 20082010 vs 2009

Mass Markets 16256 16115 15831

Global
Enterprise 15669 15667 16601

Global Wholesale 8393 9155 9832
Other

909 1514 2059
Total Operating Revenues 41227 42451 44323

Switched access lines in service 000 26001 28323 31370 2322 8.2 3047 9.7

Broadband connections 000 8392 8160 7676 232 2.8 484 6.3

FiOS Internet subscribers 000 4082 3286 2371 796 24.2 915 38.6
ROSTV subscribers 000 3472 2750 1849 722 26.3 901 48.7

141 0.9% 284 1.8%

934 5.6

762 8.3 677 6.9

605 40.0 545 26.5

1224 2.9 1872 4.2
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billion or 6.3% during 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to higher
information technology security solution and strategic networking rev

enues Strategic enterprise services continues to be Global Enterprises

fastest growing suite of offerings Traditional circuit-based services such

as frame relay private line and ATM services declined compared to the

similar period last year as our customer base continues its migration to

next generation IP services

2009 Compared to 2008

The decrease in Global Enterprise revenues during 2009 compared to

2008 was primarily due to lower long distance and traditional circuit based

data revenues and lower customer premises equipment revenue com
bined with the negative effect of movements in foreign exchange rates

versus the U.S dollar The decline in long distance revenue was driven

by 2.2% decline in MOUs compared to 2008 due to global economic

conditions and competitive rate pressures which adversely impacted our

business customers Traditional circuit based services such as frame relay

private line and ATM services declined compared to the similar period in

2008 as our customer base continued its migration to next generation
lP services Customer premises equipment revenue decreased approxi

mately 6.7% compared to 2008 reflecting cautious investment decisions

in the marketplace in response to the uncertain economic environment

Partially offsetting these declines was an increase of 14.6% in IP and secu

rity solutions revenues Strategic enterprise services revenue increased

4.9% in 2009 compared to 2008

Global Wholesale

Global Wholesale revenues are primarily earned from long distance and

other carriers who use our facilities to provide services to their customers

Switched access revenues are generated from fixed and usage-based

charges paid by carriers for access to our local network interexchange
wholesale traffic sold in the United States as well as internationally des

tined traffic that originates in the United States Special access revenues

are generated from carriers that buy dedicated local exchange capacity

to support their private networks Wholesale services also include local

wholesale revenues from unbundled network elements and intercon

nection revenues from competitive local exchange carriers and wireless

carriers portion of Global Wholesale revenues are generated by few

large telecommunication companies many of whom compete directI

with us

2010 Compared to 2009

The decrease in Global Wholesale revenues during 2010 compared to

2009 was primarily due to decreased MOUs in traditional voice prod
ucts increases in voice termination pricing on certain international

routes which negatively impacted volume and continued rate com
pression due to competition in the marketplace Switched access and

interexchange wholesale MOUs declined primarily as result of wireless

substitution and access line losses Domestic wholesale lines declined by
9.0% as of December 31 2010 compared to December 31 2009 due to

the continued impact of competitors deemphasizing their local market

initiatives coupled with the impact of technology substitution as well as

the continued level of economic pressure Voice and local loop services

declined during 2010 compared to 2009 Continuing demand for high-

capacity high-speed digital services was partially offset by lower demand
for older low-speed data products and services As of December 312010
customer demand as measured in DS1 and DS3 circuits for high-capacity

and high-speed digital data services increased 4.6% compared to 2009

2009 Compared to 2008

The decrease in Global Wholesale revenues during 2009 compared to

2008 was primarily due to decreased MOUs in traditional voice products
and continued rate compression due to competition in the marketplace
Switched access and interexchange wholesale MOUs declined primarily

as result of wireless substitution and access line losses Wholesale lines

declined by 21.1% in 2009 due to the continued impact of competitors

deemphasizing their local market initiatives coupled with the impact of

technology substitution as well as the continued level of economic pres
sure compared to 20.1% decline in 2008 Changes in foreign exchange
rates resulted in revenue decline of approximately 1.0% in 2009 com
pared to 2008 Continuing demand for high-capacity high-speed digital

services was partially offset by lower demand for older low-speed data

products and services As of December 31 2009 customer demand as

measured in DS1 and DS3 circuits for high-capacity and digital data ser
vices increased 2.2% compared to an increase of 5.1% in 2008

The FCC regulates the rates charged to customers for interstate access

services See Other Factors That May Affect Future Results Regulatory
and Competitive Trends FCC Regulation for additional information on
FCC rulemaking concerning federal access rates universal service and

certain broadband services

Other Revenues

Other revenues include such services as local exchange and long dis

tance services from former MCI mass market customers operator

services pay phone card services and supply sales The decrease in rev

enues from other services during 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily

due to reduced business volumes including former MCI mass market

customer losses

The decrease in revenues from other services during 2009 compared to

2008 was mainly due to the discontinuation of non-strategic product
lines and reduced business volumes including former MCI mass market

customer losses
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The decreases in Wirelines Operating income and Segment EBITDA during

2010 and 2009 were primarily result of the impact of factors described in

connection with operating revenue and operating expenses above

Non-recurring or non-operational items

Operating income were as follows

Years Ended December31

excluded from Wirelines

dollars in millions

2010 2009 2008

Severance pension and benefit charges

Access line spin-off and other charges

Merger integration costs

Impact of divested operations

2237 2253 506

79 51 34

151

408 980 1197

1908 1324 506

Operating Expenses

dollars in millions

Increase Decrease

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008 2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

Cost of services and sales 22618 22693 22890 75 0.3% 97 0.9%

Selling general and administrative expense 9372 9947 10169 575 5.8 222 2.2

Depreciation and amortization expense 8469 8238 8174 231 2.8 64 0.8

Total Operating Expenses 40459 40878 41233 419 1.0 355 0.9

Cost of Services and Sales Selling General and Administrative Expense

Cost of services and sales were essentially unchanged during 2010 Selling general and administrative expense decreased during 2010 corn-

compared to 2009 Decreases were primarily due to lower costs associ- pared to 2009 primarily due to the decline in compensation expense as

ated with compensation and installation expenses as result of lower result of lower headcount and cost reduction initiatives partially offset

headcount and productivity improvements as well as lower access costs by higher gains on sales of assets in 2009 Selling general and administra

driven mainly by management actions to reduce exposure to unprofit- tive expense in 2009 decreased compared to 2008 primarily due to the

able international wholesale routes and declines in overall wholesale long decline in compensation expense as result of lower headcount and cost

distance volumes In addition our FiOS TV and Internet cost of acquisition reduction initiatives as well as favorable foreign exchange movements

per addition also decreased in 2010 compared to 2009 These declines

were partially offset by higher customer premise equipment costs and
Depreciation andAmortization Expense

content costs associated with continued FiOS subscriber growth Our
Depreciation and amortization expense increased during 2010 corn

FiOS TV and FiOS Internet cost of acquisition per addition also decreased
pared to 2009 due to growth in depreciable telephone plant from capital

in 2010 compared to 2009
spending Depreciation and amortization expense in 2009 increased com

pared to 2008 primarily driven by growth in depreciable telephone plant

Cost of services and sales in 2009 decreased compared to 2008 primarily from capital spending partially offset by lower rates of depreciation as

due to lower costs associated with compensation installation repair and result of changes in the estimated useful lives of certain asset classes

maintenance expenses as result of fewer access lines lower headcount

and productivity improvements Also contributing to the decreases were

lower long distance MOUs and customer premise equipment costs as

well as favorable foreign exchange movements Partially offsetting these

decreases were higher content and customer acquisition costs associated

with continued subscriber growth Our FiOSTV and FiOS Internet cost of

acquisition per addition also decreased in 2009 compared to 2008

Segment Operating Income and EBITDA

dollars in millions

Increase/Decrease

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008 2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

Segment Operating Income 768 1573 3090 805 51.2% 1517 491%
Add Depreciation and amortization expense 8469 8238 8174 231 2.8 64 0.8

SegmentEBlTDA 9237 9811 11264 574 5.9 1453 12.9

Segment operating income margin

Segment EBITDA margin

1.9% 3.7% 7.0%

22.4% 23.1% 25.4%
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OTHER ITEMS

Severance Pension and Benefit Charges

During 2010 we recorded net pre-tax severance pension and ben
efits charges of $3.1 billion primarily in connection with an agreement

we reached with certain unions on temporary enhancements to the

separation programs contained in their existing collective bargaining

agreements These temporary enhancements were intended to help

address previously declared surplus of employees and to help reduce

the need for layoffs Accordingly during 2010 we recorded severance

pension and benefits charges associated with the approximately 11900

union-represented employees who volunteered for the incentive offer

These charges included $1.2 billion for severance for the 2010 programs

mentioned above and planned workforce reduction of approximately

2500 employees in 2011 In addition we recorded $1.3 billion for pension

and postretirement curtailment losses and special termination benefits

that were due to the workforce reductions which caused the elimination

of significant amount of future service Also we recorded remeasure

ment losses of $0.6 billion for our pension and postretirement plans

in accordance with our accounting policy to recognize actuarial gains

and losses in the year in which they occur The remeasurement losses

included $0.1 billion of pension settlement losses related to employees

that received lump sum distributions primarily resulting from our previ

ously announced separation plans

During 2009 we recorded net pre-tax severance pension and benefits

charges of $1.4 billion primarily for pension and postretirement curtail

ment losses and special termination benefits of $1.9 billion as workforce

reductions caused the elimination of significant amount of future ser

vice requiring us to recognize portion of the prior service costs These

charges also included $0.9 billion for workforce reductions of approxi

mately 17600 employees 4200 of whom were separated during late

2009 and the remainder in 2010 Also we recorded remeasurement gains

of $1.4 billion for our pension and postretirement plans in accordance

with our accounting policy to recognize actuarial gains and losses in the

year in which they occur

During 2008 we recorded net pre-tax severance pension and benefits

charges of $15.6 billion primarily due to remeasurement losses of $15.0

billion for our pension and postretirement plans in accordance with our

accounting policy to recognize actuarial gains and losses in the year in

which they occur These remeasurement losses included $0.5 billion of

pension settlement losses related to employees that received lump sum

distributions primarily resulting from our previously announced separa

tion plans These severance pension and benefit charges also included

$0.5 billion for workforce reductions in connection with the separation

of approximately 8600 employees and related charges 3500 of whom
were separated in the second half of 2008 and the remainder in 2009 and

$0.1 billion for pension and postretirement curtailment losses and special

termination benefits that were due to the workforce reductions which

caused the elimination of significant amount of future service

Merger Integration and Acquisition Costs

including fees related to the credit
facility

that was entered into and uti

lized to complete the acquisition

In 2008 we recorded pre-tax charges of $0.2 billion primarily comprised of

systems integration activities and other costs related to re-branding initia

tives facility exit costs and advertising associated with the MCI acquisition

Medicare Part Subsidy Charges

Under the Health Care Act beginning in 2013 Verizon and other com
panies that receive subsidy under Medicare Part to provide retiree

prescription drug coverage will no longer receive federal income tax

deduction for the expenses incurred in connection with providing the

subsidized coverage to the extent of the subsidy received Because future

anticipated retiree prescription drug plan liabilities and related subsi

dies were already reflected in Verizons financial statements this change

required Verizon to reduce the value of the related tax benefits recog
nized in its financial statements in the period during which the Health

Care Act was enacted As result Verizon recorded one-time non-cash

income tax charge of $1.0 billion in the first quarter of 2010 to reflect the

impact of this change

Dispositions

Access Line Spin-off and Other Charges

During 2010 and 2009 we recorded pre-tax charges of $0.5 billion and

$0.2 billion respectively primarily for costs incurred related to network

non-network software and other activities to enable the divested mar
kets in the transaction with Frontier to operate on stand-alone basis

subsequent to the closing of the transaction and professional advisory

and legal fees in connection with this transaction Also included during

2010 are fees related to early extinguishment of debt During 2009 we

also recorded pre-tax charges of $0.2 billion for costs incurred related to

our Wireline cost reduction initiatives

During 2008 we recorded pie-tax charges of $0.1 billion for costs incurred

related to network non-network software and other activities to enable

the operations in Maine New Hampshire and Vermont to operate on

stand-alone basis subsequent to the spin-off of our telephone access line

operations in those states and professional advisory and legal fees in

connection with this transaction

A/ito/Divestiture Markets

During 2010 we recorded tax charge of approximately $0.2 billion for

the taxable gain on the excess of book over tax basis of the goodwill

associated with the AlItel Divestiture Markets

Investment Impairment Charges

During 2008 we recorded pre-tax charge of $48 million related to an

other-than-temporary decline in the fair value of our investments in cer

tain marketable securities

During 2010 we recorded pie-tax merger integration charges of $0.9

billion primarily related to the AlItel acquisition These charges primarily

related to the decommissioning of overlapping cell sites preacquisition

contingencies handset conversions and trade name amortization

During 2009 we recorded pre-tax merger integration and acquisition

charges of $1.2 billion These charges primarily related to the Alltel acqui

sition and were comprised of trade name amortization re-branding

initiatives and handset conversions The charges during 2009 were also

comprised of transaction fees and costs associated with the acquisition

Other

Corporate eliminations and other during the periods presenfed includes

non-cash adjustment of $0.2 billion $0.1 billion and $34 million

in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively primarily to adjust wireless data

revenues This adjustment was recorded to properly defer previously

recognized wireless data revenues that will be earned and recognized

in future periods Consolidated revenues in 2009 and 2008 were not

affected as the amounts involved were not material to the consolidated

financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED FiNANCIAl CONDITION

dollars in millions

Years Ended December31 2010 2009 2008

Cash Flows Provided By Used In

Operating activities

Investing activities

Financing activities

Increase Decrease In Cash and

Cash Equivalents

33363 31390 27452

15054 -23156 31474

13650 16007 12651

4659 7773 8629

We use the net cash generated from our operations to fund network

expansion and modernization repay external financing pay dividends

repurchase Verizon common stock from time to time and invest in new

businesses While our current liabilities typically exceed current assets our

sources of funds primarily from operations and to the extent necessary

from external financing arrangements are sufficient to meet ongoing

operating and investing requirements We expect that our capital

spending requirements will continue to be financed primarily through

internally generated funds Debt or equity financing may be needed to

fund additional development activities or to maintain our capital struc

ture to ensure our financial
flexibility

We manage our capital structure to balance our cost of capital and the

need for financial flexibility We believe that we will continue to have the

necessary access to capital markets

Our available external financing arrangements include the issuance of

commercial paper credit available under credit facilities and other bank

lines of credit vendor financing arrangements issuances of registered

debt or equity securities and privately-placed capital market securities We

currently have shelf registration available for the issuance of up to $4.0

billion of additional unsecured debt or equity securities We may also issue

short-term debt through an active commercial paper program and have

$6.2 billion credit facility to support such commercial paper issuances

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Our primary source of funds continues to be cash generated from opera
tions Net cash provided by operating activities during 2010 increased

by $2.0 billion compared to 2009 primarily due to higher operating cash

flows at Domestic Wireless changes in working capital related in part to

management of inventory and the timing of tax payments Partially off

setting these increases were lower operating cash flows at Wireline as

well as lower net distribution from Vodafone Omnitel

Net cash provided by operating activities in 2009 increased by $3.9

billion compared to the similar period in 2008 primarily driven by higher

operating cash flows at Domestic Wireless resulting from the acquisition

of AlItel as well as higher net distribution from Vodafone Omnitel

Partially offsetting the increase in net cash provided by operating activities

were payments totaling $0.5 billion to settle the acquired Alitel interest

rate swaps

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Capitol Expenditures

Capital expenditures continue to be our primary use of capital resources

as they facilitate the introduction of new products and services enhance

responsiveness to competitive challenges and increase the operating

efficiency and productivity of our networks We are directing our capital

spending primarily toward higher growth markets

Capital expenditures including capitalized software were as follows

dollars in millions

Years Ended December31 2010 2009 2008

751

16458

15.4%

During 2010 we continued to focus on increasing our return on capital

expenditures by shifting capital more towards investing in the capacity

of our wireless EV-DO networks and funding the build-out of our 4G LIE

network Accordingly during 2010 capital expenditures at Domestic

Wireless increased nearly $1.3 billion compared to 2009 The increase in

capital expenditures at Domestic Wireless were more than offset by the

decrease in capital expenditures at Wireline during 2010 compared to

2009 primarily due to lower capital expenditures related to FiOS

The increase in capital expenditures at Domestic Wireless during 2009

compared to 2008 was primarily due to the incremental capital spending

on the acquired AlItel properties continued investment in our wireless

EV-DO networks and funding the development of our 40 LIE network

The decrease in capital expenditures at Wireline during 2009 was primarily

due to the FiOS deployment plan which included larger expenditures in

2008 as well as lower legacy spending requirements

Dispositions

During 2010 we received cash proceeds of $2.6 billion in connection

with the required divestitures of overlapping properties as result of the

acquisition of Ailtel see Acquisitions and Divestitures

Acquisitions

During 2010 2009 and 2008 we invested $1.4 billion $6.0 billion and

$15.9 billion respectively in acquisitions of licenses investments and

businesses See Other Consolidated Results for the amounts of interest

paid that were capitalized during 2010 2009 and 2008

On August 23 2010 Verizon Wireless acquired the net assets and

related customers of six operating markets in Louisiana and Mississippi

in transaction with ATT Inc for cash consideration of $0.2 billion

On January 2009 Verizon Wireless paid approximately $5.9 billion

for the equity of AlItel which was partially offset by $1.0 billion of cash

acquired at closing

During 2008 Verizon Wireless was the winning bidder in the Federal

Communications Commissions FCC auction of spectrum in the 700

MHz band and paid the FCC $9.4 billion to acquire 109 licenses in the

700 MHz band

On August 2008 Verizon Wireless completed its acquisition of RuraT

Cellular for cash consideration of $0.9 billion net of cash acquired and

after an exchange transaction with another carrier to complete the

required divestiture of certain markets

On June 10 2008 in connection with the announcement of the Alltel

transaction Verizon Wireless purchased approximately $5.0 billion

aggregate principal amount of debt obligations of Ailtel for approxi

mately $4.8 billion plus accrued and unpaid interest

Domestic Wireless

Wireline

Other

Total as percentage of total revenue

8438 7152

7269 8892

828

16872

15.7%

6510

9797

_______
826

17133

17.6%
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Cash Flows From Financing Activities

During 2010 and 2009 net cash used in financing activities was $13.7

billion and $16.0 billion respectively During 2008 net cash provided by

financing activities was $12.7 billion

2010

During July 2010 Verizon received approximately $3.1 billion in cash in

connection with the completion of the spin-off and merger of Spinco

see Acquisitions and Divestitures This special cash payment was sub

sequently used to redeem $2.0 billion of 7.25%Verizon Communications

Notes due December 2010 at redemption price of 102.7% of the prin

cipal amount of the notes plus accrued and unpaid interest through the

date of redemption as well as other short-term borrowings During 2010

$0.3 billion of 6.125% and $0.2 billion of 8.625% Verizon New York Inc

Debentures $0.2 billion of 6.375% Verizon North Inc Debentures and

$0.2 billion of6.3%Verizon Northwest Inc Debentures matured and were

repaid In addition during 2010 Verizon repaid $0.2 billion of floating rate

vendor financing debt

During 2011 $0.5 billion of 5.35% Verizon Communications notes

matured and were repaid and Verizon utilized $0.3 billion of fixed rate

vendor financing facility

2009

During 2009 Verizon issued $1.8 billion of 6.35% Notes due 2019 and

$1.0 billion of 7.35% Notes due 2039 resulting in cash proceeds of $2.7

billion net of discounts and issuance costs which was used to reduce

our commercial paper borrowings repay maturing debt and for gen
eral corporate purposes In January 2009 Verizon utilized $0.2 billion

floating rate vendor financing facility During 2009 we redeemed $0.1

billion of 6.8% Verizon New Jersey Inc Debentures $0.3 billion of 6.7%

and $0.2 billion of 5.5% Verizon California Inc Debentures and $0.2 bil

lion of 5.875% Verizon New England Inc Debentures In April 2009 we

redeemed $0.5 billion of 7.51% GTE Corporation Debentures In addition

during 2009 $0.5 billion of floating rate Notes due 2009 and $0.1 billion

of 8.23% Verizon Notes matured and were repaid

2008

During 2008 we made debt repayments of approximately $2.6 bil

lion which primarily included $0.2 billion of 5.55% Verizon Northwest

Debentures $0.3 billion of 6.9% and $0.3 billion of 5.65% Verizon North

Inc Debentures $0.1 billion of 7.0% Verizon California Inc Debentures

$0.3 billion of 6.0% Verizon New York Inc Debentures $0.3 billion of

6.46% GTE Corporation Debentures $0.1 billion of 6.0% Verizon South

Inc Debentures and $1.0 billion of 4.0% Verizon Communications Inc

Notes As result of the spin-off of our local exchange business and

related activities in Maine New Hampshire and Vermont in March 2008

our net debt was reduced by approximately $1.4 billion

In November 2008 Verizon issued $2.0 billion of 8.75% Notes due 2018

and $1.3 billion of 8.95% Notes due 2039 which resulted in cash pro

ceeds of $3.2 billion net of discount and issuance costs In April 2008

Verizon issued $1.3 billion of 5.25% Notes due 2013 $1.5 billion of 6.10%

Notes due 2018 and $1.3 billion of 6.90% Notes due 2038 resulting in

cash proceeds of $4.0 billion net of discounts and issuance costs In

February 2008 Verizon issued $0.8 billion of 4.35% Notes due 2013 $1.5

billion of 5.50% Notes due 2018 and $1.8 billion of 6.40% Notes due 2038

resulting in cash proceeds of $4.0 billion net of discounts and issuance

costs In January 2008 Verizon utilized $0.2 billion fixed rate vendor

financing facility

Verizon Wireless

2010

On June 28 2010 Verizon Wireless exercised its right to redeem the out

standing $1.0 billion of aggregate floating rate notes due June 2011 at

redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the notes plus

accrued and unpaid interest through the date of redemption In addition

during 2010 Verizon Wireless repaid the remaining $4.0 billion of borrow

ings that were outstanding under $4.4 billion Three-Year Term Loan

Facility Agreement with maturity date of September 2011 Three-Year

Term Loan Facility No borrowings remain outstanding under this facility

as of December 31 2010 and this
facility

has been cancelled

2009

During 2009 Verizon Wireless raised capital to fund the acquisition

of AlItel

On January 2009 Verizon Wireless borrowed $12.4 billion under

$17.0 billion credit
facility Bridge Facility in order to complete the

acquisition of AlItel and repay portion of the approximately $24 bil

lion of AIltel debt assumed Verizon Wireless used cash generated from

operations and the net proceeds from the sale of the notes in private

placements issued in February 2009 May 2009 and June 2009 which

are described below to repay the borrowings under the Bridge Facility

The Bridge Facility
and the commitments under the Bridge Facility

have been terminated

In February 2009 Verizon Wireless and Verizon Wireless Capital LLC co
issued $4.3 billion aggregate principal amount of three and five-year

fixed rate notes in private placement resulting in cash proceeds of

$4.2 billion net of discounts and issuance costs

In May 2009 Verizon Wireless and Verizon Wireless Capital LLC co

issued $4.0 billion aggregate principal amount of two-year fixed and

floating rate notes in private placement resulting in cash proceeds of

approximately $4.0 billion net of discounts and issuance costs

In June 2009 Verizon Wireless issued $1.0 billion aggregate principal

amount of floating rate notes due 2011 As described above during

2010 these notes were repaid

In August 2009 Verizon Wireless repaid $0.4 billion of borrowings that

were outstanding under the Three-Year Term Loan
Facility reducing

the outstanding borrowings under this facility to $4.0 billion as of

December 31 2009 As described above during 2010 this
facility was

repaid in full

During November 2009 Verizon Wireless and Verizon Wireless Capital

LLC completed an exchange offer to exchange the privately placed

notes issued in November 2008 and February and May 2009 for new

notes with similar terms

2008

In December 2008 Verizon Wireless and Verizon Wireless Capital LLC co
issued 0.7 billion of 7.625% notes due 2011 0.5 billion of 8.750% notes

due 2015 and 0.6 billion of 8.875% notes due 2018 resulting in net cash

proceeds of $2.4 billion In November 2008 Verizon Wireless and Verizon

Wireless Capital LLC co-issued $3.5 billion aggregate principal amount of

five-year and ten-year fixed rate notes in private placement resulting in

cash proceeds of $3.5 billion net of discounts and issuance costs These

proceeds were used in connection with the acquisition of Alitel and the

repayment of the AlItel debt that was assumed

On September 302008 Verizon Wireless and Verizon Wireless Capital LLC

entered into the $4.4 billion Three-YearTerm Loan Facility On June 52008

Verizon Wireless entered into $7.6 billion 364-Day Credit Agreement

which included $4.8 billion term facility and $2.8 billion delayed draw

facility On June 10 2008 Verizon Wireless borrowed $4.8 billion under
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the 364-Day Credit Agreement in order to purchase Alitel debt obliga

tions acquired in the second quarter of 2008 and during the third quarter

of 2008 borrowed $2.8 billion under the delayed draw facility to com

plete the purchase of Rural Cellular and to repay Rural Cellulars debt and

pay fees and expenses incurred in connection therewith During 2008

the borrowings under the 364-Day Credit Agreement were repaid

Other net

The increase in Other net financing activities during 2010 and 2009

was primarily driven by higher distributions to Vodafone which owns

45% noncontrolling interest in Verizon Wireless In addition Other net

financing activities during 2009 included the buyout of wireless part

nerships in which our ownership interests increased as result of the

acquisition of Alitel

Credit Facility
and She/f Registration

On April 14 2010 we terminated all commitments under our previous

$5.3 billion 364-day credit facility
with syndicate of lenders and entered

into new $6.2 billion three-year credit facility with group of major finan

cial institutions As of December31 2010 the unused borrowing capacity

under the three-year credit facility was approximately $6.1 billion

The credit facility does not require us to comply with financial covenants

or maintain specified credit ratings and it permits us to borrow even if

our business has incurred material adverse change We use the credit

facility to support the issuance of commercial paper for the issuance of

letters of credit and for general corporate purposes

We have shelf registration available for the issuance of up to $4.0 billion

of additional unsecured debt or equity securities

Verizons ratio of debt to debt combined with Verizons equity was 57.8%

at December 31 2010 compared to 60.1% at December 31 2009

Dividends Paid

During 2010 we paid $5.4 billion in dividends compared to $5.3 billion

in 2009 and $5.0 billion in 2008 As in prior periods dividend payments

were significant use of capital resources The Verizon Board of Directors

determines the appropriateness of the level of our dividend payments

on periodic basis by considering such factors as long-term growth

opportunities internal cash requirements and the expectations of our

shareowners During the third quarter of 2010 the Board increased our

quarterly dividend payment 2.6% to $.4875 per share from $475 per share

in the same period of 2009 During the third quarter of 2009 and 2008

the Board increased our dividend payments 3.3% and 7.0% respectively

Common Stock

Common stock has been used from time to time to satisfy some of the

funding requirements of employee and shareowner plans

On February 2011 the Board of Directors replaced the current share

buyback program with new program for the repurchase of up to 100

million common shares terminating no later than the close of business on

February 28 2014 The Board also determined that no additional shares

were to be purchased under the prior program

During the first quarter of 2009 we entered into privately negotiated

prepaid forward agreement for 14 million shares of Verizon common

stock at cost of approximately $0.4 billion We terminated the prepaid

forward agreement with respect to million of the shares during the

fourth quarter of 2009and million of the shares in the first quarter of

2010 which resulted in the delivery of those shares to Verizon

There were no repurchases of common stock during 2010 and 2009

During 2008 we repurchased $1.4 billion of our common stock

Credit Ratings

The debt securities of Verizon Communications and its subsidiaries con

tinue to be accorded high ratings by the three primary rating agencies

Although one-level ratings downgrade would not be expected to sig

nificantly impact our access to capital it could increase both the cost

of refinancing existing debt and the cost of financing any new capital

requirements Securities ratings assigned by rating organizations are

expressions of opinion and are not recommendations to buy sell or hold

securities securities rating is subject to revision or withdrawal at any

time by the assigning rating organization Each rating should be evalu

ated independently of any other rating

Covenants

Our credit agreements contain covenants that are typical for large

investment grade companies These covenants include requirements to

pay interest and principal in timely fashion pay taxes maintain insur

ance with responsible and reputable insurance companies preserve our

corporate existence keep appropriate books and records of financial

transactions maintain our properties provide financial and other reports

to our lenders limit pledging and disposition of assets and mergers and

consolidations and other similar covenants

We and our consolidated subsidiaries are in compliance with all debt

covenants

Increase Decrease In Cash and Cash Equivalents

Our Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2010 totaled $6.7 bil

lion $4.7 billion increase compared to Cash and cash equivalents at

December 31 2009 for the reasons discussed above Our Cash and cash

equivalents at December 31 2009 totaled $2.0 billion $7.8 billion

decrease compared to Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2008

for the reasons discussed above

Free Cash Flow

Free cash flow is non-GAAP financial measure that management believes

is useful to investors and other users of Verizons financial information in

evaluating cash available to pay debt and dividends Free cash flow is

calculated by subtracting capital expenditures from net cash provided by

operating activities The following table reconciles net cash provided by

operating activities to free cash flow

dollars in millions

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Net cash provided by operating activities

Less Capital expenditures including

capitalized software

Free cash flow

16458 16872 17133

16905 14518 10319

33363 31390 27452
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Employee Benefit Plan Funded Status and Contributions Leasing Arrangements

We operate numerous qualified and nonqualified pension plans and

other postretirement benefit plans These plans primarily relate to our

domestic business units During 2010 contributions to our qualified

pension plans were not significant We contributed $0.2 billion and $0.3

billion in 2009 and 2008 respectively to our qualified pension plans We

also contributed $0.1 billion $0.1 billion and $0.2 billion to our nonquali

fled pension plans in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

During January 2011 we contributed $0.4 billion to our qualified pen
sion plans We do not expect to make additional qualified pension plan

contributions during the remainder of 201 Nonqualified pension contri

butions are estimated to be approximately $0.1 billion for 2011

Contributions to our other postretirement benefit plans generally relate

to payments for benefits on an as-incurred basis since the other post-

retirement benefit plans do not have funding requirements similar to

the pension plans.We contributed $1.2 billion $1.6 billion and $1.2 bil

lion to our other postretirement benefit plans in 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively Contributions to our other postretirement benefit plans are

estimated to be approximately $1.5 billion in 2011

We are the lessor in leveraged and direct financing lease agreements for

commercial aircraft and power generating facilities which comprise the

majority of the portfolio along with telecommunications equipment real

estate property and other equipment.These leases have remaining terms

up to 40 years as of December 31 2010 In addition we lease space on

certain of our cell towers to other wireless carriers Minimum lease pay

ments receivable represent unpaid rentals less principal and interest on

third-party nonrecourse debt relating to leveraged lease transactions

Since we have no general liability for this debt which holds senior

security interest in the leased equipment and rentals the related prin

cipal and interest have been offset against the minimum lease payments

receivable in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

All recourse debt is reflected in our consolidated balance sheets

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table provides summary of our contractual obligations and commercial commitments at December 31 2010 Additional detail about

these items is included in the notes to the consolidated financial statements

Payments Due By Period

dollars in millions

Contractual Obligations

Long-term debt111

Capital lease obligations see Note

Total long-term debt including current maturities

Interest on long-term debtW

Operating leases see Note

Purchase obligations see Note 1712

Income tax audit settlements131

Other long-term liabilities141

Total contractual obligations

More than

3-5 years years

Items included in long-term debt with variable coupon rates are described in Note to the consolidated financial statements

12 The purchase obligations reflected above are primarily commitments to purchase equipment software programming and network services and marketing activities which will be used or

sold in the ordinary course of business These amounts do not represent our entire anticipated purchases in the future but
represent only those items for which we are contractually com

mitted We also purchase products and services as needed with no firm commitment For this reason the amounts presented in this table alone do not provide reliable indicator of our

expected future cash outflows or changes in our expected cash position see Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements

Income tax audit settlements include gross unrecognized tax benefits of $0.1 billion and related gross interest and penalties
of $0.1 billion as determined under the accounting standard

relating to the uncertainty in income taxes We are not able to make reliable estimate of when the unrecognized tax--benefits balance of $3.1 billion and related interest and penalties will

be settled with the respective taxing authorities until issues or examinations are further developed see Note 13 to the consolidated financial statementsl

Other long-term liabilities include estimated postretirement benefit and qualified pension plan contributions see Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

Guarantees

In connection with the execution of agreements for the sale of businesses

and investmentsVerizon ordinarily provides representations and warran

ties to the purchasers pertaining to variety of nonfinancial matters such

as ownership of the securities being sold as well as financial losses

As of December 31 2010 letters of credit totaling approximately $0.1

biion were executed in the normal course of business which support

several financing arrangements and payment obligations to third parties

Total

Less than

year 1-3 years

52462 7467 11703 4653 28639

332 75 114 77 66

52794 7542 11817 4730 28705

35194 3143 5375 4265 22411

12633 1898 3191 2267 5277

57277 17852 36779 2132 514

208 208

3900 2500 1400

162006 33143 58562 13394 56907
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MARKET RtSK

We are exposed to various types of market risk in the normal course of

business including the impact of interest rate changes foreign currency

exchange rate fluctuations changes in investment equity and commodity

prices and changes in corporate tax rates We employ risk management

strategies which may include the use of variety of derivatives including

cross currency swaps foreign currency and prepaid forwards and collars

interest rate and commodity swap agreements and interest rate locks We

do not hold derivatives for trading purposes

It is our general policy to enter into interest rate foreign currency and

other derivative transactions only to the extent necessary to achieve our

desired objectives in limiting our exposure to various market risks Our

objectives include maintaining mix of fixed and variable rate debt to

lower borrowing costs within reasonable risk parameters and to protect

against earnings and cash flow volatility resulting from changes in market

conditions We do not hedge our market risk exposure in manner that

would completely eliminate the effect of changes in interest rates and

foreign exchange rates on our earnings We do not expect that our net

income liquidity and cash flows will be materially affected by these risk

management strategies

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates primarily on our short-term

debt and the portion of long-term debt that carries floating interest

rates As of December 31 2010 more than three-fourths in aggregate

principal amount of our total debt portfolio consisted of fixed rate

indebtedness including the effect of interest rate swap agreements des

ignated as hedges The impact of 100 basis point change in interest

rates affecting our floating rate debt would result in change in annual

interest expense including our interest rate swap agreements that are

designated as hedges of approximately $0.1 billion.The interest rates on

our existing long-term debt obligations are unaffected by changes to our

credit ratings

The table that follows summarizes the fair values of our long-term debt

including current maturities and interest rate swap derivatives as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 The table also provides sensitivity anal

ysis of the estimated fair values of these financial instruments assuming

100-basis-point upward and downward shifts in the yield curve Our sen

sitivity analysis does not include the fair values of our commercial paper

and bank loans if any because they are not significantly affected by

changes in market interest rates

dollars in millions

Fair Value

assuming

-100 basis

noint shiftAt December 31 2010 Fair Values

Long-term debt and related

derivatives 58591 55427 62247

At December 31 2009

Long-term debt and related

derivatives 66042 62788 69801

Interest Rate Swaps

We have entered into domestic interest rate swaps to achieve targeted

mix of fixed and variable rate debt where we principally receive fixed

rates and pay variable rates based on London lnterbank Offered Rate

These swaps are designated as fair value hedges and hedge against

changes in the fair value of our debt portfolio We record the interest

rate swaps at fair value on our consolidated balance sheets as assets and

liabilities Changes in the fair value of the interest rate swaps are recorded

to Interest expense which are offset by changes in the fair value of the

debt due to changes in interest rates The fair value of these contracts

was $0.3 billion and $0.2 billion at December 31 2010 and December 31

2009 respectively and are primarily included in Other assets and Long-

term debt As of December 31 2010 the total notional amount of these

interest rate swaps was $6.0 billion During February 2011 we entered

into interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges with notional

amount of approximately $3.0 billion

Forward Interest Rate Swaps

In order to manage our exposure to future interest rate changes during

2010 we entered into forward interest rate swaps with total notional

value of $1.4 billion We have designated these contracts as cash flow

hedges The fair value of these contracts was $0.1 billion at December

31 2010 and the contracts are included in Other assets On or before

February 2011 Verizon terminated these forward interest rate swaps

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency for our foreign operations is primarily the

local currency The translation of income statement and balance sheet

amounts of our foreign operations into U.S dollars are recorded as cumu

lative translation adjustments which are included in Accumulated other

comprehensive loss in our consolidated balance sheets Gains and losses

on foreign currency transactions are recorded in the consolidated state

ments of income in Other income and expense net At December 31

2010 our primary translation exposure was to the British Pound Sterling

the Euro and the Australian Dollar

Cross Currency Swaps

Verizon Wireless has entered into cross currency swaps designated as

cash flow hedges to exchange approximately $2.4 billion British Pound

Sterling and Euro denominated debt into U.S dollars and to fix our future

interest and principal payments in U.S dollars as well as mitigate the

impact of foreign currency transaction gains or losses The fair value of

these swaps included primarily in Other assets was approximately $0.1

billion and $0.3 billion at December 31 2010 and December 31 2009

respectively During 2010 and 2009 pre-tax loss of $0.2 billion and

pre-tax gain of $0.3 billion respectively was recognized in Other compre

hensive income portion of which was reclassified to Other income and

expense net to offset the related pre-tax foreign currency transaction

gain on the underlying debt obligations

Fair Value

assuming

100 basis

Doint shift
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND RECENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Critical Accounting Estimates

summary of the critical accounting estimates used in preparing our

financial statements is as follows

Wireless licenses and Goodwill are significant component of our con

solidated assets Both our wireless licenses and goodwill are treated as

indefinite-lived intangible assets and therefore are not amortized but

rather are tested for impairment annually in the fourth fiscal quarter

unless there are events or changes in circumstances during an interim

period that indicates these assets may not be recoverable We believe

our estimates and assumptions are reasonable and represent appro

priate marketplace considerations as of the valuation date We do not

believe that reasonably likely
adverse changes in our assumptions and

estimates would result in an impairment charge as of our latest impair

ment testing date However if there is substantial and sustained

adverse decline in our operating profitability we may have impairment

charges in future years Any such impairment charge could be material

to our results of operations and financial condition

Wireless Licenses

The carrying value of our wireless licenses was approximately $73.0

billion as of December 31 2010 We aggregate our wireless licenses

into one single unit of accounting as we utilize our wireless licenses

on an integrated basis as part of our nationwide wireless network Our

wireless licenses provide us with the exclusive right to utilize certain

radio frequency spectrum to provide wireless communication services

There are currently no legal regulatory contractual competitive eco

nomic or other factors that limit the useful life of our wireless licenses

Our impairment test consists of comparing the estimated fair value of

our wireless licenses to the aggregated carrying amount as of the test

date If the estimated fair value of our wireless licenses is less than the

aggregated carrying amount of the wireless licenses then an impair

ment charge is recognized Our annual impairment tests for 20102009

and 2008 indicated that the fair value significantly exceeded the car

rying value and therefore did not result in an impairment

We estimate the fair value of our wireless licenses using direct income

based valuation approach This approach uses discounted cash flow

analysis to estimate what marketplace participant would be willing

to pay to purchase the aggregated wireless licenses as of the valuation

date As result we are required to make significant estimates about

future cash flows specifically associated with our wireless licenses an

appropriate discount rate based on the risk associated with those esti

mated cash flows and assumed terminal value and growth rates We

consider current and expected future economic conditions current

and expected availability of wireless network technology and infra

structure and related equipment and the costs thereof as well as other

relevant factors in estimating future cash flows.The discount rate repre

sents our estimate of the weighted average cost of capital or expected

return WACC that marketplace participant would require as of the

valuation date We develop the discount rate based on our consider

ation of the cost of debt and equity of group of guideline companies

as of the valuation date Accordingly our discount rate incorporates

our estimate of the expected return marketplace participant would

require as of the valuation date including the risk premium associated

with the current and expected economic conditions as of the valua

tion date The terminal value growth rate represents our estimate of

the marketplaces long-term growth rate

Goodwill

At December31 2010 the balance of our goodwill was approximately

$22.0 billion of which $17.9 billion was in ourWireless segment and $4.1

billion was in our Wireline segment Determining whether an impair

ment has occurred requires the determination of fair value of each

respective reporting unit Our operating segments Domestic Wireless

and Wireline are deemed to be our reporting units for purposes of

goodwill impairment testing.The fair value of Domestic Wireless signif

icantly exceeded its carrying value The fair value of Wireline exceeded

its carrying value Accordingly our annual impairment tests for 2010

2009 and 2008 did not result in an impairment

The fair value of the reporting unit is calculated using market

approach and discounted cash flow method The market approach

includes the use of comparative multiples to corroborate discounted

cash flow results The discounted cash flow method is based on the

present value of two components projected cash flows and ter

minal value The terminal value represents the expected normalized

future cash flows of the reporting unit beyond the cash flows from

the discrete projection period The fair value of the reporting unit is

calculated based on the sum of the present value of the cash flows

from the discrete period and the present value of the terminal value

The estimated cash flows are discounted using rate that represents

our WACC

With regards to the Wireline goodwill valuation critical assumption

includes the development of the WACC for use in our estimate of fair

value.TheWACC is based on current market conditions including the

equity-risk premium and risk-free interest rate The projected WACC

used in the estimate of fair value in future periods may be impacted

by adverse changes in market and economic conditions including

risk-free interest rates and are subject to change based on the facts

and circumstances that exist at the time of the valuation which may

increase the likelihood of potential future impairment charge related

toWireline goodwill Reducing the calculated fair value ofWirelines net

assets by more than 20 percent would not have resulted in potential

goodwill impairment
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We maintain benefit plans for most of our employees including for

certain employees pension and other postretirement benefit plans

At December 31 2010 in the aggregate pension plan benefit obliga

tions exceeded the fair value of pension plan assets which will result

in higher future pension plan expense Other postretirement benefit

plans have larger benefit obligations than plan assets resulting in

expense Significant benefit plan assumptions including the discount

rate used the long-term rate of return on plan assets and health care

trend rates are periodically updated and impact the amount of benefit

plan income expense assets and obligations sensitivity analysis of

the impact of changes in these assumptions on the benefit obligations

and expense income recorded as well as the on the funded status

due to an increase or decrease in the actual versus expected return

on plan assets as of December 31 2010 and for the year then ended

pertaining to Verizons pension and postretirement benefit plans is

provided in the table below

Pension plans discount rate 0.50

-0.50

Rate of return on pension plan assets 1.00

-1.00

Postretirement plans discount rate 0.50

-0.50

Rate of return on postretirement plan assets 1.00

-1.00

In determining its pension and other postretirement obligation the company used

5.75% discount rate The rate was selected to approximate the composite interest

rates available on selection of bonds available in the market at December 312010

The bonds selected had maturities that coincided with the time periods during which

benefits payments are expected to occut were non-callable and available in sufficient

quantities to ensure marketability at least $0.2 billion
par outstanding

Our current and deferred income taxes and associated valuation allow

ances are impacted by events and transactions arising in the normal

course of business as well as in connection with the adoption of new

accounting standards changes in tax laws and rates acquisitions and

dispositions of businesses and non-recurring items As global com

mercial enterprise our income tax rate and the classification of income

taxes can be affected by many factors including estimates of the

timing and realization of deferred income tax assets and the timing

and amount of income tax payments We account for tax benefits

taken or expected to be taken in our tax returns in accordance with the

accounting standard relating to the uncertainty in income taxes which

requires the use of two-step approach for recognizing and measuring

tax benefits taken or expected to be taken in tax return We review

and adjust our liability
for unrecognized tax benefits based on our best

judgment given the facts circumstances and information available at

each reporting date To the extent that the final outcome of these tax

positions is different than the amounts recorded such differences may

impact income tax expense and actual tax payments We recognize

any interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits

in income tax expense Actual tax payments may materially differ from

estimated liabilities as result of changes in tax laws as well as unan

ticipated transactions impacting related income tax balances

Our Plant property and equipment balance represents significant

component of our consolidated assets We record plant property

and equipment at cost Depreciation expense on our local telephone

operations is principally based on the composite group remaining life

method and straight-line composite rates which provides for the rec

ognition of the cost of the remaining net investment in local telephone

plant less anticipated net salvage value over the remaining asset lives

An increase or decrease of 50 basis points to the composite rates of

this class of assets would result in an increase or decrease of approxi

mately $0.6 billion to depreciation expense based on year-end plant

balances at December 31 2010 We depreciate other plant property

and equipment on straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of

the assets We expect that one-year increase in estimated useful lives

of our plant property and equipment that we depreciate on straight

line basis would result in decrease to our 2010 depreciation expense

of $1.0 billion and that one-year decrease would result in an increase

of approximately $1.2 billion in our 2010 depreciation expense

Recent Accounting Standards

On January 2011 we prospectively adopted the accounting standard

update regarding revenue recognition for arrangements that include

software elements This update requires tangible products that contain

software and non-software elements that work together to deliver the

products essential functionality to be evaluated under the accounting

standard regarding multiple deliverable arrangements The adoption of

this standard update is not expected to have significant impact on our

consolidated financial statements

dollars in millions

Percentage

point

chanae

Increase

decrease at

December 31 2010

Health care trend rates

1341 On January 2011 we prospectively adopted the accounting stan

1472
dard update regarding revenue recognition for multiple deliverable

256
arrangements This method allows vendor to allocate revenue in an

256 arrangement using its best estimate of selling price if neither vendor spe

cific objective evidence nor third party evidence of selling price exists

1348 Accordingly the residual method of revenue allocation is no longer per-

1494 missible The adoption of this standard update is not expected to have

significant impact on our consolidated financial statements

1.00

-1.00

31
31

2788

2303
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OTHER FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

Acquisitions and Divestitures

Terremark Worldwide Inc

On January 27 2011 Verizon announced that it had entered into

definitive agreement to acquire all of the common stock oflerremark

Worldwide Inc global provider of IT infrastructure and cloud ser

vices for $19 per share in cash or approximately $1.4 billion Terremark

had approximately $0.5 billion of debt outstanding as of December 31

2010 The acquisition which is subject to the satisfaction of conditions

including the receipt of regulatory approval is expected to close in the

first quarter of 2011 The acquisition will enhance Verizons offerings to

governmental and large enterprise customers

Access Lines Spin-offs

Frontier Transaction

On May 13 2009 we announced plans to spin off newly formed sub

sidiary of Verizon Spinco to our stockholders and for Spinco to merge

with Frontier immediately following the spin-off pursuant to definitive

agreement with Frontier with Frontier to be the surviving corporation

On July 2010 after receiving regulatory approval we completed the

spin-off of the shares of Spinco toVerizon stockholders and the merger of

Spinco with Frontier resulting inVerizon stockholders collectively owning

approximately 68 percent of Frontiers equity which was outstanding

immediately following the merger Frontier issued approximately 678.5

million shares of Frontier common stock in the aggregate to Verizon

stockholders in the merger and Verizon stockholders received one share

of Frontier common stock for every 4.165977 shares ofVerizon common

stock they owned as of June 2010 Verizon stockholders received cash

in lieu of any
fraction of share of Frontier common stock to which they

otherwise were entitled

At the time of the spin-off and the merger Spinco held defined assets

and liabilities of the local exchange business and related landline activi

ties of Verizon in Arizona Idaho Illinois Indiana Michigan Nevada

North Carolina Ohio Oregon South Carolina Washington West Virginia

and Wisconsin and in portions of California bordering Arizona Nevada

and Oregon including Internet access and long distance services and

broadband video provided to designated customers in those areas The

transactions did not involve any assets or liabilities of Verizon Wireless

The merger resulted in Frontier acquiring approximately million access

lines and certain related businesses from Verizon which collectively

generated revenues of approximately $4 billion for Verizons Wireline seg

ment during 2009 and approximately $1.7 billion of revenue for Verizons

Wireline segment during the six months ended June 30 2010

Pursuant to the terms ofVerizons equity incentive plans shortly following

the closing of the spin-off and the merger the number of outstanding

and unvested restricted stock units RSU5 and performance stock units

PSUs held by current and former Verizon employees including Verizon

employees who became employees of Frontier in connection with the

merger was increased to reflect number of additional units approxi

mately equal to the cash value of the Frontier common stock that the

holders of the RSUs and PSUs would have received with respect to hypo

thetical shares of Verizon common stock subject to awards under those

plans In addition the exercise prices and number of shares of Verizon

common stock underlying stock options to purchase shares of Verizon

common stock previously granted to employees under equity incentive

plans were adjusted pursuant to the terms of those plans to take into

account the decrease in the value ofVerizon common stock immediately

following the spin-off and merger

The total value of the transaction to Verizon and its stockholders was

approximately $8.6 billion Verizon stockholders received $5.3 billion in

Frontier common stock based on the valuation formula contained in

the merger agreement with Frontier as described above and Verizon

received $3.3 billion in aggregate value comprised of $3.1 billion in the

form ofa special cash payment from Spinco and $0.3 billion in reduction

in Verizons consolidated indebtedness During July 2010 Verizon used

the proceeds from the special cash payment to reduce its consolidated

indebtedness The accompanying consolidated financial statements for

the year ended December 31 2010 include these operations prior to

the completion of the spin-off on July 12010 The spin-off decreased

Total equity and Goodwill by approximately $1.9 billion and $0.6 billion

respectively

On April 12 2010 Spinco completed financing of $3.2 billion in prin

cipal amount of notes.The gross proceeds of the offering were deposited

into an escrow account Immediately prior to the spin-off on July 2010

the funds in the escrow account representing the net cash proceeds

from the offering were released to Verizon These proceeds are reflected

in the consolidated statement of cash flows as Proceeds from access line

spin-off

FairPoint Transaction

On March 31 2008 we completed the spin-off of the shares of Northern

New England Spinco Inc to Verizon shareowners and the merger of

Northern New England Spinco Inc with FairPoint Communications Inc

As result of the spin-off our net debt was reduced by approximately

$1.4 billion The consolidated statements of income for the periods pre

sented include the results of operations of the local exchange and related

business assets in Maine New Hampshire and Vermont through the date

of completion of the spin-off

Ailtel Divestiture Markets

As condition of the regulatory approvals by the DOJ and the FCC to

complete the acquisition of Alitel in January 2009 Verizon Wireless was

required to divest overlapping properties in 105 operating markets in

24 states Total assets and total liabilities divested were $2.6 billion and

$0.1 billion respectively principally comprised of network assets wire

less licenses and customer relationships that were included in Prepaid

expenses and other current assets and Other current liabilities respec

tively on the consolidated balance sheet at December 31 2009

On May 2009 Verizon Wireless entered into definitive agreement

with ATT Mobility pursuant to which ATT Mobility agreed to acquire

79 of the 105 AIltel Divestiture Markets including licenses and network

assets for approximately $2.4 billion in cash On June 2009 Verizon

Wireless entered into definitive agreement with Atlantic Tele-Network

Inc ATN pursuant to which ATN agreed to acquire the remaining 26

Ailtel Divestiture Markets including licenses and network assets for $0.2

billion in cash During the second quarter of 2010 Verizon Wireless com

pleted both transactions

Other

On August 23 2010 Verizon Wireless acquired the net assets and related

customers of six operating markets in Louisiana and Mississippi in trans

action with ATT Inc for cash consideration of $0.2 billion These assets

were acquired to enhance Verizon Wireless network coverage in these

operating markets The preliminary purchase price allocation primarily

resulted in $0.1 billion of wireless licenses and $0.1 billion in goodwill
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Regulatory and Competitive Trends

Competition and Regulation

Technological regulatory and market changes have provided Verizon

both new opportunities and challenges These changes have allowed

Verizon to offer new types of services in an increasingly competitive

market At the same time they have allowed other service providers

to broaden the scope of their own competitive offerings Current and

potential competitors for network services include other telephone

companies cable companies wireless service providers foreign telecom-

munications providers satellite providers electric utilities Internet service

providers providers of VoIP services and other companies that offer net

work services using variety of technologies Many of these companies

have strong market presence brand recognition and existing customer

relationships all of which contribute to intensifying competition and may

affect our future revenue growth Many of our competitors also remain

subject to fewer regulatory constraints than us

We are unable to predict definitively the impact that the ongoing

changes in the telecommunications industry will ultimately have on our

business results of operations or financial condition The financial impact

will depend on several factors including the timing extent and success

of competition in our markets the timing and outcome of various regula

tory proceedings and any appeals and the timing extent and success of

our pursuit of new opportunities

FCC Regulation

The FCC has jurisdiction over our interstate telecommunications services

and other matters under the Communications Act of 1934 as amended

Communications Act The Communications Act generally provides that

we may not charge unjust or unreasonable rates or engage in unreason

able discrimination when we are providing services as common carrier

and regulates some of the rates terms and conditions under which we

provide certain services.The FCC also has adopted regulations governing

various aspects of our business including use and disclosure of cus

tomer proprietary network information ii telemarketing iii assignment

of telephone numbers to customers iv provision to law enforcement

agencies of the capability to obtain call identifying information and call

content information from calls pursuant to lawful process accessi

bility
of services and equipment to individuals with disabilities if readily

achievable vi interconnection with the networks of other carriers and

vii customers ability to keep or port their telephone numbers when

switching to another carrier In addition we pay various fees to support

other FCC programs such as the universal service program discussed

below Changes to these mandates or the adoption of additional man
dates could require us to make changes to our operations or otherwise

increase our costs of compliance

Broadband

The FCC previously adopted series of orders that impose lesser regu

latory requirements on broadband services and facilities than apply to

narrowband or traditional telephone services With respect to wireline

facilities the FCC determined that certain unbundling requirements that

apply to narrowband facilities of local exchange carriers do not apply

to broadband facilities such as fiber to the premise ioops and packet

switches With respect to services the FCC concluded that both wireline

and wireless broadband Internet access services qualify as largely dereg

ulated information services Separately certain of our wireline broadband

services sold primarily to larger business customers were largely deregu

lated when our forbearance petition was deemed granted by operation

of law The latter relief has been upheld on appeal but is subject to

continuing challenge before the FCC

In December of 2010 the FCC adopted so-called net neutrality rules

governing broadband Internet access services that it describes as

intended to preserve the openness
of the Internet The rules require

providers of broadband Internet access to publicly disclose information

relating to the performance and terms of its services For fixed services

the rules prohibit blocking lawful content applications services or non-

harmful devices The rules also prohibit unreasonable discrimination in

transmitting lawful traffic over consumers broadband Internet access

service For mobile services the rules prohibit blocking access to lawful

websites or blocking applications that compete with the providers voice

or video telephony services The restrictions are subject to reasonable

network management The rules also establish complaint process and

state that the FCC will continue to monitor developments to determine

whether to impose further regulations The rules are scheduled to take

effect following their review by the Office of Management and Budget

and will be subject to appeals

Video

The FCC has body of rules that apply to cable operators underTitle VI of

the Communications Act of 1934 and these rules also generally apply to

telephone companies that provide cable services over their networks In

addition the Act generally requires companies that provide cable service

over cable system to obtain local cable franchise and the FCC has

adopted rules that interpret and implement this requirement

Interstate Access Charges and Intercarrier Compensation

The FCCs current framework for interstate switched access rates was

established in the Coalition for Affordable Local and Long Distance

Services CALLS plan which the FCC adopted in 2000 and it has adopted

separate framework that applies to dial-up Internet-bound traffic The

FCC currently is conducting broad rulemaking to determine whether

and how these existing frameworks should be modified

An FCC rulemaking proceeding is also pending to address the regulation

of services that use IP The issues raised in the rulemaking as well as in

several petitions currently pending before the FCC include whether and

under what circumstances access charges should apply to voice or other

IP services and the scope of federal and state commission authority over

these services

The FCCs current rules for special access services provide for pricing flex

ibility and ultimately the removal of services from price regulation when

prescribed competitive thresholds are met More than half of special

access revenues are now removed from price regulation The FCC cur

rently has rulemaking proceeding underway to determine whether and

how these rules should be modified

Universal Service

The FCC has adopted body of rules implementing the universal service

provisions of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 including provisions

to support rural and non-rural high-cost areas low income subscribers

schools and libraries and rural health care The FCCs rules require tele

communications companies including Verizon to pay into the Universal

Service Fund USF which then makes distributions in support of the pro

grams Certain of the FCCs rules for support to high-cost areas served by

largernon-rural local telephone companies are the subject of pending

appeal Separately in response to growth in the size of the USF the FCC

has capped the amount of distributions competitive carriers including

all wireless carriers may receive from the USF In its 2008 order approving

Verizon Wireless acquisition of Alitel the FCC also required Verizon

Wireless to phase out the high-cost universal service support the merged

company receives by 20 percent during the first year following comple

tion of the acquisition and by an additional 20 percent for each of the

following three years after which no support will be provided The FCC

currently is considering other changes to the rules governing contribu

tions to and disbursements from the fund Any change in the current

rules could result in change in the contribution that Verizon and others

must make and that would have to be collected from customers or in

the amounts that these providers receive from the USF
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Unbundling of Network Elements

Under Section 251 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 incumbent

local exchange carriers are required to provide competing carriers with

access to components of their network on an unbundled basis known

as UNEs where certain statutory standards are satisfied The FCC has

adopted rules defining the network elements that must be made avail

able including criteria for determining whether high-capacity loops

transport or dark fiber transport must be unbundled in individual wire

centers The Telecommunications Act of 1996 also adopted cost-based

pricing standard for these UNEs which the FCC interpreted as allowing

it to impose pricing standard known as total element long run incre

mental cost orTELRIC

Wireless Services

The FCC regulates the licensing construction operation acquisition and

transfer of wireless communications systems including the systems that

Verizon Wireless operates pursuant to the Communications Act other

legislation and the FCCs rules The FCC and Congress continuously con
sider changes to these laws and rules Adoption of new laws or rules

may raise the cost of providing service or require modification ofVerizon

Wireless business plans or operations

To use the radio frequency spectrum wireless communications systems

must be licensed by the FCC to operate the wireless network and mobile

devices in assigned spectrum segments Verizon Wireless holds FCC

licenses to operate in several different radio services including the cel

lular radiotelephone service personal communications service wireless

communications service and point-to-point radio service The technical

and service rules the specific radio frequencies and amounts of spectrum

Verizon Wireless holds and the sizes of the geographic areas it is autho

rized to operate in vary for each of these services However all of the

licenses Verizon Wireless holds allow it to use spectrum to provide wide

range of mobile and fixed communications services including both voice

and data services and Verizon Wireless operates seamless network that

utilizes those licenses to provide services to customers Because the FCC

issues licenses for only fixed time generally 10 years Verizon Wireless

must periodically seek renewal of those licenses Although the FCC has

routinely renewed all of Verizon Wireless licenses that have come up for

renewal to date challenges could be brought against the licenses in the

future If wireless license were revoked or not renewed upon expira

tion Verizon Wireless would not be permitted to provide services on the

licensed spectrum in the area covered by that license

The FCC has also imposed specific mandates on carriers that operate

wireless communications systems which increase Verizon Wirelesscosts

These mandates include requirements that Verizon Wireless meet

specific construction and geographic coverage requirements during

the license term ii meet technical operating standards that among
other things limit the radio frequency radiation from mobile devices

and antennas iii deployEnhanced 911 wireless services that provide

the wireless callers number location and other information to state or

local public safety agency that handles 911 calls iv provide roaming

services to other wireless service providers and comply with regula

tions for the construction of transmitters and towers that among other

things restrict siting
of towers in environmentally sensitive locations and

in places where the towers would affect site listed or eligible for
listing

on the National Register of Historic Places Changes to these mandates

could require Verizon Wireless to make changes to operations or increase

its costs of compliance In its November 2008 order approving Verizon

Wireless acquisition of AlItel the FCC adopted conditions that impose

additional requirements on Verizon Wireless in its provision of Enhanced

911 services and roaming services

The Communications Act imposes restrictions on foreign ownership of

U.S wireless systems The FCC has approved the interest that Vodafone

Group Plc holds through various of its subsidiaries in Verizon Wireless

The FCC may need to approve any increase in Vodafones interest or the

acquisition of an ownership interest by other foreign entities In addition

as part of the FCCs approval ofVodafones ownership interest Verizon

Wireless Verizon and Vodafone entered into an agreement with the

U.S Department of Defense Department of Justice and Federal Bureau

of Investigation which imposes national security and law enforce

ment-related obligations on the ways in which Verizon Wireless stores

information and otherwise conducts its business

Verizon Wireless anticipates that it will need additional spectrum to meet

future demand It can meet spectrum needs by purchasing licenses or

leasing spectrum from other licensees or by acquiring new spectrum

licenses from the FCC Under the Communications Act before Verizon

Wireless can acquire license from another licensee in order to expand

its coverage or its spectrum capacity in particular area it must file an

application with the FCC and the FCC can grant the application only

after period for public notice and comment This review process can

delay acquisition of spectrum needed to expand services and can result

in conditions on the purchaser that can impact its costs and business

plans The Communications Act also requires the FCC to award new

licenses for most commercial wireless services through competitive

bidding process in which spectrum is awarded to bidders in an auction

Verizon Wireless has participated in spectrum auctions to acquire licenses

for radio spectrum in various bands Most recently Verizon Wireless par

ticipated in the FCCs auction of spectrum in the 700 MHz band and was

the high bidder on 109 700 MHz licenses The FCC granted all of those

licenses to Verizon Wireless on November 26 2008

The FCC also adopted service rules that will impose costs on licensees

that acquire the 700 MHz band spectrum either through auction or by

purchasing such spectrum from other companies These rules include

minimum coverage mandates by specific dates during the license terms

and for approximately one-third of the spectrum known as theC Blocky

open access requirements which generally require licensees of that

spectrum to allow customers to use devices and applications of their

choice on the network we are deploying on that spectrum including

those obtained from sources other than us or our distributors or dealers

subject to certain technical limitations established by us Verizon Wireless

holds the Block 700 MHz licenses covering the entire United States In

adopting its net neutrality rules discussed above the FCC stated that

the new rules operate independently from the open access require

ments that continue to apply to the Block licensees

The FCC is also conducting several proceedings to explore making

additional spectrum available for licensed and/or unlicensed use These

proceedings could increase radio interference to Verizon Wireless opera

tions from other spectrum users and could impact the ways in which

it uses spectrum the capacity of that spectrum to carry traffic and the

value of that spectrum

State Regulation and Local Approvals

Telephone Operations

State public utility
commissions regulate our telephone operations with

respect to certain telecommunications intrastate rates and services and

other matters Our competitive local exchange carrier and long distance

operations are generally classified as nondominant and lightly regu
lated the same as other similarly situated carriers Our incumbent local

exchange operations are generally classified as dominant These latter

operations California Connecticut Delaware the District of Columbia

Florida Maryland Massachusetts New Jersey New York North Carolina

Pennsylvania Rhode Island Texas and Virginia are subject to various

levels of pricing flexibility deregulation detariffing and service quality

standards None of the states are subject to earnings regulation
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Video

Companies that provide cable service over cable system are typically

subject to state and/or local cable television rules and regulations As

noted above cable operators generally must obtain local cable fran

chise from each local unit of government prior to providing cable service

in that local area Some states have enacted legislation that enables

cable operators to apply for and obtain single cable franchise at the

state rather than local level To date Verizon has applied for and received

state-issued franchises in California Florida New Jersey Texas and the

unincorporated areas of Delaware We also have obtained authoriza

tion from the state commission in Rhode Island to provide cable service

in certain areas in that state have obtained required state commission

approvals for our local franchises in New York and will need to obtain

additional state commission approvals in these states to provide cable

service in additional areas Virginia law provides us the option of entering

given franchise area using state standards if local franchise negotiations

are unsuccessful

Wireless Services

The rapid growth of the wireless industry has led to efforts by some state

legislatures and state public utility commissions to regulate the industry

in ways that may impose additional costs on Verizon Wireless The

Communications Act generally preempts regulation by state and local

governments of the entry of or the rates charged by wireless carriers but

does not prohibit states from regulating the otherterms and conditions

of wireless service While numerous state commissions do not currently

have jurisdiction over wireless services state legislatures may decide to

grant them such jurisdiction and those commissions that already have

authority to impose regulations on wireless carriers may adopt new rules

State efforts to regulate wireless services have included proposals to

regulate customer billing termination of service trial periods for service

advertising the use of handsets while driving reporting requirements

for system outages and the availability of broadband wireless services

Wireless tower and antenna facilities are also subject to state and local

zoning and land use regulation and securing approvals for new or modi

fied tower or antenna sites is often lengthy and expensive process

Verizon Wireless as well as ATT and Sprint-Nextel is party to an

Assurance of Voluntary Compliance AVC with 33 State Attorneys

General The AVC which generally reflected Verizon Wireless practices at

the time it was entered into in July 2004 obligates the company to dis

close certain rates and terms during sales transactiOn to provide maps

depicting coverage and to comply with various requirements regarding

advertising billing and other practices

Environmental Matters

During 2003 under government-approved plan remediation com
menced at the site of former Sylvania facility

in Hicksville New York

that processed nuclear fuel rods in the 1950s and 1960s Remediation

beyond original expectations proved to be necessary and reassessment

of the anticipated remediation costs was conducted reassessment of

costs related to remediation efforts at several other former facilities was

also undertaken In September 2005 the Army Corps of Engineers ACE

accepted the Hicksville site into the Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial

Action Program This may result in the ACE performing some or all of the

remediation effort for the Hicksville site with corresponding decrease

in costs to Verizon To the extent that the ACE assumes responsibility for

remedial work at the Hicksville site an adjustment to reserve previously

established for the remediation may be made Adjustments to the reserve

may also be made based upon actual conditions discovered during the

remediation at this or any other site requiring remediation

In this Report we have made forward-looking statements These state

ments are based on our estimates and assumptions and are subject to

risks and uncertainties Forward-looking statements include the informa

tion concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations

Forward-looking statements also include those preceded or followed by

the words anticipates believes estimates hopes or similar expres

sions For those statements we claim the protection of the safe harbor for

forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation

Reform Act of 1995

The following important factors along with those discussed elsewhere

in this Report could affect future results and could cause those results to

differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements

the effects of adverse conditions in the U.S and international

economies

the effects of competition in our markets

materially adverse changes in labor matters including labor negotia

tions and any resulting financial and/or operational impact

the effect of material changes in available technology

any disruption of our key suppliers provisioning of products or

services

significant increases in benefit plan costs or lower investment returns

on plan assets

the impact of natural disasters terrorist attacks breaches of network or

information technology security or existing or future
litigation

and any

resulting financial impact not covered by insurance

technology substitution

an adverse change in the ratings afforded our debt securities by

nationally accredited ratings organizations or adverse conditions in

the credit markets impacting the cost including interest rates and/or

availability of financing

any changes in the regulatory environments in which we operate

including any increase in restrictions on our ability to operate our

networks

the timing scope and financial impact of our deployment of broad

band technology

changes in our accounting assumptions that regulatory agencies

including the SEC may require or that result from changes in the

accounting rules or their application which could result in an impact

on earnings

our ability to complete acquisitions and dispositions and

the
inability

to implement our business strategies
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VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Report of Management on Internal Control Over

Financial Reporting

We the management of Verizon Communications Inc are responsible

for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over finan

cial reporting of the company Management has evaluated internal

control over financial reporting of the company using the criteria for

effective internal control established in Internal ControlIntegrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission

Management has assessed the effectiveness of the companys internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 Based on this

assessment we believe that the internal control over financial reporting

of the company is effective as of December 31 2010 In connection with

this assessment there were no material weaknesses in the companys

internal control over financial reporting identified by management

The companys financial statements included in this Annual Report

have been audited by Ernst Young LLP independent registered public

accounting firm Ernst Young LLP has also provided an attestation

report on the companys internal control over financial reporting

Ivan Seidenberg

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Francis Shammo

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

LaJ
Robert Barish

Senior Vice President and Controller

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

To The Board of Directors and Shareowners of Verizon

Communications Inc

We have audited Verizon Communications Inc and subsidiaries Verizon

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based

on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theTreadway Commission

the COSO criteria Verizons management is responsible for maintaining

effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment

of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included

in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal Control Over

Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the

companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur

ance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting

was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the

risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed

risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary

in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable

basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external pur

poses in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

companys internal control over financial reporting includes those poli

cies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that

in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assur

ance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and direc

tors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or dis

position of the companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm on Financial Statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting

may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any evalua

tion of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls

may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Verizon maintained in all material respects effective

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based

on the coso criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the consolidated

balance sheets of Verizon as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the

related consolidated statements of income cash flows and changes in

equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 312010

ofVerizon and our report dated February 28 2011 expressed an unquali

fied opinion thereon

Ernst Young LIP

New York New York

February 28 2011

To The Board of Directors and Shareowners of Verizon

Communications Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of

Verizon Communications Inc and subsidiaries Verizon as of December

31 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of income

cash flows and changes in equity for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2010 These financial statements are the responsi

bility ofVerizons management Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those stan

dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signifi

cant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly

in all material respects the consolidated financial position of Verizon

at December 31 2010 and 2009 and the consolidated results of its

operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2010 in conformity with U.S generally accepted

accounting principles

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements Verizon

has elected to change its methods of accounting for actuarial gains

and losses and the calculation of expected returns on plan assets for all

pension and other postretirement benefit plans during the fourth quarter

of 2010

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Verizons internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on cri

teria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

and our report dated February 282011 expressed an unqualified opinion

thereon

Ernst Young LIP

New York New York

February 28 2011



VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income As Adjusted

Years Ended December 31

Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Cost of services and sales exclusive of items shown below

Selling general and administrative expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

Total Operating Expenses

2010

$106565

dollars in millions except per
share amounts

2009 2008

107808 97354

Operating Income

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated businesses

Other income and expense net

Interest expense

Income Before Provision Benefit for Income Taxes

Provision benefit for income taxes

Net Income

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net income loss attributable to Verizon

Net Income

14645 15978 2612

508 553 567

54 91 283

2523 3102 1819

12684 13520 1643

2467 1919 2319

10217 11601 3962

7668 6707 6155

2549 4894 2193

10217 11601 3962

Basic Earnings Loss Per Common Share

Net income loss attributable to Verizon

Weighted-average shares outstanding in millions

Diluted Earnings Loss Per Common Share

Net income loss attributable to Verizon

Weighted-average shares outstanding in millions

See Notes to consolidated Financial Statements

.77

2849

44149 44579 38615

31366 30717 41517

16405 16534 14610

91920 91830 94742

.90

2830

.90

2833

1.72

2841

1.72

2841

.77

2849
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VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

ConsoJidated Balance Sheets As Adjusted

At December 31

dollars in millions except per
share amounts

2010 2009

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term investments

Accounts receivable net of allowances of $876 and $976

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other

Total current assets

Plant property and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Investments in unconsolidated businesses

Wireless licenses

Goodwill

Other intangible assets net

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities

Debt maturing within one year

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Other

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Employee benefit obligations

Deferred income taxes

Other liabilities

Equity

Series preferred stock $.1 par value none issued

Common stock $.1 par value 2967610119 shares issued in both periods

Contributed capital

Reinvested earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Common stock in treasury at cost

Deferred compensation employee stock ownership plans and other

Noncontrolling interest

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

See Notes to consolidated rinancial Statements

2009

490

12573

1426

5247

21745

211655 229743

123944 137758

87711 91985

3497 3118

72996 72067

21988 22472

5830 6764

5635 8756

220005 226907

7542 7205

15702 5223

7353 6708

30597 29136

45252 55051

28164 32622

22818 19190

6262 6765

297 297

37922 40108

4368 7260

1049 1372

5267 5000

200 89

48343 42761

86912 84143

220005 226907

6668

545

11781

1131

2223

22348
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VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows As Adjusted

Years Ended December 31 2010

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization expense

Employee retirement benefits

Deferred income taxes

Provision for uncollectible accounts

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated businesses net of dividends received

Changes in current assets and liabilities net of effects from acquisition/disposition

of businesses

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Other assets

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Other net ___________

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Capital expenditures including capitalized software

Acquisitions of licenses investments and businesses net of cash acquired

Proceeds from dispositions

Net change in short-term investments

Other net

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Repayments of long-term borrowings and capital lease obligations

Increase decrease in short-term obligations excluding current maturities

Dividends paid

Proceeds from access line spin-off

Proceeds from sale of common stock

Purchase of common stock for treasury

Other net

Net cash provided by used in financing activities

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents end of year

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2009

dollars in millionsl

2008

10217

16405

3988

3233

1246

859
299

313

1075

1930

33363

11601

16534

2964

2093

1306

389

1393
235

102

1251

986

31390

3962

14610

16077

3468

1085

212

1085

188

59

1701

1993

27452

16458 16872 17133

1438 5958 15904

2594

84 1677

251 410 114

15054 23156 31474

12040 21598

8136 19260 4146

1097 1652 2389

5412 5271 4994

3083

16

1368

2088 1864 844

13650 16007 12651

4659 7773 8629

2009 9782 1153

6668 2009 9782
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VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity As Adjusted

dollars in millions except per
share amounts and shares in thousands

2009 2008

AmoUnt
Shares Shares Amount Shares

Common Stock

Balance at beginnng of year 2967610 297 2967610 297 2967610 297

Balance at end of year
2967610 297 2967610 297 2967610 297

Contributed Capital

Balance at beginning of year
40108 40291 40316

Access line spin-off
2184

Other 183 25

Balance at end of year
37922 40108 40291

Reinvested Earnings

Balance at beginning of year
7260 7676 17884

Benefit plan accounting changes Note 2953

Adjusted balance at beginning of year
7260 7676 14931

Net income loss attributable to Verizon 2549 4894 2193

Dividends declared $1925 $1.87 and $1.78 per share 5441 5310 5062

Balance at end of year
4368 7260 7676

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss

Balance at beginning of year attributable toVerizon 1372 1912 4484

Spin-off of local exchange businesses and related

landline activities Note 23 27

Benefit plan accounting changes Note 2930

Adjusted balance at beginning of year
1349 1912 1527

Foreign currency translation adjustments 171 78 231

Unrealized gains losses on marketable securities 29 87 97

Unrealized gains losses on cash flow hedges 89 87 40

Defined benefit pension and postretirement plans 2451 288 17

Other comprehensive income loss 2398 540 385

Balance at end of year attributable to Verizon 1049 1372 1912

Treasury Stock

Balance at beginning of year 131942 5000 127090 4839 90786 3489

Shares purchased
36779 1368

Other Note 10 9000 280 5000 166

Shares distributed

Employee plans
347 13 142 468 18

Shareowner plans

Balance at end of year 140587 5267 131942 5000 127090 4839

Deferred CompensationESOP5 and Other

Balance at beginning of year
89 79 79

Restricted stock equity grant
97

Amortization 14 10

Balance at end of year
200 89 79

Noncontrolling Interest

Balance at beginning of year 42761 37199 32266

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 7668 6707 6155

Other comprehensive income loss 35 103 30

Total comprehensive income 7633 6810 6125

Distributions and other 2051 1248 1192

Balance at end of year
48343 42761 37199

Total Equity 86912 84143 78791

Comprehensive Income

Netincome 10217 11601 3962

Other comprehensive income loss 2363 643 415

Total Comprehensive Income 12580 12244 3547

Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest 7633 6810 6125

Comprehensive income loss attributable to Verizon 4947 5434 2578

Total Comprehensive Income 12580 12244 3547

Years Ended December 31 2010

Amount

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business

Verizon Communications Inc Verizon or the Company is one of the

worlds leading providers of communications services We have two

reportable segments Domestic Wireless and Wireline For further infor

mation concerning our business segments see Note 14

Verizons Domestic Wireless segment operating as Verizon Wireless pro

vides wireless voice and data services and equipment across the United

States U.S using one of the most extensive and reliable wireless net

works in the nation Verizon Wireless continues to expand its penetration

of data services and offerings of data devices for both consumer and

business customers

Our Wireline segment provides communications services including voice

broadband video and data network access nationwide long distance

and other communications products and services and also owns and

operates one of the most expansive end-to-end global Internet Protocol

IF networks We continue to deploy advanced broadband network

technology with our fiber-to-the-premises network operated under the

FiOS service mark creating platform with sufficient bandwidth and

capabilities to meet customers current and future needs FiOS allows

us to offer our customers wide array of broadband services including

advanced data and video offerings Our IF network includes over 485000

route miles of fiber optic cable and provides access to over 150 countries

across six continents enabling us to provide next-generation IF network

products and information technology services to medium and large busi

nesses and government customers worldwide

Consolidation

The method of accounting applied to investments whether consoli

dated equity or cost involves an evaluation of all significant terms of

the investments that explicitly grant or suggest evidence of control or

influence over the operations of the investee The consolidated financial

statements include our controlled subsidiaries For controlled subsidiaries

that are not wholly owned the noncontrolling interest is included in Net

income and Total equity Investments in businesses which we do not

control but have the
ability

to exercise significant influence over oper

ating and financial policies are accounted for using the equity method

Investments in which we do not have the
ability to exercise significant

influence over operating and financial policies are accounted for under

the cost method Equity and cost method investments are included in

Investments in unconsolidated businesses in our consolidated balance

sheets Certain of our cost method investments are classified as available-

for-sale securities and adjusted to fair value pursuant to the accounting

standard related to debt and equity securities All significant intercom

pany accounts and transactions have been eliminated

Basis of Presentation

We have reclassified certain prior year amounts to conform to the current

year presentation Also refer to Employee Benefit Plans below regarding

change in accounting for benefit plans

Corporate eliminations and other during the periods presented include

non-cash adjustment of $0.2 billion $0.1 billion and $34 million in 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively primarily to adjust wireless data revenues.This

adjustment was recorded to properly defer previously recognized wireless

data revenues that will be earned and recognized in future periods The

adjustment was recorded during 2010 which reduced Net income loss

attributable to Verizon by approximately $0.1 billion Consolidated rev

enues in 2009 and 2008 were not affected as the amounts involved were

not material to our consolidated financial statements

Use of Estimates

We prepare our financial statements using U.S generally accepted

accounting principles GAAP which require management to make esti

mates and assumptions that affect reported amounts and disclosures

Actual results could differ from those estimates

Examples of significant estimates include the allowance for doubtful

accounts the recoverability of plant property and equipment the recov

erability ofintangible assets and other long-lived assets unbilled revenues

fair values of financial instruments unrecognized tax benefits valuation

allowances on tax assets accrued expenses pension and postretirement

benefit assumptions contingencies and allocation of purchase prices in

connection with business combinations

Revenue Recognition

Domestic Wireless

Our Domestic Wireless segment earns revenue by providing access to

and usage of its network which includes voice and data revenue In

general access revenue is billed one month in advance and recognized

when earned Usage revenue is generally billed in arrears and recognized

when service is rendered Equipment sales revenue associated with the

sale of wireless handsets and accessories is recognized when the prod

ucts are delivered to and accepted by the customer as this is considered

to be separate earnings process from the sale of wireless services For

agreements involving the resale of third-party services in which we are

considered the primary obligor in the arrangements we record the rev

enue gross at the time of the sale

Wireline

Our Wireline segment earns revenue based upon usage of its network

and facilities and contract fees In general fixed monthly fees for voice

video data and certain other services are billed one month in advance

and recognized when earned Revenue from services that are not fixed in

amount and are based on usage is generally billed in arrears and recog

nized when such services are provided

When we bundle the equipment with maintenance and monitoring ser

vices we recognize equipment revenue when the equipment is installed

in accordance with contractual specifications and ready for the cus

tomers use The maintenance and monitoring services are recognized

monthly over the term of the contract as we provide the services Long

term contracts are accounted for using the percentage of completion

method We use the completed contract method if we cannot estimate

the costs with reasonable degree of
reliability
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Installation related fees along with the associated costs up to but not

exceeding these fees are deferred and amortized over the estimated cus

tomer relationship period

We report taxes imposed by governmental authorities on revenue-pro

ducing transactions between us and our customers on net basis

Discontinued Operations Assets Held for Sale and Sales of

Businesses and Investments

We classify as discontinued operations for all periods presented any com

ponent of our business that we hold for sale that has operations and

cash flows that are clearly distinguishable operationally and for financial

reporting purposes

Maintenance and Repairs

We charge the cost of maintenance and repairs including the cost of

replacing minor items not constituting substantial betterments princi

pally to Cost of services and sales as these costs are incurred

Advertising Costs

Costs for advertising products and services as well as other promotional

and sponsorship costs are charged to Selling general and administrative

expense in the periods in which they are incurred see Note 16

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share are based on the weighted-average

number of shares outstanding during the period Where appropriate

diluted earnings per common share include the dilutive effect of shares

issuable under our stock-based compensation plans

There were total of approximately million stock options and restricted

stock units outstanding to purchase shares included in the computation

of diluted earnings per common share for the year ended December 31

2010 Dilutive stock options outstanding to purchase shares included in

the computation of diluted earnings per common share for the years

ended December 31 2009 and 2008 were not significant Outstanding

options to purchase shares that were not included in the computation

of diluted earnings per common share because to do so would have

been anti-dilutive for the period including approximately 73 million 112

million and 158 million weighted-average shares for the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

We are authorized to issue up to 4.25 billion and 250 million shares of

common stock and Series Preferred Stock respectively

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with maturity of 90 days or

less when purchased to be cash equivalents Cash equivalents are stated

at cost which approximates quoted market value and include amounts

held in money market funds

Marketable Securities

We have investments in marketable securities which are considered avail

able-for-sale under the provisions of the accounting standard for certain

debt and equity securities Marketable securities are included in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets in Short-term investments

Investments in unconsolidated businesses or Other assets We continu

ally
evaluate our investments in marketable securities for impairment

due to declines in market value considered to be other-than-temporary

That evaluation includes in addition to persistent declining stock prices

general economic and company-specific evaluations In the event of

determination that decline in market value is other-than-temporary

charge to earnings is recorded for the loss and new cost basis in the

investment is established

Inventories

Inventory consists of wireless and wireline equipment held for sale which

is carried at the lower of cost determined principally on either an average

cost or first-in first-out basis or market

Plant and Depreciation

We record plant property and equipment at cost Our local telephone

operations depreciation expense is principally based on the composite

group remaining life method and straight-line composite rates This

method provides for the recognition of the cost of the remaining net

investment in local telephone plant less anticipated net salvage value

over the remaining asset lives.This method requires the periodic revision

of depreciation rates

Plant property and equipment of other wireline and wireless operations

are generally depreciated on straight-line basis The asset lives used by

our operations are presented in the following table

Average Useful Lives in years

Buildings

Central office and other network equipment

Outside communications plant

Copper cable

Fiber cable including undersea cable

Poles conduit and other

Furniture vehicles and other

When we replace retire or otherwise dispose of depreciable plant used

in our local telephone network we deduct the carrying amount of such

plant from the respective accounts and charge it to accumulated depre

ciation When the depreciable assets of our other wireline and wireless

operations are retired or otherwise disposed of the related cost and

accumulated depreciation are deducted from the plant accounts and

any gains or losses on disposition are recognized in income

We capitalize and depreciate network software purchased or developed

along with related plant assets We also capitalize interest associated with

the acquisition or construction of network-related assets Capitalized

interest is reported as reduction in interest expense and depreciated as

part of the cost of the network-related assets

15 45
315

15

11 25
3050

20
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

In connection with our ongoing review of the estimated remaining

average useful lives of plant property and equipment at our local tele

phone operations we determined that there were no changes necessary

to average useful lives for 2010 We determined effective January 2009

that the average useful lives of fiber cable not including undersea cable

would be increased to 25 years from 20 to 25 years and the average useful

lives of copper cable would be changed to 15 years from 13 to 18 years

The changes to average useful lives of fiber cable did not have signifi

cant impact on depreciation expense In connection with our ongoing

review of the estimated remaining average useful lives of plant property

and equipment at our wireless operations we determined that changes

were necessary to the remaining estimated useful lives as result of

technology upgrades enhancements and planned retirements These

changes resulted in an increase in depreciation expense of $0.3 billion in

2010 and 2009 and $0.2 billion in 2008 While the timing and extent of

current deployment plans are subject to ongoing analysis and modifica

tion we believe the current estimates of useful lives are reasonable

Computer Software Costs

We capitalize the cost of internal-use network and non-network software

which has useful life in excess of one year Subsequent additions modi

fications or upgrades to internal-use network and non-network software

are capitalized only to the extent that they allow the software to perform

task it previously did not perform Software maintenance and training

costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred Also we cap

italize interest associated with the development of internal-use network

and non-network software Capitalized non-network internal-use soft

ware costs are amortized using the straight-line method over period

of to years and are included in Other intangible assets net in our

consolidated balance sheets For discussion of our impairment policy

for capitalized software costs seeGoodwill and Other Intangible Assets

below Also see Note for additional detail of internal-use non-network

software reflected in our consolidated balance sheets

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition cost of businesses over the

fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired Impairment testing

for goodwill is performed annually in the fourth fiscal quarter or more

frequently if indications of potential impairment exist The impairment

test for goodwill uses two-step approach which is performed at the

reporting unit level We have determined that in our case the reporting

units are our operating segments since that is the lowest level at which

discrete reliable financial and cash flow information is regularly reviewed

by our chief operating decision maker Step one compares the fair value

of the reporting unit calculated using market approach and/or dis

counted cash flow method to its carrying value If the carrying value

exceeds the fair value there is potential impairment and step two must

be performed Step two compares the carrying value of the reporting

units goodwill to its implied fair value i.e fair value of reporting unit

less the fair value of the units assets and liabilities including identifiable

intangible assets If the implied fair value of goodwill is less than the car

rying amount of goodwill an impairment is recognized

Intangible Assets Not Subject to Amortization

significant portion of our intangible assets are wireless licenses that

provide our wireless operations with the exclusive right to utilize des

ignated radio frequency spectrum to provide cellular communication

services While licenses are issued for only fixed time generally ten years

such licenses are subject to renewal by the Federal Communications

Commission FCC Renewals of licenses have occurred routinely and at

nominal cost Moreover we have determined that there are currently no

legal regulatory contractual competitive economic or other factors that

limit the useful life of our wireless licenses As result we treat the wireless

licenses as an indefinite-lived intangible asset We reevaluate the useful

life determination for wireless licenses each year to determine whether

events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life

We test our wireless licenses for potential impairment annually or more

frequently if indications of impairment exist We evaluate our licenses

on an aggregate basis using direct value approach The direct value

approach estimates fair value using discounted cash flow analysis to

estimate what marketplace participant would be willing to pay to pur

chase the aggregated wireless licenses as of the valuation date If the fair

value of the aggregated wireless licenses is less than the aggregated car

rying amount of the licenses an impairment is recognized

Interest expense incurred while qualifying activities are performed to

ready wireless licenses for their intended use is capitalized as part of wire

less licenses The capitalization period ends when the development is

substantially complete and the license is ready for its intended use

Intangible Assets Subject to Amortization

Our intangible assets that do not have indefinite lives primarily customer

lists and non-network internal-use software are amortized over their

useful lives and reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes

in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may

not be recoverable If any indications were present we would test for

recoverability by comparing the carrying amount of the asset to the net

undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from the asset If

those net undiscounted cash flows do not exceed the carrying amount

we would perform the next step which is to determine the fair value

of the asset and record an impairment if any We reevaluate the useful

life determinations for these intangible assets each year to determine

whether events and circumstances warrant revision in their remaining

useful lives

For information related to the carrying amount of goodwill by segment

wireless licenses and other intangible assets as well as the major com

ponents and average useful lives of our other acquired intangible assets

see Note
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities is defined

as an exit price representing the amount that would be received to sell

an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants The three-tier hierarchy for inputs used in measuring

fair value which prioritizes
the inputs used in the methodologies of mea

suring fair value for assets and liabilities is as follows

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets

for identical assets and liabilities

Level No observable pricing inputs in the market

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified in their entirety based

on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measure

ments Our assessment of the significance of particular input to the fair

value measurements requires judgment and may affect the valuation of

the assets and liabilities being measured and their placement within the

fair value hierarchy

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate is based on pre-tax income statutory tax rates tax

laws and regulations and tax planning strategies available to us in the

various jurisdictions in which we operate

Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences in the

bases between financial statement and income tax assets and liabilities

Deferred income taxes are recalculated annually at tax rates then in effect

We record valuation allowances to reduce our deferred tax assets to the

amount that is more likely
than not to be realized

We use two-step approach for recognizing and measuring tax benefits

taken or expected to be taken in tax return The first step is recognition

we determine whether it is more likely than not that tax position will be

sustained upon examination including resolution of any related appeals

or litigation processes based on the technical merits of the position In

evaluating whether tax position has met the more-likely-than-not rec

ognition threshold we presume that the position will be examined by

the appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant

information The second step is measurement tax position that meets

the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is measured to determine

the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial statements The tax

position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than

50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement Differences

between tax positions taken in tax return and amounts recognized in

the financial statements will generally result in one or more of the fol

lowing an increase in
liability

for income taxes payable reduction of

an income tax refund receivable reduction in deferred tax asset or an

increase in deferred tax liability

The accounting standard relating to income taxes generated by lever

aged lease transactions requires that changes in the projected timing of

income tax cash flows generated by leveraged lease transaction be rec

ognized as gain or loss in the year in which the change occurs

Significant management judgment is required in evaluating our tax posi

tions and in determining our effective tax rate

Stock-Based Compensation

We measure and recognize compensation expense for all stock-based

compensation awards made to employees and directors based on esti

mated fair values See Note 11 for further details

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of our foreign operations is generally the local

currency For these foreign entities we translate income statement

amounts at average exchange rates for the period and we translate assets

and liabilities at end-of-period exchange rates We record these transla

tion adjustments in Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

separate component of Equity in our consolidated balance sheets We

report exchange gains and losses on intercompany foreign currency

transactions of long-term nature in Accumulated other comprehensive

income loss Other exchange gains and losses are reported in income

Employee Benefit Plans

Pension and postretirement health care and life insurance benefits earned

during the year as well as interest on projected benefit obligations are

accrued currently Prior service costs and credits resulting from changes in

plan benefits are generally amortized over the average remaining service

period of the employees expected to receive benefits Expected return

on plan assets is determined by applying the return on assets assump

tion to the actual fair value of plan assets Actuarial gains and losses are

recognized in operating results in the year in which they occur These

gains and losses are measured annually as of December 31 or upon

remeasurement event Verizon management employees no longer earn

pension benefits or earn service towards the company retiree medical

subsidy see Note 12

We recognize pension or postretirement plans funded status as either

an asset or liability on the consolidated balance sheets Also we measure

any unrecognized prior service costs and credits that arise during the

period as component of Accumulated other comprehensive income

loss net of applicable income tax

Change in Accounting for Benefit Plans

During the fourth quarter of 2010 Verizon retrospectively changed its

method of accounting for pension and other postretirement benefits

Historically Verizon has recognized actuarial gains and losses as com

ponent of Equity in its consolidated balance sheets on an annual basis

These gains and losses were amortized into operating results gener

ally over the average future service period of active employees Verizon

elected to immediately recognize actuarial gains and losses in its oper

ating results in the year in which the gains and losses occur This change

is intended to improve the transparency of Verizons operational perfor

mance by recognizing the effects of current economic and interest rate

trends on plan investments and assumptions Additionally Verizon will

no longer calculate expected return on plan assets using an averaging

technique permitted under U.S GAAP for market-related value of plan

assets but instead will use actual fair value of plan assets Accordingly the

financial data for all periods presented has been adjusted to reflect the

effect of these accounting changes
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Balance Sheet In formation

Reinvested earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Derivative Instruments

We have entered into derivative transactions primarily to manage our

exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates interest rates

equity and commodity prices We employ risk management strategies

which may include the use of variety of derivatives including cross cur

rency swaps foreign currency and prepaid forwards and collars interest

rate and commodity swap agreements and interest rate locks We do not

hold derivatives for trading purposes

We measure all derivatives including derivatives embedded in other

financial instruments at fair value and recognize them as either assets or

liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets Our derivative instruments

are valued primarily using models based on readily observable market

parameters for all substantial terms of our derivative contracts and thus

are classified as Level Changes in the fair values of derivative instru

ments not qualifying as hedges or any ineffective portion of hedges are

recognized in earnings in the current period Changes in the fair values

of derivative instruments used effectively as fair value hedges are recog

nized in earnings along with changes in the fair value of the hedged item

Changes in the fair value of the effective portions of cash flow hedges are

reported in other comprehensive income loss and recognized in earn

ings when the hedged item is recognized in earnings

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

The adoption of the following accounting standards and updates during

2010 did not result in significant impact to our consolidated financial

statements

In January 2010 we adopted the accounting standard regarding

consolidation accounting for variable interest entities This standard

requires an enterprise to perform an analysis to determine whether

the entitys variable interest or interests give it controlling interest in

variable interest entity

In January 2010 we adopted the accounting standard update regarding

fair value measurements and disclosures which requires additional dis

closures regarding assets and liabilities measured at fair value

In December 2010 we adopted the accounting standard update

regarding disclosures for finance receivables and allowances for credit

losses This standard update requires that entities disclose information at

more disaggregated levels than previously required

Recent Accounting Standards

On January 2011 we prospectively adopted the accounting stan

dard update regarding revenue recognition for multiple deliverable

arrangements This method allows vendor to allocate revenue in an

arrangement using its best estimate of selling price if neither vendor spe

cific objective evidence nor third party evidence of selling price exists

Accordingly the residual method of revenue allocation is no longer per

missible The adoption of this standard update is not expected to have

significant impact on our consolidated financial statements

On January 2011 we prospectively adopted the accounting standard

update regarding revenue recognition for arrangements that include

software elements This update requires tangible products that contain

software and non-software elements that work together to deliver the

products essential functionality to be evaluated under the accounting

standard regarding multiple deliverable arrangements The adoption of

this standard update is not expected to have significant impact on our

consolidated financial statements

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

The cumulative effect of the change on Reinvested earnings as of January 12008 was decrease of approximately $3.0 billion with the corresponding

adjustment to Accumulated other comprehensive loss.The significant effects of the change in accounting for benefit plans on our consolidated state

ments of income and consolidated balance sheet for the periods presented were as follows

dollars in millions except per
share amounts

Years ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Recognized Recognized

Under Under

Previous New Previously

Method Method Adjusted Reported Adjusted

Previously

Reported

Income Statement In formation

Cost of services and sales

Selling general and administrative expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

Income before provision benefit for income taxes

Provision benefit for income taxes

Net income

Net income loss attributable to Verizon

Basic Earnings Loss Per Common Share

Net income loss attributable to Verizon

Diluted Earnings Loss Per Common Share

Net income loss attributable to Verizon

At December 31

45127 44149 44299 44579 39007 38615

31298 31366 32950 30717 26898 41517

16400 16405 16532 16534 14565 14610

11780 12684 11568 13520 15914 1643

2094 2467 1210 1919 3331 2319

9686 10217 10358 11601 12583 3962

2018 2549 3651 4894 6428 2193

0.71 0.90 1.29 1.72 2.26 0.77

0.71 0.90 1.29 1.72 2.26 0.77

2010 2009

Recognized Recognized

Under Under

Previous New Previously

Method Method Reoorted Adjusted

14168 4368 17592 7260

8443 1049 11479 1372
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements conunued

NOTE

ACQUISITIONS

Acquisition of Ailtel Corporation

On June 2008 Verizon Wireless entered into an agreement and plan

of merger with Ailtel Corporation Ailtel provider of wireless voice

and data services to consumer and business customers in 34 states and

its controlling stockholder Atlantis Holdings LLC an affiliate of private

investment firms TPG Capital and GS Capital Partners to acquire in an

all-cash merger 100% of the equity of Alitel for cash consideration of $5.9

billion and the assumption of approximately $24 billion of aggregate

principal amount of Ailtel debt Verizon Wireless closed the transaction

on January 2009

We have completed the appraisals necessary to assess the fair values of

the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed the

fair value of noncontrolling interests and the amount of goodwill recog

nized as of the acquisition date

The fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed were deter

mined using the income cost and market approaches The fair value

measurements were primarily based on significant inputs that are not

observable in the market other than interest rate swaps see Note 10

and long-term debt assumed in the acquisition The income approach

was primarily used to value the intangible assets consisting primarily

of wireless licenses and customer relationships The cost approach was

used as appropriate for plant property and equipment The market

approach which indicates value for subject asset based on available

market pricing for comparable assets was utilized in combination with

the income approach for certain acquired investments Additionally Alitel

historically conducted business operations in certain markets through

non-wholly owned entities Managed Partnerships The fair value of the

noncontrolling interests in these Managed Partnerships as of the acquisi

tion date of approximately $0.6 billion was estimated by using market

approach The fair value of the majority of the long-term debt assumed

and held was primarily valued using quoted market prices

In December 2008 Verizon Wireless and Verizon Wireless Capital LLC as

the borrowers entered into $1 7.0 billion credit facility Bridge Facility

On January 2009 Verizon Wireless borrowed $12.4 billion under the

Bridge Facility in order to complete the acquisition of AlItel and repay

portion of the approximately $24 billion of Alitel debt assumed Verizon

Wire ess used cash generated from operations and the net proceeds

from the sale of notes in private placements issued in February 2009 May

2009 and June 2009 to repay the borrowings under the Bridge Facility

see Note The Bridge Facility
and the commitments under the Bridge

Facility
have been terminated

The following table summarizes the consideration paid and the allocation

of the assets acquired including cash acquired of $1.0 billion and liabili

ties assumed as of the close of the acquisition as well as the fair value at

the acquisition date of Alitels noncontrolling partnership interests

Liabilities assumed

Current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxes and other liabilities

Total liabilities assumed

Net assets acquired

Noncontrolling interest

Contributed capital

Total cash consideration

dollars in millions

Included in the above purchase price allocation is $2.1 billion of net

assets that were divested as condition of the regulatory approval as

described below

Wireless licenses have an indefinite life and accordingly are not sub

ject to amortization The weighted average period prior to renewal of

these licenses at acquisition was approximately 5.7 years The customer

relationships included in Intangible assets subject to amortization are

being amortized using an accelerated method over years and other

intangibles are being amortized on straight-line basis or an acceler

ated method over period of to years At the time of the acquisition

goodwill of approximately $1.4 billion was expected to be deductible for

tax purposes

A//tel Divestiture Markets

As condition of the regulatory approvals by the Department of Justice

DOJ and the FCC to complete the acquisition in January 2009 Verizon

Wireless was required to divest overlapping properties in 105 operating

markets in 24 states Alitel Divestiture Markets Total assets and total lia

bilities divested were $2.6 billion and $0.1 billion respectively principally

comprised of network assets wireless licenses and customer relation

ships that were included in Prepaid expenses and other current assets

and Other current liabilities respectively on the accompanying consoli

dated balance sheet at December 31 2009

On May 82009 Verizon Wireless entered into definitive agreement with

ATT Mobility LLC ATT Mobility subsidiary of ATT Inc pursuant to

which ATT Mobility agreed to acquire 79 of the 105 Alltel Divestiture

Markets including licenses and network assets for approximately $2.4

billion in cash On June 2009 Verizon Wireless entered into defini

tive agreement with Atlantic Tele-Network Inc ATN pursuant to which

ATN agreed to acquire the remaining 26 AlItel Divestiture Markets

including licenses and network assets for $0.2 billion in cash During

the second quarter of 2010 Verizon Wireless completed both transac

tions Upon completion of the divestitures we recorded tax charge of

approximately $0.2 billion for the taxable gain associated with the Alitel

Divestiture Markets

Assets acquired

Current assets

Plant property and equipment

Wireless licenses

Goodwill

Intangible assets subject to amortization

Other assets

Total assets acquired

2760

3513

9444

16353

2391

2444

36905

1833

23929

5032

30794

6111

519

333

5925
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Pro Forma In formation

The unaudited pro forma information presents the combined operating

results of Verizon and Alitel with the results prior to the acquisition date

adjusted to include the pro forma impact of the elimination oftransactions

between Verizon and AlItel the adjustment of amortization of intangible

assets and depreciation of fixed assets based on the purchase price alloca

tion the elimination of merger expenses and management fees incurred

by AlItel and the adjustment of interest expense reflecting the assump

tion and partial redemption of Ailtels debt and incremental borrowing

incurred by Verizon Wireless to complete the acquisition of AlItel

The unaudited pro forma results are presented for illustrative purposes

only and do not reflect the realization of potential cost savings or any

related integration costs These pro forma results do not purport to be

indicative of the results that would have actually been obtained if the

merger had occurred as of January 2008 nor does the pro forma data

intend to be projection of results that may be obtained in the future

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations

assume that the acquisition of Ailtel was completed as of January 12008

dollars in millions except per share amounts

Year ended December 31 2008

Loss per common share from net loss attributable to Verizon

Basic

Diluted

Terremark Worldwide Inc

On January 27 2011 Verizon announced that it had entered into

definitive agreement to acquire all of the common stock ofTerremark

Worldwide Inc global provider of IT infrastructure and cloud ser

vices for $19 per share in cash or approximately $1.4 billion Terremark

had approximately $0.5 billion of debt outstanding as of December 31

2010 The acquisition which is subject to the satisfaction of conditions

including the receipt of regulatory approval is expected to close in the

first quarter of 2011 The acquisition will enhance Verizons offerings to

governmental and large enterprise customers

Merger Integration and Acquisition Related Charges

During 2010 we recorded pre-tax merger integration charges of $0.9

billion primarily related to the Alltel acquisition These charges primarily

related to the decommissioning of overlapping cell sites preacquisition

contingencies handset conversions and trade name amortization

During 2009 we recorded pre-tax merger integration and acquisition

charges of $1.2 billion.These charges primarily related to the Ailtel acqui

sition and were comprised of trade name amortization re-branding

initiatives and handset conversions The charges during 2009 were also

comprised of transaction fees and costs associated with the acquisition

including fees related to the credit facility that was entered into and uti

lized to complete the acquisition

During 2008 we recorded pre-tax charges of $0.2 billion primarily

comprised of systems integration activities and other costs related to re

75
branding initiatives facility

exit costs and advertising associated with the

.75
MCI acquisition

Consolidated results of operations reported for the year ended December

31 2009 were not significantly different than the pro forma consolidated

results of operations assuming the acquisition of Alitel was completed

on January 12009

Acquisition of Rural Cellular Corporation

On August 2008 Verizon Wireless acquired 100% of the outstanding

common stock and redeemed all of the preferred stock of Rural Cellular

Corporation Rural Cellular in cash transaction valued at approximately

$1.3 billion The final purchase price allocation primarily resulted in $1.1

billion of wireless licenses and $0.9 billion in goodwill Rural Cellular was

wireless communications service provider operating under the trade

name ofUnicel7 focusing primarily on rural markets in the United States

As part of its regulatory approval for the Rural Cellular acquisition the FCC

and DOJ required the divestiture of six operating markets On December

22 2008 we exchanged assets acquired from Rural Cellular and an addi

tional cellular license with ATT for assets having total aggregate value

of approximately $0.5 billion

Other

On August 23 2010 Verizon Wireless acquired the net assets and related

customers of six operating markets in Louisiana and Mississippi in trans

action with ATT Inc for cash consideration of $0.2 billion These assets

were acquired to enhance Verizon Wireless network coverage in these

operating markets The preliminary purchase price allocation primarily

resulted in $0.1 billion of wireless licenses and $0.1 billion in goodwill

Operating revenues

Net loss attributable to Verizon

$106509

2140
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

NOTE

DISPOSITIONS

Frontier Transaction

On May 13 2009 we announced plans to spin off newly formed sub

sidiary of Verizon Spinco to our stockholders and for Spinco to merge

with Frontier Communications Corporation Frontier immediately fol

lowing the spin-off pursuant to definitive agreement with Frontier with

Frontier to be the surviving corporation

On July 2010 after receiving regulatory approval we completed the

spin-off of the shares of Spinco to Verizon stockholders and the merger of

Spinco with Frontier resulting in Verizon stockholders collectively owning

approximately 68 percent of Frontiers equity which was outstanding

immediately following the merger Frontier issued approximately 678.5

million shares of Frontier common stock in the aggregate to Verizon

stockholders in the merger and Verizon stockholders received one share

of Frontier common stock for every 4.165977 shares ofVerizon common

stock they owned as of June 2010 Verizon stockholders received cash

in lieu of any fraction of share of Frontier common stock to which they

otherwise were entitled

At the time of the spin-off and the merger Spinco held defined assets

and liabilities of the local exchange business and related landline activi

ties of Verizon in Arizona Idaho Illinois Indiana Michigan Nevada

North Carolina Ohio Oregon South Carolina Washington West Virginia

and Wisconsin and in portions of California bordering Arizona Nevada

and Oregon including Internet access and long distance services and

broadband video provided to designated customers in those areas The

transactions did not involve any assets or liabilities of Verizon Wireless

The merger resulted in Frontier acquiring approximately million access

lines and certain related businesses from Verizon which collectively

generated revenues of approximately $4 billion for Verizons Wireline seg

ment during 2009 and approximately $1.7 billion of revenue for Verizons

Wireline segment during the six months ended June 30 2010

Pursuant to the terms ofVerizons equity incentive plans shortly following

the closing of the spin-off and the merger the number of outstanding

and unvested restricted stock units RSUs and performance stock units

PSUs held by current and former Verizon employees including Verizon

employees who became employees of Frontier in connection with the

merger was increased to reflect number of additional units approxi

mately equal to the cash value of the Frontier common stock that the

holders of the RSU5 and PSUs would have received with respect to hypo

thetical shares of Verizon common stock subject to awards under those

plans In addition the exercise prices and number of shares of Verizon

common stock underlying stock options to purchase shares of Verizon

common stock previously granted to employees under equity incentive

plans were adjusted pursuant to the terms of those plans to take into

account the decrease in the value ofVerizon common stock immediately

following the spin-off and merger

The total value of the transaction to Verizon and its stockholders was

approximately $8.6 billion Verizon stockholders received $5.3 billion in

Frontier common stock based on the valuation formula contained in

the merger agreement
with Frontier as described above and Verizon

received $3.3 billion in aggregate value comprised of $3.1 billion in the

form of special cash payment from Spinco and $0.3 billion in reduc

tion in Verizons consolidated indebtedness During July 2010 Verizon

used the proceeds from the special cash payment to reduce its con

solidated indebtedness see Note The accompanying consolidated

financial statements for the year ended December 31 2010 include these

operations prior to the completion of the spin-off on July 2010 The

spin-off decreased Goodwill and Total equity by approximately $0.6 bil

lion and $1.9 billion respectively

On April 122010 Spinco completed financing of $3.2 billion in principal

amount of notes The gross proceeds of the offering were deposited into

an escrow account Immediately prior to the spin-off on July 2010 the

funds in the escrow account representing the net cash proceeds from the

offering were released to Verizon.These proceeds are reflected in the con

solidated statement of cash flows as Proceeds from access line spin-off

Verizon received ruling from the Internal Revenue Service confirming

that both the spin-off and the merger qualify as tax-free transactions for

U.S tax purposes except to the extent that cash is paid to Verizon share

holders in lieu of fractional shares In addition Verizon received ruling

from Canada Revenue Agency confirming that the spin-off qualifies as

tax-free transaction for Canadian tax purposes

During 2010 and 2009 we recorded pre-tax charges of $0.5 billion and

$0.2 billion respectively primarily for costs incurred related to network

non-network software and other activities to enable the divested mar

kets in the transaction with Frontier to operate on stand-alone basis

subsequent to the closing of the transaction and professional advisory

and legal fees in connection with this transaction Also included during

2010 are fees related to early extinguishment of debt During 2009 we

also recorded pre-tax charges of $0.2 billion for costs incurred related to

our Wireline cost reduction initiatives

FairPoint Transaction

On March 31 2008 we completed the spin-off of the shares of Northern

New England Spinco Inc to Verizon shareowners and the merger of

Northern New England Spinco Inc with FairPoint Communications Inc

As result of the spin-off our net debt was reduced by approximately

$1.4 billion The consolidated statements of income for the periods pre

sented include the results of operations of the local exchange and related

business assets in Maine New Hampshire and Vermont through the date

of completion of the spin-off

During 2008 we recorded charges of $0.1 billion for costs incurred related

to the separation of the wireline facilities and operations in Maine New

Hampshire and Vermont from Verizon at the closing of the transaction

as well as for professional advisory and legal fees in connection with

this transaction



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

NOTE

WIRELESS LICENSES GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Wireless Licenses

Changes in the carrying amount of wireless licenses are as follows

dollars in millions

BaInce at December 31 2008

Wireless licenses acquired Note

Capitalized interest on wireless licenses

Reclassifications adjustments and other

Balance at December 31 2009

Wireless licenses acquired Note

Capitalized interest on wireless licenses

Reclassifications adjustments and other

Balance at December 312010

During the years ended December 312010 and 2009 approximately $12.2 billion of wireless licenses were under development for commercial service

for which we were capitalizing interest costs In December 2010 portion of these licenses were placed in service Accordingly approximately $3.3

billion of wireless licenses continue to be under development for commercial service

During 2008 Verizon Wireless was the winning bidder in the FCC auction of spectrum in the 700 MHz band and paid the FCC $9.4 billion to acquire

109 licenses in the 700 MHz band

The average remaining renewal period of our wireless license portfolio was 6.9 years as of December 31 2010 see Note Goodwill and Other

Intangible Assets Intangible Assets Not Subject to Amortization

Goodwill

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows

Domestic

Wireless Wireline

Balance at December 31 2008

Acquisitions Note

Reclassifications adjustments and other

Balance at December 31 2009

Acquisitions Note

Dispositions Note

Reclassifications adjustments and other

Balance at December 31 2010

6035

1635

84

22472

131

614

21.988

Reclassifications adjustments and other in Domestic Wireless during 2009 relate to the finalization of the Rural Cellular purchase accounting

Other intangible assets

Customer lists to years

Non-network internal-use software to years

Other to 25 years

Total

Years

2010

2009

2008

At December 312010

Gross Accumulated Net

Amount Amortization Amount

1970 2011

1383 2012

2013

2014

2015

dollars irs millions

At December31 2009

Net

Amount

dollars in millions

1656

1335

1100

729

512

61974

9444

730

81
72067

178

748

72996

dollars in millions

Total

1297

16353

88

17738

131

4738

4734

Other Intangible Assets

The following table displays the composition of other intangible assets

614

17869 4119

3150

8446

Gross Accumulated

Amount Amortization

1551
4614

486
6.651

The amortization expense for other intangible assets was as follows

1599

3832

399

5830

3134

8455

865

12454

885

12481

1012

4346

332

5690

dollars in millionsi
follows

Years

2122

4109

533

6.764

1812

Estimated annual amortization expense for other intangible assets is as
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Notes to ConsoHdated Fina ncial Statements continued

NOTE

PLANT PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The following table displays the details of Plant property and equipment
which is stated at cost

NOTE

dollars in millions

2010 2009

865 925

21064 21492

170086 184547

8301 9083

4375 4194

4816 4694

2148 4808

211655 229743

123944 137758

87711 91985

INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED BUSINESSES

Our investments in unconsolidated businesses are comprised of the

following

Equity Investees

Vodafone Omnitel

Other

Total equity investees

Cost Investees Various

Total investments in

unconsolidated businesses

2002 1978

1471 1130

3473 3108

24 10

Dividends and repatriations of foreign earnings received from these

investees amounted to $0.5 billion in 2010 $0.9 billion in 2009 and $0.8

billion in 2008

Equity Method Investments

Vodafone Omnitel

Vodafone Omnitel NV Vodafone Omnitel is the second largest wireless

communications company in
Italy

At December 31 2010 and 2009 our

investment in Vodafone Omnitel included goodwill of $1.1 billion

Other Equity Investees

We have limited partnership investments in entities that invest in afford

able housing projects for which we provide funding as limited partner

and receive tax deductions and tax credits based on our partnership

interests At December31 2010 and 2009 we had equity investments in

these partnerships of $1.2 billion and $0.9 billion respectively We adjust

the carrying value of these investments for any losses incurred by the

limited partnerships through earnings

The remaining investments include wireless partnerships in the U.S and

other smaller domestic and international investments

Cost Method Investments

Some of our cost investments are carried at their current market value

Other cost investments are carried at their original cost if the current

market value is not readily determinable We do however adjust the car

rying value of these securities in cases where we have determined that

decline in their estimated market value is other-than-temporary

Summarized Financial Information

Summarized financial information for our equity investees is as follows

Balance Sheet

At December 31 2010

Current assets 3620 3588
Noncurrent assets 7568 8179
Totalassets 11188 11767

Current liabilities 5509 6804

Noncurrent liabilities 49

Equity 5671 4914
Total liabilities and equity 11188 11767

Income Statement

dollars in millions

Years Ended December31 2010 2009 2008

Net revenue 12356 12903 13077

Operating income 4156 4313 3820
Net income 2563 2717 2634

NOTE

NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

Noncontrolling interests in equity of subsidiaries were as follows

dollars in millions

At December31 2010 2009

Wireless Joint Venture

Our Domestic Wireless segment Celico Partnership doing business

as Verizon Wireless Verizon Wireless is joint venture formed in April

2000 by the combination of the U.S wireless operations and interests of

Verizon and Vodafone Verizon owns controlling 55% interest in Verizon

Wireless and Vodafone owns the remaining 45%

At December 31

Land

Buildings and equipment

Network equipment

Furniture office and data processing equipment

Work in progress

Leasehold improvements

Vehicles and other

Less accumulated depreciation

Total

dollars in millions

2009

At December 31

dollars in millions

Ownership 2010 2009

23.1%

Various

3497 3118

Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries

Verizon Wireless

Wireless partnerships

47557 41950

786 811

48343 42.76
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

NOTE

LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

Minimum lease payments receivable

Estimated residual value

Unearned income

Total

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Finance lease receivables net

Prepaid expenses and other

Other assets

Leveraged Direct Finance

Leases Leases

Accumulated deferred taxes arising from leveraged leases which are

included in Deferred income taxes amounted to $2.0 billion at December
31 2010 and $2.1 billion at December 31 2009

The following table is summary of the components of income from

leveraged leases

dollars in millions

Years Ended December31 2010 2009 2008

The future minimum lease payments to be received from noncancelable

capital leases direct financing and leveraged leases net of nonrecourse

loan payments related to leveraged leases and allowances for doubtful

accounts along with payments relating to operating leases for the

periods shown at December 31 2010 are as follows

dollars in millions

capital Operating

Years Leases Leases

194 109

156 89

151 71

129 51

85 26

1800
_______

40

2.515 386

As Lessee

We lease certain facilities and equipment for use in our operations under

both capital and operating leases Total rent expense under operating
leases amounted to $2.5 billion in 2010 and 2009 and $2.2 billion in 2008

Amortization of capital leases is included in Depreciation and amortiza

tion expense in the consolidated statements of income Capital lease

amounts included in Plant property and equipment are as follows

dollars in millionsi

At December 31 2010 2009

capital leases

Less accumulated amortization

Total

The aggregate minimum rental commitments under noncancelable

leases for the periods shown at December 31 2010 are as follows

dollars in millions

capital Operating

Years Leases Leases

2014

2015

Thereafter

Total minimum rental commitments

Less interest and executory costs

Present value of minimum lease payments

Less current installments

Long-term obligation at December 312010

As of December 31 2010 the total minimum sublease rentals to be

received in the future under noncancelable operating subleases was not

significant

As Lessor

We are the lessor in leveraged and direct financing lease agreements for commercial aircraft power generating facilities telecommunications equip
ment real estate property and other equipment These leases have remaining terms of up to 40 years as of December 31 2010 In addition we lease

space on certain of our cell towers to other wireless carriers Minimum lease payments receivable represent unpaid rentals less principal and interest

orrthird-party nonrecourse debt relating to leveraged lease transactions Since we have no general liability
for this debt which holds senior security

interest in the leased equipment and rentals the related principal and interest have been offset against the minimum lease payments receivable in

accordance with GAAP All recourse debt is reflected in our consolidated balance sheets

At each reporting period we monitor the credit quality of the various lessees in our portfolios Regarding the leveraged lease portfolio external credit

reports are used where available and where not available we use internally developed indicators These indicators or internal credit risk grades factor

historic loss experience the value of the underlying collateral delinquency trends industry and general economic conditions The credit quality of
our lessees vary from AAA to B- All accounts are current as of the end of this reporting period For each reporting period the leveraged leases within
the portfolio are reviewed for indicators of impairment where it is probable the rent due according to the contractual terms of the lease will not be
collected Currently there are no impaired leases

Finance lease receivables which are included in Prepaid expenses and other and Other assets in our consolidated balance sheets are comprised of
the following

dollars in millions

AtDecember3l 2010 2009

Leveraged Direct Finance

Leases LeasesTotal
Total

2360 155 2515 2504 166 2670
1305 1312 1410 12 1422

1140 20 1160 1251 19 1270
2525 142 2667 2663 159 2822

152

2515

59

2456

2515

158

2664

72

2592

2664

Pretax income

Income tax expense

74 83 74

32 34 30

321 357

79 126

242 231

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Thereafter

Total

2011

2012

2013

97 1898

74 1720

70 1471

54 1255

42 1012

81 5277

418 12633

86

332

75

257

56



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

NOTE

DEBT

Long-term debt maturing within one year

Commercial paper

Total debt maturing within one year

At December 31 2010 there was no commercial paper outstanding The weighted average interest rate for our commercial paper outstanding at

December 31 2009 was 0.7%

Capital expenditures primarily acquisition and construction of network assets are partially financed pending long-term financing through bank loans

and the issuance of commercial paper payable within 12 months

On April 142010 we terminated all commitments under our previous $5.3 billion 364-day credit
facility

with syndicate of lenders and entered into

new $6.2 billion three-year credit facility with group of major financial institutions As of December31 2010 the unused borrowing capacity under

the three-year credit
facility was approximately $6.1 billion

Long-Term Debt

Outstanding long-term debt obligations are as follows

At December31 Interest Rates Maturities

dollars in millionsi

2010 2009

Verizon Communications notes payable and other 4.35 5.50 2011 2018 6062 6196

5.55 6.90 2012 2038 10441 10386

7.35 8.95 2012 2039 7677 9671

3.75 5.55 2011 2014 7000 7000

7.38 8.88 2011 2018 5975 6118

Floating 2011 1250 6246

2334

8797

1449

1080

1700

6.50 7.88 2012 2032 2315

6.84 8.75 2018 2028 1700

Verizon Wireless notes payable and other

Verizon Wireless AlItel assumed notes

Telephone subsidiaries debentures

Other subsidiaries debentures and other

Employee stock ownership plan loans 23

332

224

52794

7542

45252

397

241

61156

6105

5505

Changes to debt during 2010 are as follows

Debt Maturing

within One Year

Long-term

Debt
dollars in millions

Total

BalanceatJanuary 12010 7205 55051 62256

Repayments of long-term borrowings and capital lease obligations 6118 2018 8136
Decrease in short-term obligations excluding current maturities 1097 1097
Reclassifications of long-term debt 7362 7362
Other 190 419 229

BalanceatDecember3l2010 7542 45252 52794

Debt maturing within one year is as follows

dollars in millions

At December31 2010 2009

7542 6105

1100

7542 7205

4.63 7.00 2011 2033 7937

7.15 7.88 2012 2032 1449

8.00 8.75 2011 2031 880

Capital lease obligations average rates of 6.8% and 6.3% respectively

Unamortized discount net of premium

Total long-term debt including current maturities

Less long-term debt maturing within one year

Total long-term debt
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Notes Payable and Other

2010

During July 2010 Verizon received approximately $3.1 billion in cash in

connection with the completion of the spin-off and merger of Spinco

see Note 3.This special cash payment was subsequently used to redeem

$2.0 billion of 7.25% Verizon Communications Notes due December 2010

at redemption price of 102.7% of the principal amount of the notes

plus accrued and unpaid interest through the date of redemption as well

as other short-term borrowings In addition during 2010 Verizon repaid

$0.2 billion of floating rate vendor financing debt

During 2011 $0.5 billion of 5.35% Verizon Communications notes

matured and were repaid and Verizon utilized $0.3 billion of fixed rate

vendor financing facility

2009

During 2009 Verizon issued $1.8 billion of 6.35% notes due 2019 and

$1.0 billion of 7.35% Notes due 2039 resulting in cash proceeds of $2.7

billion net of discounts and issuance costs which was used to reduce

our commercial paper borrowings repay maturing debt and for gen

eral corporate purposes In January 2009 Verizon utilized $0.2 billion

floating rate vendor financing facility
In addition during 2009 $0.5 billion

of floating rate Notes due 2009 and $0.1 billion of 8.23% Verizon Notes

matured and were repaid

Verizon Wireless Notes Payable and Other

Verizon Wireless Capital LLC wholly owned subsidiary of Verizon

Wireless is limited liability company formed under the laws of Delaware

on December 2001 as special purpose finance subsidiary to facilitate

the offering of debt securities ofVerizon Wireless by acting as co-issuer

Other than the financing activities as co-issuer of Verizon Wireless

indebtedness Verizon Wireless Capital LLC has no material assets opera

tions or revenues Verizon Wireless is jointly and severally liable with

Verizon Wireless Capital LLC for co-issued notes as indicated below

2010

On June 28 2010 Verizon Wireless exercised its right to redeem the out

standing $1.0 billion of aggregate floating rate notes due June 2011 at

redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the notes plus

accrued and unpaid interest through the date of redemption In addition

during 2010 Verizon Wireless repaid the remaining $4.0 billion of bor

rowings that were outstanding under $4.4 billion Three-Year Term Loan

Facility Agreement with maturity date of September 2011 Three-Year

Term Loan Facility No borrowings remain outstanding under this facility

as of December 31 2010 and this facility
has been cancelled

2009

During November 2009 Verizon Wireless and Verizon Wireless Capital LLC

completed an exchange offer to exchange privately placed notes issued

in November 2008 and February and May 2009 for new notes with sim

ilar terms

In June 2009 Verizon Wireless issued $1.0 billion aggregate principal

amount of floating rate notes due 2011

In May 2009 Verizon Wireless and Verizon Wireless Capital LLC co-issued

$4.0 billion aggregate principal amount of two-year fixed and floating

rate notes in private placement resulting in cash proceeds of approxi

mately $4.0 billion net of discounts and issuance costs In February 2009

Verizon Wireless and Verizon Wireless Capital LLC co-issued $4.3 billion

aggregate principal amount of three and five-year fixed rate notes in

private placement resulting in cash proceeds of $4.2 billion net of dis

counts and issuance costs

In August 2009 Verizon Wireless repaid $0.4 billion of borrowings that

were outstanding under the Three-Year Term Loan Facility reducing the

outstanding borrowings under this facility to $4.0 billion as of December

31 2009

Telephone and Other Subsidiary Debt

During 2010 $0.3 billion of 6.1 25% and $0.2 billion of 8.625% Verizon New

York Inc Debentures $0.2 billion of 6.375% Verizon North Inc Debentures

and $0.2 billion of6.3%Verizon Northwest Inc Debentures matured and

were repaid During 2009 we redeemed $0.1 billion of6.8%Verizon New

Jersey Inc Debentures $0.3 billion of 6.7% Debentures and $0.2 billion of

5.5%Verizon California Inc Debentures and $0.2 billion of 5.875% Verizon

New England Inc .Debentures In April 2009 we redeemed $0.5 billion of

7.51% GTE Corporation Debentures

Guarantees

We guarantee the debt obligations of GTE Corporation but not the debt

of its subsidiary or affiliate companies that were issued and outstanding

prior to July 2003 As of December 31 2010 $1.7 billion principal

amount of these obligations remain outstanding

Debt Covenants

We and our consolidated subsidiaries are in compliance with all debt

covenants

Maturities of Lang-Term Debt

Maturities of long-term debt outstanding at December 31 2010 are as

follows

Years
dollars in millionsl

2011

2012

2013

2014

7542

5902

5915

3529

1201

Thereafter 28705

2015
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

NOTE 10

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table presents the balances of assets measured at fair value

on recurring basis as of December 31 2010

Assets

Short-term investments

Equity securities

Fixed income securities

Other current assets

Interest rate swaps

Cross currency swaps

dollars in millions

Level Level Level Total

285

766 971

278 278

108

101

2337

Equity securities consist of investments in common stock of domestic

and international corporations in variety of industry sectors and are

generally measured using quoted prices in active markets and are clas

sified as Level

and agencies as well as municipal bonds We use quoted prices in active

markets for our U.S Treasury securities and therefore these securities are

classified as Level For all other fixed income securities that do not have

quoted prices in active markets we use alternative matrix pricing as prac

tical expedient resulting in these debt securities being classified as Level

market parameters for all substantial terms of our derivative contracts

and thus are classified within Level We use mid-market pricing for fair

value measurements of our derivative instruments

We recognize transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the

end of the reporting period There were no transfers within the fair value

hierarchy during 2010

Fair Value of Short-term and Long-term Debt

The fair value of our short-term and long-term debt excluding capital

leases is determined based on market quotes for similar terms and matur

ities or future cash flows discounted at current rates The fair value of our

short-term and long-term debt excluding capital leases was as follows

Short and long-term debt

dollars in millions

2010 2009

Carrying Carrying

Amount FairValue Amount Fair Value

Derivatives

Interest Rate Swaps

We have entered into domestic interest rate swaps to achieve targeted

mix of fixed and variable rate debt where we principally receive fixed rates

and pay variable rates based on London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR
These swaps are designated as fair value hedges and hedge against

changes in the fair value of our debt portfolio We record the interest

rate swaps at fair value on our consolidated balance sheets as assets and

liabilities Changes in the fair value of the interest rate swaps are recorded

to Interest expense which are offset by changes in the fair value of the

debt due to changes in interest rates The fair value of these contracts

was $0.3 billion and $0.2 billion at December 31 2010 and December 31

2009 respectively and are primarily included in Other assets and Long-

term debt As of December 31 2010 the total notional amount of these

interest rate swaps was $6.0 billion During February 2011 we entered

into interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges with notional

amount of approximately $3.0 billion

Cross Currency Swaps

Verizon Wireless has entered into cross currency swaps designated as

cash flow hedges to exchange approximately $2.4 billion British Pound

Sterling and Euro denominated debt into U.S dollars and to fix our future

interest and principal payments in U.S dollars as well as mitigate the

impact of foreign currency transaction gains or losses The fair value of

these swaps included primarily in Other assets was approximately $0.1

billion and $0.3 billion at December 31 2010 and December 31 2009

respectively During 2010 and 2009 pre-tax loss of $0.2 billion and

pre tax gain of $0.3 billion respectively was recognized in Other compre

hensive income portion of which was reclassified to Other income and

expense net to offset the related pre-tax foreign currency transaction

gain on the underlying debt obligations

Prepaid Forward Agreement

During the first quarter of 2009 we entered into privately negotiated

prepaid forward agreement for 14 million shares of Verizon common

stock at cost of approximately $0.4 billion We terminated the prepaid

forward agreement with respect to million of the shares during the

fourth quarter of 2009 and million of the shares during the first quarter

of 2010 which resulted in the delivery of those shares toVerizon

Al/tel Interest Rate Swaps

As result of the Ailtel acquisitionVerizon Wireless acquired seven interest

rate swap agreements with notional value of $9.5 billion that paid fixed

and received variable rates based on three-month and one-month LIBOR

with maturities ranging from 2009 to 2013 During 2009 we settled all of

these agreements for gain that was not significant Changes in the fair

value of these swaps were recorded in earnings through settlement

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that subject us to concentrations of credit risk con
sist primarily of temporary cash investments short-term and long-term

investments trade receivables certain notes receivable including lease

receivables and derivative contracts Our policy is to deposit our tem

porary cash investments with major financial institutions Counterparties

to our derivative contracts are also major financial institutions The finan

cial institutions have all been accorded high ratings by primary rating

agencies We limit the dollar amount of contracts entered into with any

one financial institution and monitor our counterparties credit ratings

We generally do not give or receive collateral on swap agreements due

to our credit rating and those of our counterparties While we may be

exposed to credit losses due to the nonperformance of our counterpar

ties we consider the risk remote and do not expect the settlement of

these transactions to have material effect on our results of operations

or financial condition

42

Other assets

Equity securities

Fixed income securities

Interest rate swaps

Forward interest rate swaps

Cross currency swaps

Total

285

205

281 281

256 264 Forward Interest Rate Swaps

In order to manage our exposure to future interest rate changes during

42 2010 we entered into forward interest rate swaps with total notional

value of $1.4 billion We have designated these contracts as cash flow

hedges The fair value of these contracts was $0.1 billion at December

31 2010 and the contracts are included in Other assets On or before

February 2011 Verizon terminated these forward interest rate swaps

779

108

101

1558

Fixed income securities consist primarily of investments in U.S Treasuries

Derivative contracts are valued using models based on readily observable

At December31

excluding capital leases 52462 59020 61859 67359
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

NOTE 11

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Verizon Communications Long-Term Incentive Plan

The 2009 Verizon Communications Inc Long-Term Incentive Plan the

Plan permits the granting of stock options stock appreciation rights

restricted stock restricted stock units performance shares performance

stock units and other awards The maximum number of shares available

for awards from the Plan is 119.6 million shares

Restricted Stock Units

The Plan provides for grants of Restricted Stock Units RSUs that generally

vest at the end of the third year after the grant The RSUs granted prior

to January 12010 are classified as liability
awards because the RSUs will

be paid in cash upon vesting The RSU award
liability

is measured at its

fair value at the end of each reporting period and therefore will fluctuate

based on the performance ofVerizon common stock The RSUs granted

subsequent to January 2010 are classified as equity awards because

these RSUs will be paid in Verizon common stock upon vesting The RSU

equity awards are measured using the grant date fair value of Verizon

common stock and are not remeasured at the end of each reporting

period Dividend equivalent units are also paid to participants at the time

the RSU award is paid and in the same proportion as the RSU award

Performance Stock Units

The Plan also provides for grants of Performance Stock Units PSUs that

generally vest at the end of the third year after the grant As defined by

the Plan the Human Resources Committee of the Board of Directors

determines the number of PSUs participant earns based on the extent

to which the corresponding goal has been achieved over the three-year

performance cycle All payments are subject to approval by the Human

Resources Committee The PSUs are classified as liability awards because

the PSU awards are paid in cash upon vesting The PSU award liability is

measured at its fair value at the end of each reporting period and there

fore will fluctuate based on the price of Verizon common stock as well

as performance relative to the targets Dividend equivalent units are also

paid to participants at the time that the PSU award is determined and

paid and in the same proportion as the PSU award

The following table summarizes Verizons Restricted Stock Unit and

Performance Stock Unit activity

Restricted Performance

shares in thousands Stock Units Stock Units

Outstanding January 2008 21573 32135

Granted 7277 11194

Payments 6869 7597

Cancelled/Forfeited 161 2518

Outstanding December 31 2008 21820 33214

Granted 7101 14079

Payments 9357 17141

Cancelled/Forfeited 121 257

Outstanding December 31 2009 19443 29895

Granted 8422 17311

Payments 6788 14364
Cancelled/Forfeited 154 462
Outstanding December 31 2010 20923 32380

As of December 31 2010 unrecognized compensation expense related

to the unvested portion of Verizons RSUs and PSUs was approximately

$0.3 billion and is expected to be recognized over weighted-average

period of approximately two years

The RSUs granted in 2010 and classified as equity awards have weighted

average grant date fair value of $28.63 During 2010 2009 and 2008 we

paid $0.7 billion $0.9 billion and $0.6 billion respectively to settle RSUs

and PSUs classified as liability awards

Verizon Wireless Long-Term Incentive Plan

The 2000 Verizon Wireless Long-Term Incentive Plan the Wireless Plan

provides compensation opportunities to eligible employees of Verizon

Wireless the Partnership The Wireless Plan provides rewards that are tied

to the long-term performance of the Partnership Under the Wireless Plan

Value Appreciation Rights VARs were granted to eligible employees As

of December 31 2010 all VARs were fully vested We have not granted

new VARs since 2004

VARs reflect the change in the value of the Partnership as defined in the

Wireless Plan Similar to stock options the valuation is determined using

Black-Scholes model Once VARs become vested employees can exercise

their VARs and receive payment that is equal to the difference between

the VAR price on the date of grant and the VAR price on the date of exer

cise less applicable taxes VARs are fully
exercisable three years from the

date of grant with maximum term of 10 years All VARs were granted at

price equal to the estimated fair value of the Partnership as defined in

the Wireless Plan at the date of the grant
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The following table summarizes the assumptions used in the Black

Scholes model during 2010

Ranges

The risk-free rate is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the

time of the measurement date Expected volatility was based on blend of

the historical and implied volatility
of publicly traded peer companies for

period equal to the VARs expected life ending on the measurement date

The following table summarizes the Value Appreciation Rights activity

Outstanding rights January 2008

Exercised

Cancelled/Forfeited

Outstanding rights December 31 2008

Exercised

Cancelled/Forfeited

Outstanding rights December 31 2009

Exercised

Cancelled/Forfeited

Outstanding rights December 312010

Weighted-

Average

Grant-Date

VAR5 Fair Value

During 2010 2009 and 2008 we paid $0.1 billion $0.2 billion and $0.6

billion respectively to settle VARs classified as liability
awards

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

After-tax compensation expense for stock-based compensation related

to RSUs PSUs and VARs described above included in net income attribut

able to Verizon was $0.5 billion $0.5 billion and $0.4 billion for 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively

Stock Options

The Plan provides for grants of stock options to participants at an option

price per share of 100% of the fair market value ofVerizon common stock

on the date of grant Each grant has 10-year life vesting equally over

three-year period starting at the date of the grant We have not granted

new stock options since 2004

The following table summarizes Verizons stock option activity

Range of Stock Options

Exercise Prices in thousands

20.00 29.99 34 1.7 27.91

30.00 39.99 18146 2.6 35.02

40.00 49.99 9973 1.1 45.21

50.0059.99 18691 0.1 52.21

Total 56844 1.2 44.25

The total intrinsic value for stock options outstanding and stock options

exercised and the after-tax compensation expense for stock options was

not significant as of and for the years
ended December 31 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively

Risk-free rate

Expected term in years

Expected volatility

0.14% 0.88%

0.03 2.00

31.05% 47.56%

shares in thousands

Stock

ODtions

Weighted-

Average

Exercise

Price
shares in thousands

Outstanding January 12008 181858

Exercised 227

Cancelled/Forfeited 41473

Outstanding December31 2008 140158

Exercised

Cancelled/Forfeited 32391

Outstanding December 31 2009 107765

Exercised 372
Cancelled/Forfeited 50549

Outstanding December 312010 56844

60412

31817

351

28244

11442

211

16591

4947
75

11569

17.58

18.47

19.01

16.54

16.53

17.63

16.54

24.47

22.72

13.11

45.94

36.54

46.28

45.86

25.32

50.31

44.52

34.51

44.90

44.25

All stock options outstanding at December 3120102009 and 2008 were

exercisable

The following table summarizes information about Verizons stock options

outstanding as of December 31 2010

Weighted-

Average

Remaining Life

years

Weighted

Average

Exercise Price
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Notes to Consolidated Fina ncial Statements continued

NOTE 12

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

We maintain non-contributory defined benefit pension plans for many
of our employees In addition we maintain postretirement health care

and life insurance plans for our retirees and their dependents which

are both contributory and
non-contributory and include limit on the

Companys share of the cost for certain recent and future retirees We also

sponsor defined contribution savings plans to provide opportunities for

eligible employees to save for retirement on tax-deferred basis We use

measurement date of December31 for our pension and postretirement

health care and life insurance plans See Note regarding the change in

accounting for benefit plans

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Pension and other postretirement benefits for many of our employees

are subject to collective bargaining agreements Modifications in benefits

have been bargained from time to time and we may also periodically

amend the benefits in the management plans The following tables sum
marize benefit costs as well as the benefit obligations plan assets funded

status and rate assumptions associated with pension and postretirement

health care and life insurance benefit plans

Obligations and Funded Status

At December31

Change in Benefit

Obligations

Beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Plan amendments

Actuarial gain loss net

Benefits paid

Termination benefits

Curtailment gain loss net

Acquisitions and

divestitures net

Settlements paid

End of year

Change in Plan Assets

Beginning of year

Actual return on plan assets

Company contributions

Benefits paid

Settlements paid

Acquisitions and

divestitures net

End of year

Funded Status

End of year

dollars in millions

Health Care and Life

-- --

28592 27791 3091 2555

3089 4793 319 638

138 337 1210 1638

1996 2565 1675 1740
3458 1887

551 123

25814 28592 2945 3091

3403 3226 22773 24246

dollars in millions

Pension Health Care and Life

At December 31 2010 2009 2010 2009

Amounts recognized on the

balance sheet

Noncurrent assets

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Total

Amounts recognized in

Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Loss

Pretax

Prior service cost

Total

554 999 567 2667

554 999 567 2667

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans

was $28.5 billion and $30.8 billion at December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively

Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in

excess of plan assets follows

dollars in millions

AtDecember3l 2010 2009

398

146
3655
3.403

3141

139

6228

D77

581
22192
22773

542

23704

24.246

Pension

2010 2009

Beginning in 2013 as result of federal health care reform Verizon will

no longer file for the Retiree Drug Subsidy RDS and will instead contract

with Medicare Part plan on group basis to provide prescription drug
benefits to Medicare eligible retirees This change to our Medicare Part

strategy resulted in the adoption of plan amendments during the fourth

2010 2009 quarter of 2010 which will allow the company to be eligible for greater

Medicare Part plan subsidies over time

27337

305

1639

2580
826

1675

31818

353

1797

212
748

1996
687

61

581
3458

29217

27096

311

1766

469

1740

30394

384

1924

2056

2565

75

1245

192

1887

31.818

18

132 352

266

25.718 27337

Projected benefit obligation

Accumulated benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

28329

27752

24529

28719

28128

22352
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Years Ended December 31

Service cost

Amortization of prior service cost

Subtotal

Expected return on plan assets

Interest cost

Subtotal

Remeasurement gain loss net

Net periodic benefit income cost

Curtailment and termination benefits

Total

Discount rate

Expected return on plan assets

Rate of compensation increase

6.25%

8.50

4.00

Pension

2008 2010

Pension

2010 2009

51

dollars in millions

Health Care and Life

2009 2008

306

395

701

331

1663

2033

1069

3102

31

3.133

dollars in millions

Health Care and Life

2010 2009

167

In order to project the long-term target investment return for the total

portfolio estimates are prepared for the total return of each major asset

class over the subsequent 10-year period or longer Those estimates are

based on combination of factors including the current market interest

rates and valuation levels consensus earnings expectations historical

long-term risk premiums and value-added To determine the aggregate

return for the pension trust the projected return of each individual asset

class is then weighted according to the allocation to that investment area

in the trusts long-term asset allocation policy

Net Periodic Cost

The following table summarizes the benefit income cost related to our

pension and postretirement health care and life insurance plans

2010 2009

353

109

462

384

112

496

382

62

444

3444

1966

1034

13946

12912

32

12944

305

375

680

252
1639

2067

758

2825

386

3211

2176 2216

1797 1924

83 204

166 515

83 311

860 1371

777 1060

311

401

712

205

1766

2273

901

1372

532

904

Other pre-tax changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized

in other comprehensive income loss are as follows

At December 31

336
Prior service cost

Reversal of amortization items

Prior service cost

Total recognized in other comprehensive income loss pretax

The estimated prior service cost for the defined benefit pension plans

that will be amortized from Accumulated other comprehensive income

into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $0.1 billion The

estimated prior service cost for the defined benefit postretirement plans

that will be amortized from Accumulated other comprehensive loss into

net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $0.1 billion

Assumptions

The weighted-average assumptions used in determining benefit obliga

tions follow

2859

109 112 375 401

445 163 3234 568

Pension Health Care and Life

2010 2009 2010 2009
AtDecember3l

Discount rate
5.75% 6.25% 5.75% 6.25%

Rate of compensation increases 3.00 4.00 N/A N/A

The weighted-average assumptions used in determining net periodic

cost follow

Pension Health Care and Life

Years Ended December31 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

6.75% 6.50% 6.25% 6.75% 6.50%

8.50 8.50 8.25 8.25 8.25

4.00 4.00 N/A N/A 4.00
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Health Care and Life

2009 2008At December 31 2010

Healthcare cost trend rate assumed

for next year 7.75% 800% 9.00%

Rate to which cost trend rate

gradually declines 5.00 5.00 5.00

Year the rate reaches level it is assumed to

remain thereafter 2016 2014 2014

one-percentage-point change in the assumed health care cost trend

rate would have the following effects

dollars in millions

One-Percentage-Point Increase Decrease

Effect on 2010 service and interest cost

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation as of

December 31 2010

Plan Assets

Our portfolio strategy emphasizes long-term equity orientation signifi

cant global diversification the use of both public and private investments

and financial and operational risk controls Our diversification and risk

control processes serve to minimize the concentration of risk Assets are

allocated according to long-term risk and return estimates Both active

and passive management approaches are used depending on perceived

market efficiencies and various other factors

While target allocation percentages will vary over time the companys

overall investment strategy is to achieve mix of assets which allows us

to meet projected benefits payments while taking into consideration risk

and return The target allocations for plan assets are currently 46% public

equity 32% fixed income 14% private equity 6% real estate and 2% cash

Our target policies are revisited periodically to ensure they are in line with

fund objectives.There are no significant concentrations of risk in terms of

sector industry geography or company names

Pension and healthcare and life plans assets include Verizon common

stock of $0.1 billion at December 31 2010 and 2009

Pension Plans

The fair values for the pension plans by asset category at December 31

2010 are as follows

dollars in millions

Asset Category Total Level Level Level

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity securities

Fixed income securities

U.S Treasuries and agencies

Corporate bonds

International bonds

Other

Real estate 1769

Other

Private equity

Hedge funds

2175 2126 49

10158 9052 1106

dollars in millions

Asset Category Total Level Level Level

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity securities

Fixed income securities

U.S Treasuries and agencies

Corporate bonds

International bonds

Other

Real estate

Other

Private equity

Hedge funds

Total

The assumed Health Care Cost Trend Rates follow

599

1615

910

502

141 458

233 1202 180

20 890

502

1769

Total

5889

2197

25.814 11.572
232 191

2788 2303 The fair values for the pension plans by asset category at December 31

2009 are as follows

40

1481

5.728

5849

716

8514

2299 2288

12691 11533

11

1158

428 667

73 2321

768 344

646

1095

2531

1112

646

1541

5362

1315

28592

137

1541

15090

26 5336

1315 ________

6488 7014
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The following is reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of pension plan assets that are measured at fair value using significant unob

servable inputs

Balance at December 31 2008

Actual gain loss on plan assets

Purchases and sales

Transfers in and/or out of Level

Balance at December 31 2009

Actual gain loss on plan assets

Purchases and sales

Transfers in and/or out of Level

Balance at December 31 2010

Corporate Bonds

23

26

84

5101

dollars in millions

Total

6789

434

678

Health Care and Life Plans

The fair values for the other postretirement benefit plans by asset cat

egory at December 31 2010 are as follows

dollars in millions

Asset Category Total Level Level Level

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity securities

Fixed income securities

U.S Treasuries and agencies

Corporate bonds

International bonds

Other

Other

Total

394 21 373

1919 1202 717

47 33

58 115

117

198

56

1336 1609

80

173

125

198

56

2945

The fair values for the other postretirement benefit plans by asset cat

egory at December 31 2009 are as follows

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity securities

Fixed income securities

U.S Treasuries and agencies

Corporate bonds

International bonds

Other

Other

Total

37

3091 1799

Plan assets are recognized and measured at fair value in accordance

with the accounting standards regarding fair value measurements The

following are general descriptions of asset categories as well as the valu

ation methodologies and inputs used to determine the fair value of each

major category of assets

Cash and cash equivalents include short-term investment funds primarily

in diversified portfolios of investment grade money market instruments

and are valued using quoted market prices or other valuation methods

and thus are classified within Level or Level

Equity securities are investments in common stock of domestic and

international corporations in variety of industry sectors and are valued

primarily using quoted market prices or other valuation methods and

thus are classified within Level or Level

Fixed income securities include U.S Treasuries and agencies debt obli

gations of foreign governments and debt obligations in corporations of

domestic and foreign issuers Fixed income also includes investments

in asset backed securities such as collateralized mortgage obligations

mortgage backed securities and interest rate swaps The fair value of

fixed income securities are based on observable prices for identical or

comparable assets adjusted using benchmark curves sector grouping

matrix pricing broker/dealer quotes and issuer spreads and thus are clas

sified within Level or Level

Real estate investments include those in limited partnerships that invest

in various commercial and residential real estate projects both domesti

cally and internationally The fair values of real estate assets are typically

determined by using income and/or cost approaches or comparable

sales approach taking into consideration discount and capitalization

rates financial conditions local market conditions and the status of the

capital markets and thus are classified within Level

Private equity investments include those in limited partnerships that

invest in operating companies that are not publicly traded on stock

exchange Investment strategies in private equity include leveraged buy-

outs venture capital distressed investments and investments in natural

resources These investments are valued using inputs such as trading

multiples of comparable public securities merger and acquisition activity

and pricing data from the most recent equity financing taking into con

sideration illiquidity and thus are classified within Level

Hedge fund investments include those seeking to maximize absolute

returns using broad range of strategies to enhance returns and provide

additional diversification The fair values of hedge funds are estimated

using net asset value per share NAV of the investments Verizon has the

ability to redeem these investments at NAV within the near term and

thus are classified within Level Investments that cannot be redeemed

in the near term are classified within Level

Cash Flows

In 2010 contributions to our qualified pension plans were not significant

In 2010 we contributed $0.1 billion to our nonqualified pension plans

and $1.2 billion to our other postretirement benefit plans During January

2011 we contributed approximately $0.4 billion to our qualified pension

plans We do not expect to make additional qualified pension plan contri

butions during the remainder of 2011 We anticipate approximately $0.1

billion in contributions to our non-qualified pension plans and $1.5 bil

lion to our other postretirement benefit plans in 2011

Real Estate Private Equity I-ledge Funds

1665

455

331 263

23 19

137 1541 5336 7014

49 518 24 496

37 294 109 435

17 583 569

180 1769 5849 716 8514

Asset Category

dollars in millionsi

Total Level Level Level

166 27

2240 1681

139

559

61 36 25

275 42 233

81 13 68

231 231

37

1.292
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The benefit payments to retirees are expected to be paid as follows

Health Care and Life

Prior to Medicare

Prescription

Pension Benefits Drua Subsidy

dollars in millions

2011 3114 2126 107

2012 2339 2142 120

2013 2273 1951

2014 2225 1931

2015 2188 1873

20162020 10536 8452

Savings Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plans

We maintain four leveraged employee stock ownership plans

Only one plan currently has unallocated shares We match certain per

centage of eligible employee contributions to the savings plans with

shares of our common stock from this ESOP At December 31 2010 the

number of unallocated and allocated shares of common stock in this

ESOP were million and 66 million respectively All leveraged

shares are included in earnings per share computations

Total savings plan costs were $0.7 billion in 2010 2009 and 2008

Severance Benefits

The following table provides an analysis of our actuarially determined

severance liability recorded in accordance with the accounting standard

regarding employers accounting for postemployment benefits

Beginning Charged to

Year of Year Expense Payments

dollars in millions

2008 1024 512 509 77 1104

2009 1104 950 522 106 1638

2010 1638 1217 1307 21 1569

Charged to expense includes the impact of the activities described below

Other primarily includes the expense incurred related to our ongoing

severance plans

Severance Pension and Benefit Charges

During 2010 we recorded net pre-tax severance pension and ben

efits charges of $3.1 billion primarily in connection with an agreement

we reached with certain unions on temporary enhancements to the

separation programs contained in their existing collective bargaining

agreements These temporary enhancements were intended to help

address previously declared surplus of employees and to help reduce

the need for layoffs Accordingly during 2010 we recorded severance

pension and benefits charges associated with the approximately 11900

union-represented employees who volunteered for the incentive offer

These charges included $1.2 billion for severance for the 2010 programs

mentioned above and planned workforce reduction of approximately

2500 employees in 2011 In addition we recorded $1.3 billion for pension

and postretirement curtailment losses and special termination benefits

that were due to the workforce reductions which caused the elimination

of significant amount of future service Also we recorded remeasure

ment losses of $0.6 billion for our pension and postretirement plans

in accordance with our accounting policy to recognize actuarial gains

and losses in the year in which they occur The remeasurement losses

included $0.1 billion of pension settlement losses related to employees

that received lump sum distributions primarily resulting from our previ

ously announced separation plans

During 2009 we recorded net pre-tax severance pension and benefits

charges of $1.4 billion primarily for pension and postretirement curtail

ment losses and special termination benefits of $1.9 billion as workforce

reductions caused the elimination of significant amount of future ser

vice requiring us to recognize portion of the prior service costs These

charges also included $0.9 billion for workforce reductions of approxi

mately 17600 employees 4200 of whom were separated during late

2009 and the remainder in 2010 Also we recorded remeasurement gains

of $1.4 billion for our pension and postretirement plans in accordance

with our accounting policy to recognize actuarial gains and losses in the

year
in which they occur

During 2008 we recorded net pre-tax severance pension and benefits

charges of $15.6 billion primarily due to remeasurement losses of $15.0

billion for our pension and postretirement plans in accordance with our

accounting policy to recognize actuarial gains and losses in the year in

which they occur These remeasurement losses included $0.5 billion of

pension settlement losses related to employees that received lump sum

distributions primarily resulting from our previously announced separa

tion plans These severance pension and benefit charges also included

$0.5 billion for workforce reductions in connection with the separation

of approximately 8600 employees and related charges 3500 of whom

were separated in the second half of 2008 and the remainder in 2009 and

$0.1 billion for pension and postretirement curtailment losses and special

termination benefits that were due to the workforce reductions which

caused the elimination of significant amount of future service

Year

Expected Medicare

Prescription

Drua Subsidy

Other End of Year
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NOTE 13

INCOME TAXES

The components of income before provision benefit for income taxes

are as follows

dollars in millions

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

The components of the provision benefit for income taxes are as follows

Years Ended December31 2010 2009

Current

Federal

Foreign

State and Local

Total

Deferred

Federal

Foreign

State and Local

Total

Investment tax credits

Total income tax provision benefit

The following table shows the principal reasons for the difference

between the effective income tax rate and the statutory federal income

tax rate

Statutory federal income tax rate

State and local income tax rate

net of federal tax benefits

Distributions from foreign investments

Medicare Part subsidy charge

Equity in earnings from

2008
unconsolidated businesses

Noncontrolling interest

Other net

Effective income tax rate

do lars in mi lions

2467

35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

1.4 1.5 16.5

4.3

6.9

1.6 1.6 14.0

19.5 16.0 119.4

2.8 4.7 22.0

19.4% 14.2% 141.2%

The effective income tax rate in 2010 increased to 19.4% from 14.2% in

2009 The increase was primarily driven by one-time non-cash income

tax charge of $1.0 billion The one-time non-cash income tax charge was

result of the enactment of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care

Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 both

of which became law in March 2010 collectively the Health Care Act

Under the Health Care Act beginning in 2013 Verizon and other com

panies that receive subsidy under Medicare Part to provide retiree

prescription drug coverage will no longer receive federal income tax

deduction for the expenses incurred in connection with providing the

subsidized coverage to the extent of the subsidy received Because future

anticipated retiree prescription drug plan liabilities and related subsi

dies were already reflected in Verizons financial statements this change

required Verizon to reduce the value of the related tax benefits recog

nized in its financial statements in the period during which the Health

Care Act was enacted.The increase was partially
offset by higher earnings

attributable to the noncontrolling interest

During 2008 we recorded pension and postretirement benefit plan

remeasurement loss rendering the 2008 effective tax rate not mean

ingful Excluding the tax impact of this actuarial loss in 2008 the effective

income tax rate decreased in 2009 primarily driven by higher earnings

attributable to the noncontrolling interest Included within the 4.7%

Other net above is the impact of lower federal taxes net of higher state

taxes attributable to prior year adjustments to tax balances that were not

material to the overall effective income tax rate

Excluding the tax impact of the actuarial loss in 2008 the state and local

income tax rate decreased due to tax benefits recognized after statutes

of limitations in multiple jurisdictions lapsed and the impact of earnings

attributable to the noncontrolling interest

Domestic

Foreign

Total

$11921 12625 722

763 895 921

$12684 13520 1643

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

705
19
42

766

611

73

364

174

365

240

544

1149

2945

24
316

3237

1616

35
518

2099

1.919

2411

91
960

3462

2.319
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Deferred taxes arise because of differences in the book and tax bases of

certain assets and liabilities Significant components of deferred taxes are

shown in the following table

dollars in millions

At December31 2010 2009

Employee benefits

Tax loss and credit carry forwards

Uncollectible accounts receivable

Other assets

Valuation allowances

Deferred tax assets

Former MCI intercompany accounts receivable

basis difference

Depreciation

Leasing activity

Wireless joint venture including wireless licenses

Other liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax liability

11499 13204

3907 2786

248 303

951 1269

16605 17562

3421 2942

13184 14620

At December31 2010 undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries

indefinitely invested outside of the United States amounted to approxi

mately $1.2 billion.We have not provided deferred taxes on these earnings

because we intend that they will remain indefinitely invested outside of

the United States Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred

taxes related to these undistributed earnings is not practical

At December31 2010 we had net after tax loss and credit carry forwards

for income tax purposes of approximately $4.2 billion Of these net after

tax loss and credit carry forwards approximately $3.5 billion wilhexpire

between 2011 and 2030 and approximately $0.7 billion may be carried

forward indefinitely The amount of net after tax loss and credit carry

forwards reflected as deferred tax asset above has been reduced by

approximately $0.6 billion at December31 2010 and 2009 due to federal

and state tax law limitations on utilization of net operating losses

During 2010 the valuation allowance increased approximately $0.5 bil

Iion.The balance at December 31 2010 and the 2010 activity is primarily

related to state and foreign tax losses and credit carry forwards

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of unrecognized

tax benefits is as follows

Balance at January

Additions based on tax positions related

to the current year

Additions for tax positions of prior years

Reductions for tax positions of prior years

Settlements

Lapses of statutes of limitations

Balance at December 31

dollars in millions

2010 2009 2008

Included in the total unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 2010

2009 and 2008 is $2.1 billion $2.1 billion and $1.6 billion respectively

that if recognized would favorably affect the effective income tax rate

We recognized the following net after tax benefits related to interest and

penalties in the provision for income taxes

Years Ended December 31 dollars in millions

2010 29

2009

2008

The after-tax accrual for the payment of interest and penalties in the bal

ance sheets are as follows

At December 31 dollars in millions

Verizon and/or its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S federal

jurisdiction and various state local and foreign jurisdictions The Internal

Revenue Service IRS is currently examining the Companys U.S income

tax returns for the years 2004 through 2006 As large taxpayer we are

under continual audit by the IRS and multiple state and foreign juris

dictions on numerous open tax positions Significant tax examinations

and litigation are ongoing in Massachusetts New York Canada Australia

and Italy for tax years as early as 2002 It is reasonably possible that the

amount of the liability for unrecognized tax benefits could change by

significant amount during the next twelve-month period An estimate of

the range of the possible change cannot be made until issues are further

developed or examinations close

3400 2622 2883

231 288

476 1128

569 477

256 27
40 134

3.242 3400

1489

11758

1980

19514

1152

35893

22.709

251

344

65

126

79
7.677

1633

10296

2081

18249

1012

33271

18.65

14

55

2010

2009

527

552
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NOTE 14

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Reportable Segments

We have two reportable segments which we operate and manage as

strategic business units and organize by products and services We mea

sure and evaluate our reportable segments based on segment operating

income consistent with the chief operating decision makers assessment

of segment performance

Corporate eliminations and other includes unallocated corporate

expenses intersegment eliminations recorded in consolidation the

results of other businesses such as our investments in unconsolidated

businesses pension and other employee benefit related costs lease

financing as well as the historical results of divested operations and other

adjustments and gains and losses that are not allocated in assessing seg

ment performance due to their non-operational nature Although such

transactions are excluded from the business segment results they are

included in reported consolidated earnings Gains and losses that are not

individually significant are included in all segment results as these items

are included in the chief operating decision makers assessment of seg

ment performance

The reconciliation of segment operating revenues and expenses to con

solidated operating revenues and expenses below also includes those

items of non-recurring or non-operational nature We exclude from

segment results the effects of certain items that management does not

consider in assessing segment performance primarily because of their

non-recurring non-operational nature

During the fourth quarter of 2010 Verizon changed its method of

accounting for benefit plans as described in Note as result all prior

periods have been adjusted As part of this change to its method of

accounting the service cost and the amortization of prior service costs

which are representative of the benefits earned by active employees

during the period will continue to be allocated to the segment in which

the employee is employed while interest cost and expected return on

assets will now be recorded at the Corporate level The recognition of

actuarial gains and losses will also be recorded at the Corporate level

External Operating Revenues

Service revenue

Equipment and other

Mass Markets

Global Enterprse

Global Wholesale

Other

Intersegment revenues

Total operating revenues

Cost of services and sales

Selling general and administrative expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Assets

Plant property and equipment net

Capital expenditures

In order to comply with regulatory conditions related to the acquisition

of Alitel in January 2009 Verizon Wireless divested overlapping proper

ties in 109 operating markets in 24 states during the first half of 2010

In addition on July 12010 certain ofVerizons local exchange business

and related landline activities in 14 states were spun off see Note

Furthermore in 2008 we completed the spin-off of our local exchange

and related business assets in Maine New Hampshire and Vermont

Accordingly the historical Domestic Wireless and Wireline results for

these operations have been reclassified to Corporate and Other to reflect

comparable segment operating results

We have adjusted prior-period consolidated and segment information

where applicable to conform to current year presentation

Our segments and their principal activities consist of the following

Segment Description

Domestic Wireless Domestic Wreless communications products and

services include wireless voice and data services and

equipment sales across the U.S

Wirelines communications products and services

include voice Internet access broadband video and

data Internet protocol network services network

access long distance and other services We provide

these products and services to consumers in the U.S

as well as to carriers businesses and government

customers both in the U.S and in over 150 other

countries around the world

55588

7753

55588

16247

7753

15667

16247

7173

15667

66

858

7173

63407

1282

858

19245

41227

1348

18082

22618

104634

7356

9372

41863

44683

8469

27454

18724

40459

15825

768

85142

19492

222712

86847

15707

Wireline

The following table provides operating
financial information for our two reportable segments

dollars in millions

2010
Domestic Wireless Wireline Total Segments

138863

32253

8438

83849

54594

7269
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External Operating Revenues

Service revenue

Equipment and other

Mass Markets

Global
Enterprise

Global Wholesale

Other

Intersegment revenues

Total operating revenues

Cost of services and sales

Selling general and administrative expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Assets

Plant property and equipment net

Capital expenditures

External
Operating Revenues

Service revenue

Equipment and other

Mass Markets

Global Enterprise

Global Wholesale

Other

Intersegment revenues

Total operating revenues

Cost of services and sales

Selling general and administrative expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Assets

Plant property and equipment net

Capital expenditures

51975

8250

16109

15666

100

1443

7958

60325
1275

1443

19348
42451

1375

17309
22693

102776

7030

42041

43687
8238

27256

16638
40878

15268

1573
84565

18211

135162

30849

7152
8892

42527

6665
42527

15823
6665

16599
15823

8770
16599

106

1959
8770

49298

1172
1959

15660

44323
1278

14273

22890
93621

5405

10169
38550

35338

8174
24442

13960
41233

13579

3090

76571

17050

202365

85423

16307

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

dollars in millions

Wireline
Total Segments

51975

8250

16109

15666

7958

9947

91778

59373

dollars in millions
Wireless Wireline

Total Segments

226940

90222

16044

111979

27136

6510

90386

58287

9797

70



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Reconciliation to Consolidated Financial Information

reconciliation of the segment operating revenues to consolidated operating revenues is as follows

dollars in millions

2009 2008

Operating Revenues

Total reportable segments

Reconciling items

Deferred revenue adjustment see Note

Impact of divested operations

Corporate eliminations and other

Consolidated operating revenues

reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments operating income to consolidated Income before provision for income taxes is as follows

dollars in millions

2009 2008

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated businesses

Other income expense net

19492

867
407

3054
235
755

1039
14645

18211

954

453

1440

78

1769

1233

15978

17050

174

103

15602

34

1197

210

2612

Assets

Total reportable segments

Corporate eliminations and other

Total consolidated

We generally account for intersegment sales of products and services and asset transfers at current market prices No single customer accounted for

more than 10% of our total operating revenues during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 International operating revenues and

long-lived assets are not significant

2010

104634

235

102776 93621

78 34

2407 5297 4084

241 343 385

106565 107808 97354

2010

Operating Income

Total segment operating income

Merger integration
and acquisition costs see Note

Access line spin-off
and other charges see Note

Severance pension and benefit charges see Note 12

Deferred revenue adjustment see Note

Impact of divested operations see Note

Corporate eliminations and other

Consolidated operating income

Interest expense

Income Before Provision Benefit for Income Taxes

508 553 567

54 91 283

2523 3102 1819

12684 13520 1643

222712

2707
220005

226940

33
226907
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

NOTE 15

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other gains and losses

affecting equity that under generally accepted accounting principles are

excluded from net income Significant changes in the components of

Other comprehensive income loss net of provision benefit for income

taxes are described below

Foreign Currency Translation

The changes in Foreign currency translation adjustments were as follows

Vodafone Omnitel

Other international operations

Foreign currency translation

adjustments

dollars in millions

2010 2009 2008

171 78 231

Net Unrealized Gains Lasses on Cash Flow Hedges

The changes in Unrealized gains losses on cash flow hedges were as

follows

Years Ended December 31

Unrealized gains losses

Less reclassification adjustments for gains

losses realized in net income

Net unrealized gains losses on

cash flow hedges

Unrealized Gains Losses on Marketable Securities

The changes in Unrealized gains losses on marketable securities were

as follows

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss

The components of Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

were as follows

dollars in millions

At December31 2010 2009

843 1014

126 37

79 50

2473

.3771049

Years Ended December31

Unrealized gains losses

Less reclassification adjustments for gains

losses realized in net income

Net unrealized gains losses on

marketable securities

dollars in millionsi

2010 2009 2008

37 95 142

45

29 87 97

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments

The change in Foreign currency translation adjustments during 2010 was

primarily driven by the devaluation of the Euro versus the U.S dollar The

change in Foreign currency translation adjustments during 2009 was pri

marily driven by the devaluation of the U.S dollar versus the Euro The

change in Foreign currency translation adjustments during 2008 was pri

marily driven by the settlement of the foreign currency forward contracts

which hedged portion of our net investment in Vodafone Omnitel and

the devaluation of the Euro versus the U.S dollar

Net Unrealized Gains Losses on Cash Flow Hedges

During 2010 2009 and 2008 Unrealized gains losses on cash flow

hedges included in Other comprehensive income attributable to non-

controlling interest primarily reflects activity related to cross currency

swap see Note 10

Years Ended December31

Defined Benefit Pension and Postretirement Plans

The change in Defined benefit pension and postretirement plans of $2.5

billion net of taxes of $1.2 billion at December 31 2010 was attribut

able to the change in prior service cost The change was impacted by

change to our Medicare Part strategy resulting in the adoption of

plan amendments during the fourth quarter of 2010 which will allow

the company to be eligible for greater Medicare Part plan subsidies

over time and was also impacted by the curtailment losses associated

with the voluntary incentive program for union-represented employees

recorded in the second quarter of 2010 see Note 12 The change in

Defined benefit pension and postretirement plans of $0.3 billion net of

119 49 119
taxes of $0.4 billion at December 31 2009 was attributable to change

52 29 112
in prior service cost

Idollars in millions
Foreign currency translation adjustments

2010 2009 2008
Net unrealized gain on cash flow hedges

38 112 43 Unrealized gain on marketable securities

Defined benefit pension and postretirement plans

51 25 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss

89 87 40
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

NOTE 16

ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The tables that follow provide additional financial information related to our consolidated financial statements

dollars in millionsIncome Statement Information

Years Ended December 31
2010 2009 2008

Depreciation expense

14593 14564 13227

Interest incurred
3487 4029 2566

Interest capitalized

964 927 747

Advertising expense

2451 3020 2754

dollars in millionsBalance Sheet Information

December31

2010 2oo9

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable

3936 4337

Accrued expenses

4110 3486

Accrued vacation salaries and wages

5686 5084

Interest payable

813
872

Taxes payable

1157 1444

15702 15223

Other Current Liabilities

Advance billings and customer deposits

3091 2644

Dividends payable

1402 1372

Other

2860 2692

7353
6708

Cash Flow Information dollars in millions

Years Ended December31
2010 2009 2008

Cash Paid

Income taxes net of amounts refunded
430 158 1206

Interest net of amounts capitalized
2433 2573 1664
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Notes to Consolidated Fina ncial Statements continued

NOTE 17

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

We are currently involved in certain legal proceedings and as required

nave accrued estimates of the probable and estimable losses for the

resolution of these claims that individually or in the aggregate were

not significant These estimates have been developed in consultation

with outside counsel and are based upon an analysis of potential results

assuming combination of litigation and settlement strategies It is pos

sible however that future results of operations for any particular quarterly

or annual period could be materially affected by changes in our assump

tions or the effectiveness of our strategies related to these proceedings

Several state and federal regulatory proceedings may require our tele

phone operations to pay penalties or to refund to customers portion

of the revenues collected in the current and prior periods There are also

various legal actions pending to which we are party and claims that if

asserted may lead to other legal actions We have established reserves

for specific liabilities in connection with regulatory and legal actions

including environmental matters that we currently deem to be probable

and estimable We do not expect that the ultimate resolution of pending

regulatory and legal matters in future periods including the Hicksville

matter described below will have material effect on our financial con

dition but it could have material effect on our results of operations for

given reporting period

During 2003 under government-approved plan remediation com
menced at the site of former Sylvania facility

in Hicksville New York

that processed nuclear fuel rods in the 1950s and 1960s Remediation

beyond original expectations proved to be necessary and reassessment

of the anticipated remediation costs was conducted reassessment of

costs related to remediation efforts at several other former facilities was

also undertaken In September 2005 the Army Corps of Engineers ACE

accepted the Hicksville site into the Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial

Action Program This may result in the ACE performing some or all of the

remediation effort for the Hicksville site with corresponding decrease

in costs to Verizon To the extent that the ACE assumes responsibility for

remedial work at the Hicksville site an adjustment to reserve previously

established for the remediation may be made Adjustments to the reserve

may also be made based upon actual conditions discovered during the

remediation at this or any other site requiring remediation

In connection with the execution of agreements for the sales of busi

nesses and investments Verizon ordinarily provides representations and

warranties to the purchasers pertaining to variety of nonfinancial mat

ters such as ownership of the securities being sold as well as indemnity

from certain financial losses From time to time counterparties may make

claims under these provisions and Verizon will seek to defend against

those claims and resolve them in the ordinary course of business

Subsequent to the sale of Verizon Information Services Canada in 2004

we continue to provide guarantee to publish directories which was

issued when the directory business was purchased in 2001 and had

30-year term before extensions The preexisting guarantee continues

without modification despite the subsequent sale ofVerizon Information

Services Canada and the spin-off of our domestic print and Internet

yellow pages directories business The possible financial impact of the

guarantee which is not expected to be adverse cannot be reasonably

estimated as variety of the potential outcomes available under the

guarantee result in costs and revenues or benefits that may offset each

other We do not believe performance under the guarantee is likely

As of December 31 2010 letters of credit totaling approximately $0.1

billion were executed in the normal course of business which support

several financing arrangements and payment obligations to third parties

We depend on various key suppliers and vendors to provide us directly

or through other suppliers with equipment and services such as switch

and network equipment handsets and other devices and equipment

that we need in order to operate our business and provide products

to our customers For example our handset and other device suppliers

often rely on one vendor for the manufacture and supply of critical com
ponents such as chipsets used in their devices If any of our key suppliers

or other suppliers fail to provide equipment or services on timely basis

or fail to meet our performance expectations we may be unable to pro

vide services to our customers in competitive manner or continue to

maintain and upgrade our network Any such disruption could increase

our costs decrease our operating efficiencies and have material adverse

effect on our business results of operations and financial condition

We have several commitments primarily to purchase equipment soft

ware programming and network services and marketing activities which

will be used or sold in the ordinary course of business from variety of

suppliers totaling $57.3 billion Of this total amount we expect to pur

chase $1 7.9 billion in 2011 $36.8 billion in 2012 through 2013 $2.1 billion

in 2014 through 2015 and $0.5 billion thereafter These amounts do not

represent our entire anticipated purchases in the future but represent

only those items for which we are contractually committed Our commit

ments are generally determined based on the noncancelable quantities

or termination amounts Since the commitments to purchase program

ming services from television networks and broadcast stations have no

minimum volume requirement we estimated our obligation based on

number of subscribers at December 31 2010 and applicable rates stipu

lated in the contracts in effect at that time We also purchase products

and services as needed with no firm commitment
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Notes to Consolidated Fina ncial Statements continued

NOTE 18

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION UNAUDITED

dollars in millions except per
share amounts

Net Income Loss attributable to Verizont1t

Operating Operating Per Share- Per Share-

Quarter Ended Revenues Income Amount Basic Diluted Net Income

2010

March31 26913 4441 443 .16 .16 2318

June30 26773 410 1192 .42 .42 553

September30 26484 3383 659 .23 .23 2698

December31 26395 6411 2639 .93 .93 4648

2009

March 31 26591 4530 1521 .54 .54 3086

June30 26861 4672 1658 .58 .58 3335

September30 27265 3823 1098 .39 .39 2809

December31 27091 2953 617 .22 .22 2371

Results of operations for the first quarter of 2010 include after-tax charges attributable to Verizon of $1.1 billion related to Medicare Part subsidy access line spin-off charges merger

integration and acquisiton costs and severance pension and benefit charges

Results of operations for the second quarter of 2010 include after-tax charges attributable to Verizon of $2.8 billion related to severance pension and benefit charges merger integration and

acquisition costs access line spin-off charges and one-time non-cash adjustment to wireless data revenues

Results of operations for the third quarter of 2010 include after-tax charges attributable to Verizon of $0.g billion primarily related to severance pension and benefit charges access line

spin-off charges and merger integration costs

Results of operations for the fourth quarter of 2010 include net after-tax gain attributable to Verizon of $1.1 billion related to severance pension and benefit charges and merger integration

and acquisition costs

Results of operations for the first quarter of 200g include after-tax charges attributable to Verizon of $0.1 billion related to acquisition related charges and merger integration costs

Results of operations for the second quarter of 2009 include after-tax charges attributable to Verizon of $0.1 billion of merger integration costs acquisition related charges and severance

pension and benefits charges

Results of operations for the third quarter of 2009 include after-tax charges attributable to Verizon of $0.5 billion primarily related to merger integration and acquisition costs access line

spin-off and other charges and severance pension and benefits charges

Results of operations for the fourth quarter of 2009 include after-tax charges attristable to Verizon of $0.8 billion for severance pension and benefits charges wireline cost reduction

initiatives access line spin-off and other charges and merger integration and acquisition costs

Net income loss attributable to Verizon
per common share is computed independently for each

quarter
and the sum of the

quarters may not equal the annual amount
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Randal Milch
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Rodney Slater

Partner Marc Reed
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John Snow
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VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC 2010 ANNUAL REPORT

Investor Information

Registered Shaieowner Services

Questions or requests for assistance regarding changes to or transfers

of your registered stock ownership should be directed to our transfer

agent Computershare Trust Company N.A at

Verizon Communications Shareowner Services

do Computershare

P.O Box 43078

Providence RI 02940-3078

Phone 800 631-2355

Website www.computershare.com/verizon

Email verizon@computershare.com

Persons outside the U.S may call 781 575-3994

Persons using telecommunications device for the deaf TDD may call

800 952-9245

Online Account Access Registered shareowners can view account

information online at www.computershare.com/verizon

Click on Create login to register For more information contact

Computershare

Direct Dividend Deposit Service Verizon offers an electronic funds

transfer service to registered shareowners wishing to deposit dividends

directly into savings or checking accounts on dividend payment dates

For more information contact Computershare

Direct Invest Stock Purchase and Ownership Plan Verizon offers

direct stock purchase and share ownership plan The plan allows cur

rent and new investors to purchase common stock and to reinvest the

dividends toward the purchase of additional shares To receive Plan

Prospectus and enrollment form contact Computershare or visit their

website

eTree Program Worldwide Verizon is acting to conserve natural

resources in variety of ways We are proud to offer shareowners an

opportunity to be environmentally responsible By receiving links to

proxy annual report and shareowner materials online you can help

Verizon reduce the amount of materials we print and mail As thank

you for choosing electronic delivery Verizon will plant tree on your

behalf Its fast and easy and you can change your electronic delivery

options at anytime Sign up at www.eTree.com/verizon or call

800 631-2355 or 781 575-3994

Corporate Governance

Verizons Corporate Governance Guidelines are available on our

website www.verizon.com/investor

If you would prefer to receive printed copy by mail please contact the

Assistant Corporate Secretary

Verizon Communications Inc

Assistant Corporate Secretary

140 West Street 29th Floor

New York NY 10007

Investor Services

Investor Website Get company information and news on our

website www.verizon.com/investor

VzMail Get the latest investor information delivered directly to you

Subscribe to VzMail at our investor information website

Stock Market Information

Shareowners of record at December 31 2010 738059

Verizon is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and the NASDAQ

Global Select Market ticker symbol VZ and also on the London

Stock Exchange

Common Stock Price and Dividend Information

2010

Fourth Quarter

Third Quarter

Second Quarter

First Quarter

2009

Fourth Quarter

Third Quarter

Second Quarter

First Quarter

Cash

Market Price Dividend

Hiah Low Declared

36.00 31.60 0.4875

33.09 25.79 0.4875

29.63 24.75 0.4750

31.26 26.45 0.4750

31.89 26.70 0.4750

30.55 26.45 0.4750

30.90 26.76 0.4600

32.48 24.39 0.4600

Prices have been adjusted to reflect the spinoff of certain of Verizons local

exchange business and related landline activities in 14 states

Form 10-K

To receive printed copy of the 2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K

which is filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission contact

Investor Relations

Verizon Communications Inc

Investor Relations

One Verizon Way

Basking Ridge NJ 07920

Phone 212 395-1525

Equal Opportunity Policy

Verizon maintains long-standing commitment to equal opportunity

and valuing the diversity of its employees suppliers and customers

Verizon is fully committed to workplace free from discrimination

and harassment for all persons without regard to race color religion

age gender national origin sexual orientation marital status military

status citizenship status veteran status disability or other legally

protected classifications
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